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NARRATIVE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

This Statement of Accounts has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). It aims to provide information to
our residents, Council Members, partners, stakeholders and other interested parties so that they

can:

° Understand the financial position of the Council in 2024/25;

) Have confidence that the public money with which the Council has been entrusted has
been used well and accounted for in an appropriate manner;

° Be assured that the overall position of the Council is sound and secure.

This is the narrative report to the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2025. It
provides a summary of the financial position as at 31st March 2025 and is structured as below:

° Introduction to Adur as a place

° Key information about the Council

° The Council plan and non-financial achievements of the Council in 2024/25
° The 2024/25 revenue budget process and medium term financial plan

° Financial Overview of the Council 2024/25

* Revenue spend in 2024/25
* Capital Strategy and Capital Programme 2024/25 to 2027/28

° Housing Revenue Account
° Top strategic risks
° Summary position

This is followed by an explanation of the Financial Statements.

1. AN INTRODUCTION TO ADUR AS A PLACE

Adur District Council is one of seven Local Authorities in West Sussex. It lies on the South
Coast and covers an area of approximately 41.8 km?. The Council shares its boundaries with
Brighton and Hove City Council to the east, Worthing Borough Council and Arun District Council
to the west, and Horsham District Council and Mid Sussex District Council to the north. It is
located at the foot of the South Downs at the southern edge of the beautiful South Downs
National Park.
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Adur has a population of approximately 64,544 according to the Office of National Statistics with

an age profile of:

Age range Adur District Council Nationally
0 - 15 18.0% 18.9%
16 - 64 58.4% 62.2%
65+ 23.6% 18.9%

There are 2,345 businesses within the area. Business Rate income was £19.6m in 2024/25.
The Council kept £3.2m of income related to Business Rates, 10% of the income was paid to

the County Council with the remainder paid to the Government.

2. KEY INFORMATION ABOUT ADUR DISTRICT COUNCIL

Adur District Council is a large, complex organisation offering a wide range of services to its
residents. Its policies are directed by the Political Leadership and implemented by the Council
Leadership Team and Officers of the Council. The following section describes the political and
management structures of the Council.
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Political Structure in the 2024/25 Municipal Year

Adur has 29 Councillors representing 14 wards. In 2024/25 the political make-up of the Council
was:

Labour 17 Councillors
Conservative Party 7 Councillors
Green Party 2 Councillors

Independent - Shoreham Beach

Residents Association 2 Councillor

Independent 1 Councillor

The Council has adopted the Leader and Cabinet model as its political management structure.
The Leader of the Council has responsibility for the appointment of Members of the Executive,
the allocation of portfolio responsibilities and the delegation of Executive Functions. Scrutiny of
the Executive decisions, including the financial strategy, has been undertaken by the Joint
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The leader of the Council during 2024/25 was Councillor Jerremy Gardner.

Management Structure

Supporting the work of the Councillors is the organisational structure of the Council headed by
the Corporate Leadership Team led by the Chief Executive.

=
=

Y Holds £372m of assets to support services and provide income to fund service delivery

y Generates £13m of income from fees, charges and rents (net of Housing Subsidy and
Housing Revenue Account income) to help deliver services and keep council tax down

V' Has set a balanced budget each year despite allocated funding from revenue support grants
and retained business rates falling each year. In 2024/25 government funding (New Homes
Bonus, Services Grant and Lower Tier Services Grant) made up 2% of total generated
income (excluding Housing Benefit Subsidy) .

Adur District Council:
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Working in partnership

Government initiatives have placed great emphasis on partnership working for service delivery
to help meet the changing needs of customers and the cost savings authorities need to find. To
achieve this goal Adur District and Worthing Borough Councils are part of an innovative
partnership arrangement.

The shared single officer structure, which was introduced in April 2008, includes all of the
services that were intended to operate as shared Adur & Worthing services with a net budget of
£26.5m for 2024/25. The shared services are managed via a Joint Committee. This Joint
Committee has to meet all the accounting requirements of a public sector body. For accounting
purposes the following key processes apply:-

- The Joint Strategic Committee has a separate budget.

- As each service moved across from Adur and Worthing to the Joint Strategic Committee
their respective budgets and spend were pooled.

- The net expenditure within the Joint Strategic Committee is recharged back to Adur and
Worthing Councils.

COUNCIL PLANS AND PERFORMANCE
OUR PLAN - 2023-2026

The Council’s priorities are laid out in ‘Our Plan’ which was agreed in the autumn of 2022. The
plan is the framework for everything we do at Adur and Worthing Councils and sets out:

Our Purpose - what the councils are fundamentally here to do;

How we work - how we will treat each other as colleagues, customers and partners;
Our Principles - which allow us to work effectively and to evolve as an organisation;
Our Foundations - the universal services citizens see and use plus the core services; and
Our Missions - Ambitions and focused areas of work.

Our Missions

These are the big ambitions and complex issues that need to be addressed for Adur and
Worthing to thrive long term. By nature they are bigger than the individual services that we
provide, requiring creative solutions that cut across council teams and other organisations.

Mission Aim to achieve

Thriving People e People are healthy, resilient and resourceful;
they can access the right help when they need it

e Everyone has a safe, secure and sustainable home;

e Everyone is able to enjoy a wide range of cultural, leisure
and sporting opportunities

Thriving Places e Places are designed for people and nature;
they are clean, safe and feel looked after

e People feel a sense of belonging to places and communities.
They can influence how places change;

e Active travel is easy, with opportunities for walking, cycling
and public transport
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Thriving Environment e Action now achieves a fair transition to Net Zero Carbon by
2045;

e Resilience to climate change and increased biodiversity by
restoring natural habitats;

e A circular economy is created, one that minimises waste and
keeps materials in use

Thriving Economy e An inclusive economy which provides people with skills and
opportunities to secure good quality jobs;

e Ambitious, high-growth companies located in Adur and
Worthing and smaller independent businesses thrive;

e Economic growth regenerates places and high streets,
helping communities to prosper

The “Our Plan” programme can be found at: Qur Plan

Achievements in 2024/25

Although financial times are challenging for the Council and the sector as a whole, progress has
been made; a selection of updates on the Council’s priorities is as follows:

Thriving People

e Cost of Living

Helping those most in need through the cost of living crisis is a focus and priority for Adur
District Council with evidence of the impact that rising costs and inflationary pressures are
having on local residents, including new households that have not previously had to access
financial support.

The Adur Cost of Living Roadmap details the high level actions that the Council and its
partners in the not for profit, government and private sectors will take to address the impacts of
the rising cost of living. Further details about the initiatives, including who will lead on their
delivery, timeframes, and measures of success, are set out in an accompanying Cost of Living
Action Plan. A ‘partnership working group’ has been convened to provide more immediate
guidance on implementation of the Roadmap and Action Plan, and a number of time limited
working groups set up to drive delivery of specific initiatives, including housing and
homelessness, ethical debt and data sharing. Adur Council provides and funds the
administrative support and project management for implementation of the Roadmap

Adur Council's role is one of stewardship - coordinating and supporting implementation of the
Roadmap’s programme of work. Whilst Council is the lead agency for some actions in the
Roadmap, its role is to facilitate delivery by partners of the full suite of initiatives. There are four
major areas of focus for the Roadmap:

1. Providing Infrastructure support to where there is an immediate short term need.

2. Developing a sustained and co-ordinated community response to ensure that residents who
are most at risk of experiencing financial exclusion are able to achieve better financial
wellbeing and resilience.

3. That Adur Council considers its own organisational culture, policy and practice to ensure it
responds to cost of living impacts.

4. That partners in Adur work collaboratively to better use resources to meet community needs.

Immediate action is being taken by the Council and its partners to support households facing
the most severe impacts, including maximising benefit and income support entitlements, and
supporting food provision. The Roadmap will also look to put in place ongoing sustainable
measures for addressing underlying issues, for example financial exclusion, debt
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management, and reducing people’s energy use. It will also consider place-based initiatives in
response to the cumulative needs of neighbourhoods within Adur.

As part of the government's levelling up agenda the council has been allocated funding through
the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF). Within the agreed Investment Plan there is
commitment to support projects related to the Cost of Living over 3 years. In 2024/25 the
funding has been utilised to enable critical developments in the Cost of Living ‘umbrella’ and
extensions to the cycle provision in key areas of Adur and Worthing. To continue to help the
community in the face of a cost of living crisis, the implementation of TellJo and LIFT has
benefitted both Adur and Worthing Councils through a system that seeks to understand the
community and act as a preventative tool to combat hardship, cost of living challenges and
help those most vulnerable.

e Proactive

Our multidisciplinary Proactive Project is progressing well. The team uses the LIFT platform to
identify households with low financial resilience and telephones them to explore ways to
increase household income, reduce household debt and also to address the depression,
anxiety and loneliness that often accompany financial exclusion. For some residents, support
is offered at the first point of contact (our customer services team) but for others, they are
“‘introduced” (referred) to other Council teams for further assistance.

The team has now been able to identify financial and wellbeing impacts as a result of this work.
LIFT assigns each resident with a financial risk score and we can track these over time. As
part of the overall ‘safety net’ offered we will continue to signpost and develop and invest in the
redesign of our services to ensure the most vulnerable are supported, early.

Introduction of the TellJo pilot, using an online screening tool that residents can access by
completing a simple online questionnaire showing them how to request a fair repayment plan
with the Councils, get discounts on their utility bills and receive debt advice. The tool also
provides signposting to third sector organisations offering support for those dealing with issues
including mental health conditions, drug or alcohol problems, or domestic abuse.

The UKSPF Investment Plan sets out that funding is to be used to embed the proactive
programme and to embed this in Resident Services to help support and prevent
homelessness.

o Homelessness

Demand on the service continues to increase, with the cost of living crisis pushing more people
into financial difficulties. The Housing Needs Team are working closely with partner
organisations to ensure as many households and individuals as possible are helped to avoid
homelessness, or be speedily rehoused once homeless.

The focus on reducing rough sleeping and homelessness will continue at pace, meeting the
challenges of increased demand. . The Council has completed 7 new units of temporary
accommodation in Lancing and purchased seven properties through a leaseholder buy back
scheme in Southwick. New permanent accommodation has been provided by Adur Homes to
support households moving through the councils housing register with 49 properties being
developed at Albion Street and the continuation of our small sites programme making use of
underutilised garage sites.

e Housing Strategy

Following extensive consultation, our new Housing Strategy 2025 - 2030 was approved by
Councillors and identifies six priorities for the Councils with delivery plans initially for the first
18 months of the strategy period. Progress against the strategy will be reported annually to the
Joint Strategic Committee.

e Development of Place

Adur Civic Centre (Phase 2) - Work has started on delivering 170 new affordable homes on
Adur Civic Centre after the original approval was amended to retain the large Poplar tree on
the site
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Coastal defences - Shoreham Yacht Club - Negotiations are underway to finalise plans to
deliver the new coastal defences.

Western Harbour Arm - Planning permission has been granted on various sites to deliver
much needed new affordable and market housing. Vivid a Registered Provider will be building
159 affordable homes on the former Frosts site and Southern Housing are continuing to build
out 540 new homes on the Free Wharf site. The redevelopment of Kingston Wharf is well
underway with Hyde Housing building 255 affordable new homes. Whilst sites at New Wharf
and Howard Kent will deliver a further 103 new homes.

Adur Homes - Is making the most of vacant or underused land to deliver new affordable
housing. A ‘Hidden Homes’ project is delivering new affordable homes on semi-derelict
garage sites across Shoreham and Lancing. Three sites were completed in 2024/25 adding to
the four previous sites developed for households from the Housing Register. Two further sites
at Daniel Close and Gravelly Crescent are expected to be completed in 2025/26.

e Building Inclusive and Connected Communities

At Adur & Worthing Councils, we're all about making sure everyone feels they belong. We
believe that strong communities happen when every person's voice is heard and when
everyone has a chance to shape the place they live in. Our mission is to create fairer, greener,
and thriving local spaces where everyone can flourish.

We're working hard to make our communities more connected and inclusive - helping us all
grow stronger together. We are committed to doing that both inside and outside our
organisation, with our staff, our partners and our communities.

Embedding inclusion and cohesion into our priorities;

Redesigning services to be more inclusive and support those most in need;
Empowering everyone;

Supporting community safety;

Supporting inclusion and cohesion through our partners

YYVYVYY

More information can be found on the council website under Corporate Strategies / Inclusion
and cohesion.

Thriving Environment

e Waste and recycling

The national Resources and Waste Strategy and the Environmental Protection Act set out
some significant changes to waste and recycling collections across England and Wales.

Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) legislation aims to move the full cost of dealing with
packaging waste away from households, local taxpayers and councils and on to its producer.
Under the scheme waste collection and disposal authorities will receive funding which is
aimed at improving the efficiency of collection services. 2025/26 is the first year of the
scheme and DEFRA have confirmed a minimum payment level for this year of £563,000 for
Adur District Council. For future years the level of payment will be based on a formula
calculating service effectiveness and the value of EPR payments are expected to go down
over time as producers reduce the amount of packaging materials they place on the market
every year.

A Deposit Protection Scheme for plastic drinks bottles and cans has been delayed until
October 2027. Introduction of refundable deposits on containers will reduce the volume in
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the domestic recycling collection and will hopefully reduce litter as well.

Under Simpler Recycling the government aims to stream line waste and recycling collections
across the country. From 1 April 2025 certain businesses are required to recycle dry
materials and separate out food waste collections. In anticipation of the changes, our
commercial waste service has been promoting our food waste collections and recycling
service and we have seen an increase in uptake of these areas.

Food waste collections are the most significant change affecting our service delivery. By
March 2026 the council will be required to collect food waste weekly from all households
which will have significant capital and revenue implications.

In March 2024 government announced capital funding for the scheme, which totals £994,265
for Worthing Borough Council. The original allocation was £875,810, which was increased
by £118,445 on appeal that the original sum was insufficient. This funding is for vehicles,
containers and any capital works and procurement processes are underway.

Transitional funding to cover the cost container delivery, project management, procurement
and communications was announced in March 2025 The total amount of funding for Adur
District Council across 2024/25 and 2025/26 is £211,625.

Revenue funding to cover day to day operating costs (staff, vehicle running costs etc) has
still not been announced, but is expected in the spring. The estimated cost of the joint service
across Adur and Worthing is expected to be £1.47-£1.58 million based on 2024/25 prices.
Whilst DEFRA has stated that reasonable new burdens will be provided to deliver the new
service, the lack of certainty regarding funding presents a risk to the councils. The financial
situation does not enable us to absorb any shortfall in new burdens funding from our existing
budgets. In order to minimise this risk the council's Joint Strategic Committee agreed to
phase the roll out of the service to ensure costs do not exceed the dedicated funding.

o Nature Restoration and Protection

The Councils are members of the Sussex Kelp Restoration Project, a collaboration of
national and local organisations taking an evidence-based approach to tackle the challenges
to the restoration of Sussex kelp. We have also initiated a West Sussex Coastal Local
Authority Forum to help coordinate action along the coast as the kelp forest returns, working
collaboratively on beach management issues.

Linked to this, excellent progress is being made with Sussex Bay, the ambitious initiative to
drive integrated “blue habitat” restoration along the coast through kelp forest and river
estuary restoration. The project is working with DEFRA (Department for Environment, Food
and Rural Affairs) and many local partners, including the Worthing small boat fishing
community in developing plans for the future of sustainable fishing locally. During 2024/25 a
capital scheme has commenced to transform the town’s under utilised rotunda into a new
facility where commercial fisherman can prepare, cold store and sell their fish, this project is
being supported by external funding from the Marine Management Organisation, DEFRA and
marine conservation charity Sea-Changers together with funding from the Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Neighbourhood Fund and Sussex Bay.

The Council’s land acquisitions for nature restoration are among the most innovative
interventions made in the UK by any local authority. Partnership and community working
locally is very strong, and restoration plans are progressing well.

Cissbury Fields Site Management Plan was developed by the Council, South Downs
National Park and the community, including Findon Valley Residents Association. The
approach has been very positively received by local residents and by South Downs National
Park Authority and National Trust.
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Sustainable Energy

The Shoreham Centre now uses a large bank of Air Source Heat Pumps to provide heating
and hot water to the building and solar PV arrays are installed at the Shoreham Centre,
Eastbrook Manor Community Centre, Commerce Way, Marsh House and Shadwells Court,
further reducing carbon emissions.

In 2023 the council commissioned an options appraisal to decommission the council fleet,
with a particular focus on the HGV vehicles used to collect refuse and recycling. In 2023 the
council commissioned an options appraisal to decommission the council fleet, with a
particular focus on the HGV vehicles used to collect refuse and recycling. A fleet strateqy
was approved in February 2025 recommending a phased fleet vehicle replacement
approach, to minimise our carbon emissions to transition the remaining diesel vehicles which
are suitable for HVO to this fuel source in 2025/26 at the latest subject to budget availability
and availability of sustainably certified fuel.

The Council has also utilised Low Carbon Skills Funding to develop heat decarbonisation
plans for the majority of its fossil-fuel fired boilers.

Thriving Economy and Place

e Community Engagement:

One of our organisation’s three principles is ‘we are participative.” This means involving
citizens in relevant and meaningful ways; working well with all our partners locally and
regionally to address challenges together.

We've supported community-led investment through the Worthing Neighbourhood Fund,
using funding from local developments to back grassroots projects that improve
neighbourhoods. Local residents and organisations have played a key role in proposing and
shaping funded projects — from improvements to green spaces to community safety and
wellbeing initiatives — ensuring funding meets real local needs.

Our Neighbourhood Team is out on the ground across Adur and Worthing, listening to
residents and helping communities take the lead. The team connects people, supports local
initiatives and works with partners to unlock the strengths of each area. They’re helping to
shape neighbourhood priorities, support local visioning, and respond to what matters most to
each community.

Kitchen Table is a cost-of-living support programme that helps residents turn everyday ideas
— like shared cooking, childcare or bulk buying — into real projects. We've invested over
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4.

£60,000 in grassroots projects, run workshops to help people apply for funding, and shared
learning across communities so people can build confidence and grow what works.

Inside the council, our Participation Lab is helping staff and managers build the skills and
confidence to involve people in shaping local decisions. Sessions have explored inclusion,
participatory commissioning and blended digital and face-to-face methods — embedding
participatory approaches into how we work as a council.

Together, these initiatives are helping us become a more open, responsive and
community-led council — one that builds trust, shares power and supports action from the
ground up.

Core Services

e Our customer service team has continued to deliver excellent levels of service, embracing
the opportunity to proactively support the most vulnerable, making calls out to help
customers facing financial or housing difficulties, and referring them on to further support
from housing, well-being or third party support services. This proactive work, described in
more detail in Thriving People, is data led, person centred, and focuses on improving
household income and/or reducing household debt. Customer service has established and
led a cross service team that can take a more holistic view of residents to support those
already in crisis, and can also take an early intervention approach to minimise the numbers
of residents tipping into crisis.

e Citizen Hub has been designed to enable joint working across teams and track outcomes for
those receiving support, it will be expanded over time to enable tracking of customer
experience end to end, across multiple services.

e Critical relationships - The Councils continue to maintain and develop a diverse and ever
increasing set of partnerships including housing partners, the community and voluntary
sector, the NHS, and Police and Community Safety organisations. Our relationships with
other Districts and Boroughs continue to be positive and we are keen to further cultivate
these, for example through strategic work such as Sussex Bay. Our work with West Sussex
County Council in many areas is also progressing well and this will need to develop further if
we are to successfully implement policy changes such as the Environment Act and the
Health and Social Care reform agenda plus other areas of shared priority. At a regional level
the Local Resilience Forum has continued to be invaluable, bringing together a variety of
local players to deal with the pandemic response at a Sussex wide level. Our work with the
Local Economic Partnership and the Greater Brighton Economic Board continues, supporting
our ambitions around place, prosperity and sustainability.

THE REVENUE BUDGET 2024/25 PROCESS AND THE MEDIUM TERM
FINANCIAL PLAN (MTFP)

Revenue Budget 2024/25

The budget for 2024/25 was compiled within the context of the Government’s Comprehensive
Spending Review, the Chancellor’'s Budget and the local government settlement. The Council has
seen a significant decline in recent years in overall government income with increasing amounts
of income being generated locally through Council Tax, Business Rates, fees and charges, and
income from commercial property. This trend is expected to continue for at least the next 5 years
in line with the Council 5-year forecast.
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Change in income over time
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Financial year

In addition to the national context, the Adur District Council budget strategy has taken account of
pressures and risks such as:

- inflation, the largest source of cost pressure;

- income generated by the Council which may be affected by lack of demand;
- impact of increasing demand for such services as housing needs;

- the impact of the capital programme;

- the impact of interest rates on borrowing and investing activities.

The Council has a working balance and other earmarked reserves to help mitigate these risks.

The Council agreed a budget strategy to meet this challenge in 2024/25 through 4 major work
streams: developing commercial income: investing in property to support service objectives:
reviewing and rationalising our property holdings; and the delivery of a new customer and digital
strategy. In addition the Council continues to pursue savings through organisational redesign,
good procurement and base budget reviews.

These initiatives have resulted in savings of £1.1m as part of the 2024/25 budget round and
ensured that service delivery was protected from any significant cuts. The Council set a balanced
budget in February 2024.

Council Tax

The Council chose to increase Council Tax for 2024/25 by an average of 2.99%.

The comparison of the average Band D Council Tax charged in the area is shown below:

Band D Council Tax 2023/24 2024/25 Change
£ £ %
Adur District Council — Basic Council Tax 305.55 313.74 2.68
West Sussex County Council 1,633.41 1,714.95 4.99
Sussex Police & Crime Commissioner 239.91 252.91 5.42
2,178.87 2,281.60 4.71
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Parish precepts and other adjustments:

Special expenses 26.28 28.80 9.59
Lancing Parish Council 51.84 51.84 0.00
Sompting Parish Council 36.81 35.64 -3.18

Council Tax base

The Council Tax base for 2024/25 was 22,409.9 which was an increase of 472.6 on the previous
year's number of Band D equivalents.

Band D Council Tax 2023/24 2024/25

Number of Band D equivalent dwellings 21,937.30 22,409.9

Budget Strategy for 2025/26 to 2029/30

In preparing the budget strategy for 2024/25 to 2028/29, the aim is to deliver the Council’s In
preparing the budget strategy for 2025/26 to 2029/30, the aim is to deliver the Council’s priorities
outlined in the corporate strategy; ‘Our Plan’. The forecasts are updated throughout the year to
give the Council a clear view of the forthcoming financial challenges. The Financial Strategy for
the development of the 2025/26 budget was approved by Council on 17th July 2024 and it set the
strategic direction to address the significant challenges not only for 2025/26 but onwards.

The fall in government funding combined with the impact of the cost of living crisis and housing
needs and benefits cost pressures on the Council’s budgets included in the forecasts highlighted
that the Council needed :

1.

A new approach to asset management that will deliver a ‘flight to quality’ with tactical
disposals of assets alongside a programme of improvement for the assets which are
retained.

To develop new channels of external funding and resource proposition opportunities.This
work will include the development of proactive skills of developing relationships with
funders, and working with potential local project partners to get Adur and Worthing “on the
map” and “bid ready” rather than passively waiting for funding opportunities to be
announced.

To expand commercial activity, assessing income lines more effectively and move to
assessing product lines less on turnover and more on profit and loss. Looking for
opportunities that are still untapped, whether that is better use of our land, our assets or
our people or indeed the council brand as a long term and reliable public body

A refreshed procurement strategy to help drive better outcomes and reduce spending by
fostering ever closer relationships with local suppliers, reducing transportation costs and
carbon emissions, whilst also ensuring quicker response times.

A new Housing strategy to incorporate measures to address the drivers of the increased
cost pressures;

> Reducing demand through prevention

> Effective service design

> Increasing the supply of appropriate temporary accommodation
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> Robust appraisals of invest to save opportunities and post project monitoring of
savings delivery.

The Council has to identify significant budget reductions of £3.9m over the five years with a
£1.9m challenge at that point expected for 25/26 as follows:

Savings needed per year

2,000

1,500

1,000

£'000

500

2025/26 2026727 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30

Financial Year

In February 2025, the Council set a balanced budget having successfully identified further
savings of £0.86m.

Further details around the most recent forecasts for both Councils are contained in the financial
strategy report which will be considered on 8th July 2025 at the Joint Strategic Committee. The
strategy has been updated to reflect the impact that the current high inflation rates are having on
the Council’s budgets. This can be found on the joint Adur District Council and Worthing Borough
Council website www.adur-worthing.gov.uk

Budget monitoring

Revenue and capital monitoring information is presented to the Executive four times a year. Any
particular areas of concern are subject to detailed scrutiny by the relevant Portfolio holder at
separate ‘budget hotspot’ meetings. In addition, the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee can
add areas of concern to their work programme.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

A comprehensive summary of the financial performance of the partnership authorities (Adur
District Council, Worthing Borough Council and the Joint Strategic Committee) is contained in the
reports on financial performance for 2024/25 considered by the Joint Strategic Committee (JSC).
There are two separate reports titled:

e Financial Performance 2024/25 - Revenue Outturn (JSC July 2025); and
e Financial Performance 2024/25 - Capital and Projects Outturn (JSC July 2025).
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These are available on the joint Adur District Council and Worthing Borough Council website
www.adur-worthing.gov.uk.

The financial activities of the Council can be categorised as either Revenue or Capital:

. Revenue spending represents the net cost of consuming supplies and providing services
delivered by the Council in its day-to-day business during the year.

. Capital spending results in an asset, which will provide benefit to the District over a
number of years.

Revenue Spend in 2024/25

A more detailed summary of the Council's financial results for 2024/25 is given on the following
pages but a brief outline of what we planned to spend and what we actually spent is given below.

The financial outturn for the General Fund shows that the Council has again contained
expenditure within the original budget levels despite facing a range of additional costs that were
not part of the original budget. In 2024/25 Adur District Council reported an underspend of £247k
against a budget of £11.102m.

Further commentary on the 2024/25 outturn position can be found within the ‘Financial
Performance 2024/25 - Revenue Outturn’ report that went to Joint Strategic Committee on 8th
July 2025. Where such items were identified when the 2024/25 budget was being prepared, an
allowance for any impact on the future years was built into the budget for 2025/26.

In comparison, the 2023/24 outturn was an underspend of £353k with performance from the
strategic property portfolio and saving within treasury mitigating cost pressures within services
including Housing Needs. Further details can be found within the ‘Financial Performance 2023/24
- Revenue Outturn’ report that went to Joint Strategic Committee on 17th July 2024.

2024/25 £000's
Adur
Over/(under)spend in operational services (124)
Net Interest (increase)/decrease (279)
Commercial property additional income shortfall / cost
pressure (475)
Net over/(under) spend before Transfer to/(from)
Reserves (878)
Transfers to Reserves 862
Transfers from Earmarked reserves (231)
Net over/(under) spend before funding from reserves (247)
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How the money was spent and how services were funded

CURRENT
BUDGET OUTTURN (UNDER)/
EXECUTIVE MEMBER PORTFOLIOS 2024/25 2024/25 OVERSPEND
£ £
Leader 698,230 568,926 (129,304)
CM for Environment 3,317,160 2,842,464 (474,696)
CM for Community Wellbeing 1,284,760 1,258,235 (26,525)
CM for Citizen Services 2,034,150 2,248,061 213,911
CM for Regeneration 1,923,680 2,116,226 192,546
CM for Resources 1,008,210 787,128 (221,082)
Holding Accounts 224,480 - (224,480)
TOTAL CABINET MEMBER 10,490,670 9,821,040 (669,630)
Credit Back Depreciation (1,617,020) (1,859,410) (242,390)
Minimum Revenue Provision 2,029,730 2,099,511 69,781
Total Budget requirement before funding from
taxation 10,903,380 10,061,141 (842,239)
Funded by:
Net Council Tax income (7,478,630) (7,478,630) -
Net income associated with Business Rates (3,229,260) (3,177,994) 51,266
Local Tax Guarantee Scheme - - -
Services Grant (11,240) (12,338) (1,098)
Revenue Support Grant (79,070) (79,070) -
Funding Guarantee Grant (446,930) (542,858) (95,928)
New homes bonus (2,800) (2,800) -
Other Grants - (10,840) (10,840)
Contribution to/ (from) Collection Fund 146,050 146,050 -
Net budget before transfers to or from reserves (198,500) (1,097,339) (898,839)
Transfer to/from reserves:
Net Transfer to / from (-) reserves to fund specific 198,500 850,000 651,500
expenditure
Net Underspend funded from working balance 247,339 247,339

The Council’s net budget is funded by income from:

1. Funding from Central Government

The Council received £648k in central grant funding which included £79k Revenue Support
Grant, Funding Guarantee grant of £542k and £3k New Homes Bonus.
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4.

Funding from Local Taxpayers

The Council collected £49.1m of Council Tax relating to 2024/25 on behalf of the Council,
West Sussex County Council, Sussex Police and Crime Commissioner and the Parish
Councils. This represented 96.3% of the £50.9m Council Tax due to be collected. In addition,
Council Tax Support payments totalling £5.5m were awarded during the year together with
other discounts such as Single Person Discount of £5.3m.

Council Tax is collected by Adur District Council on behalf of the following preceptors in the
proportions detailed: West Sussex County Council 74.02%, Sussex Police & Crime
Commissioner 10.97% and Adur District Council and Parish Councils 15.01%.

The Council benefitted from £7.5m of Council Tax income in 2024/25. A further £0.457m was
collected on behalf of the Parish Councils.

Funding from Local Businesses

The Council also collects Business Rates from local businesses. Of the £19.6m collected, after
allowing for exemptions, reliefs and provisions, the Council receives 40%, 10% is paid to the
County Council and the remaining 50% is paid over to the government’s national pool.

The Council retained a net £3m of Business Rate and associated grant income in 2024/25
within the statutory accounts.

Total Funding from taxation:

Total Funding from Taxation Buiget Act£ua|

Council Tax * 7,332,580 7,332,580
Net Business Rates after use of smoothing reserve 3,229,260 1,261,363
Zet:t:ggoilegrants - compensation for loss of business 0 1.916.631
Funding Guarantee Grant 446,930 542,858
Services Grant 11,240 12,338
New Homes Bonus 2,800 2,800
Revenue Support Grant 79,070 79,070
Other Grants 0 10,840
Total 11,101,880 11,158,480

* Net of budgeted Collection Fund surplus/deficit.

It must be noted that most of the difference in the Business Rates income budgeted and the
deficit position is due to the introduction by the Government (after the 2024/25 budget had
been set) of additional retail, leisure, hospitality and nursery business rate reliefs awarded to
support businesses. The Council received a compensating Government section 31 Grant from
the Government for any additional reliefs awarded.

In addition capital grants and contributions were received totalling £1.2m.

Commercial Property Investments
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The Council holds a portfolio of 7 commercial properties for investment purposes, with the
initial intention at acquisition being to derive income to support council services. During the
year 2024/25 the council received £4.662m in rental income from the portfolio with direct
running costs of £500k. The net contribution is therefore £4.161m which is 14% of the
Council’s total revenue. The properties in the portfolio are valued annually by the councils
appointed valuer and valuations are prepared in accordance with the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors Valuation - Global Standards and in line with the CIPFA code of practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.

Recent years have presented a challenging environment for the capital valuations of
commercial property due to several factors. The ongoing uncertainty about new office working
patterns following the pandemic has impacted demand for traditional office spaces in recent
years. Additionally, the increased cost of capital, driven by high interest rates, has made
financing more expensive for developers and investors. Furthermore, energy market volatility
has led to higher running costs for tenants, making commercial properties less attractive.
These factors, combined with broader economic uncertainties, have created a tough
landscape for commercial property valuations.

When acquired across the 2018/19 and 2019/20 financial years, the properties held cost
£81.511 million. The current fair market value as presented in these accounts is £76.178
million, representing a 6.5% fall in capital value since acquisition. The Council’s level of debt in
relation to these assets was £74.919m as at 31st March 2025. Though the council does
consider the capital valuation of its properties, the primary intent of the portfolio is to derive
income and support local regeneration rather than speculate on future property valuations.
Therefore, the council's strategy focuses on generating a stable revenue stream from these
properties, despite fluctuations in their market value. Significant to this strategy is the fact that
the Council currently foresees no plan to dispose of these assets in the coming accounting
period.

The Annual Commercial Property Investment Strat for 2024/25 was presented to the Joint
Audit and Governance committee on 21st March 2024 and details many of the considerations
currently taken by the Council in managing the portfolio, it also highlights to elected members
and members of the public the Council's intention to revise and enhance its asset
management model, a key the expectation of this is more comprehensive reporting to
members which will be publicly available information.

CAPITAL INVESTMENT PLANS

Capital spending either maintains or creates new assets or is expenditure that is capital under
statute that will contribute to the Council’s aims and objectives over more than one year. The
Council plans and budgets for capital expenditure by means of a three-year ‘rolling’ Capital
Programme.
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Capital Outturn 2024/25

Environment (£0.54m)
Health and Wellbeing (£0.04m)

Customer Services - General Fund
Schemes (£3.14m)

Regeneration (£0.34m)

Resources (£0.56m)

Customer Services - Adur Homes Capital
Programme (£17.2m)

The capital investment programme for all Adur Portfolios was originally estimated at
£86,190,120. Subsequent approvals and re-profiling of budgets produced a total revised budget
of £39,018,523. Actual expenditure in the year totalled £21,838,067, a decrease of £17m on the
revised estimate, including net budget carry forward to future years of £17m and a net
underspend of £172k and £0.2m utilised for capital flexibility purposes. The major factors
contributing to the re-profiling and slippage were:

1. Schemes where the Council does not have direct control over the scheme progress. For
example where the scheme is managed by another authority, or mandatory grant schemes
where the spend is demand led and the Council has no control over when the grants will be
paid.

2. Works completed in advance of budget profile.

3. Officer capacity has resulted in some schemes being unable to commence or complete
within the financial year.

4. Negotiations required with other interested parties.
5. ldentification of suitable opportunities to develop new commercial property.

6. The impact of supply chain issues following the pandemic and Brexit on the delivery of some
materials.

The re-profiling of schemes was on-going throughout the year and in total 9 schemes completed
in 2024/25.
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Expenditure in 2024/25 was financed as follows:

£000
Gov Grants and Contributions 1,197
Other Grants and Contributions 640
Capital Receipts 1,089
Major Repairs Reserve 9,318
Rev Conts 79
Borrowing 9,515
Total Financing: 21,838
Significant investments in 2024/25 included:
° Continued spend on the development of Al'bion Street to provide 49 affordable homes

Proposed design of the new council homes at Albion Street

Each Council’s capital programme outturn and financing is explained in more detail in the Joint
Strategic Committee report “Financial Performance 2024/25 - Capital and Projects Outturn”
which was considered on the 8th July 2025. This report is available on the joint Adur District
Council and Worthing Borough Council website www.adur-worthing.gov.uk .

Borrowing

A summary of the Council’s borrowings, categories of financial liabilities, debt maturity structure,
interest payable and the different types of risks is contained in Note 17 to these accounts.
Sources and funds used to meet capital expenditure are summarised in the capital spend section
of this Narrative Report and more detail is contained in the 8th July 2025 Joint Strategic
Committee report “Financial Performance 2024/25 - Capital and Projects Outturn”. This report is
available on the joint Adur District Council

www.adur-worthing.gov.uk.

Improvements to Council homes including fire protection works.
Replacement vehicles for waste & cleansing and bereavement services
Improvements to the Council’s digital infrastructure
Solar panel installation to leisure facilities

and Worthing Borough Council
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Housing Revenue Account
The Council operates a ring-fenced landlord’s account.
e The Council owns approximately 2,576 homes which are worth £211m.
e In 2024/25 the Council collected £14.3m in dwelling rents (£12.3m in 2023/24).

e The Council is planning to spend £24m over the next 3 years to increase the supply of
affordable homes and improve the condition of existing housing stock.

Capital Investment Plans 2025/26 — 2027/28

The Council plans to invest £35.8m in its capital assets over the next 3 years (including £24m
on Council Homes).

The ambitious programme is designed to deliver a range of benefits including:

e The acquisition and development of temporary and emergency accommodation;

e Support for the delivery of affordable homes by Housing Associations;

e Delivery of new rental units within the Housing Revenue Account;

e Expenditure on improvements to Council homes

e Improvements to leisure and play facilities throughout the District;

e Coast Protection works along the river Adur;

e [nvestment in assets to support the local economy, improve the supply of housing or
reduce the Council's carbon footprint and produce a sustainable income stream for the
future.

3-year plan

2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 Total
Expenditure by Portfolio

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Citizen Services 10,950 10,906 5,446 27,302
Environment and Leisure 3,184 1,237 1,194 5,615
Communities and Wellbeing 318 0 0 318
Regeneration and Strategic Planning 1,905 94 0 1,999
Finance and Resources 460 100 0 560
Total Expenditure 16,816 12,337 6,640 35,793
Funded by:
Capital grants and contributions 1,878 785 0 2,664
Revenue contributions and reserves 3,512 3,500 0 7,012
Borrowing 11,426 8,052 6,640 26,118
Capital receipts 0 0 0 0
Total Funding 16,816 12,337 6,640 35,793
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6. TOP STRATEGIC RISKS

Detailed below are the most significant risks that the Council is currently managing.

Risk that Adur Council will fail to comply with statutory health and safety
obligations as a social landlord (Adur Homes).

Additional financial losses arising from Adur Homes disrepair claims not
being adequately dealt with, lack of service history or data on inspection
and repairs means advice is to settle the claim. Claims are settled on
agreement to make payment of damage or carry out work which is often
Risk Overview |then not followed through.

Commentary / The Improvement Plan is well underway and monthly meetings are progressing
Mitigation well with the Regulator for Social Housing. Reporting has continued to JAGC
measures and the Joint Strategic Committee. The primary focus has continued to be
compliance and H&S and the data is now showing good progress in all areas.
The fire door programme has been recommissioned and is working well. Stock
condition surveys have now been concluded with the data being digested and
fed into a longer term business plan for Adur Homes. The service has been
redesigned as part of the wider whole housing service redesign with a number
of new posts successfully recruited to. The AHs Business Plan will be going
before the AH Advisory Board in due course. Tenant engagement was
considered for external commissioning but consideration is now for an internal
service which will be recruited to in Q4. Work is being scoped for the audit
required by the Regulator to be undertaken in Q4.

Data and action around disrepair claims and service history are expected to
improve as we move onto review process, policies and procedures post
redesign, until then mitigating steps have been agreed between Adur Homes
and Legal services to settle claims at best available option.
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Risk Overview

Cost of Living (Coastal Inequalities) Crisis

Commentary /
Mitigation
measures

Work continues regarding some of our key services that support people who
are struggling including homelessness prevention, Proactive and Social
Prescribing. Work is being carried out to review the Heath and Wellbeing
Strategy (HealthyAW) and the role of these services to strategically support the
most vulnerable.

A snapshot summary of households (on HB or CTS) from the LIFT database
shows in total 9,485 low-income households, with 3,027 children; 2,602
households below the poverty line, with 1,156 children; 382 households with a
cash shortfall, with 48 children across Adur and Worthing.

In Adur, there are 3,478 low-income households, with 1240 children; 1056
households below the poverty line, with 499 children; 125 households with a
cash shortfall, with 21 children.

In addition, Citizens Advice data shows (July to December 2024):

- In Adur there has been a 44% increase in Benefits & Tax Credit issues whilst
Universal Credit issues have more than doubled.

85% increase in debt issues.

Consumer goods and Services Issues have increased more than three fold.

Risk Rating

Risk Overview

Economic uncertainty - in relation to inflation, interest rates and workforce
shortages which are impacting on local businesses, including energy costs,
upward pressure on wages, inability to fill vacancies, skills shortages

Commentary /
Mitigation
measures

The Councils have agreed to utilise a proportion of the UKSPF funds to a
Business Support Programme (BSP). The BSP will be delivered in 2024 by a
series of business experts that will support organisations to help navigate the
current challenges whilst also exploring new opportunities around innovation,
leadership and management and sustainability. Pressures on the local
economy are significant and diverse, with the need to also address major local
term transitional challenges associated with climate change and the rapid
development of artificial intelligence. The Worthing Heat Network is a key
strategic initiative which will provide long term price certainty to the Councils in
terms of building heating whilst providing the opportunity for other businesses
and residential customers to achieve the same, whilst also decarbonising their
heat.

The Councils continue to liaise with strategic partners, including health and
education partners, to determine how the wider system is supporting the
economic challenges currently being experienced locally.

Risk Rating
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Risk Overview [Council Finances - Risk that Council's finances will continue to be under

pressure
Commentary / |Council finances continue to be under severe pressure, an issue widely
Mitigation experienced across local government. The budget position for 2025/26 is a
measures balanced Adur budget. The 2024/25 forecast position at January 2025 was that

Adur will be within budget , however there are key areas of financial
challenge/risk identified:

- Housing Needs (Homelessness) - Increased cost pressures due to increased
demand and a shortfall in central funding through the HPG grant allocation. In
discussion with MHCLG regarding this issue and the need to increase this
funding.

- Housing Benefit Subsidy - increase in overall demand (TA) and an Increase in
the supply of exempt housing (supported accommodation) where subsidy is
limited and the differential cost met by the councils. Officers are in discussion
with MHCLG and DWP central departments and in communication with other
local authorities to establish actions that can be taken to mitigate and control
this risk.

- Planning income - reduction in large applications means income is falling short
of the budget. The government has announced an increase in the small
application fee levels but the actual income level will depend on demand.

- Building Control Income - shortfall in resources within the team have reduced
the income within the service. Active recruitment with a part time manager
resource now in place.

The 2025/26 budget includes both growth against the Housing Needs and
Housing Benefit budgets and a reset of the Planning and Building Control
income targets. To mitigate financial pressures in year the Councils have
implemented a suite of budget management initiatives to control spend, this has
supported both the mitigation of overspends where possible and the delivery of
in-year savings. These controls include tighter controls on external spend,
vacancy management and agency and consultant spend and triaging purchase
requests to bring the forecast overspend, particularly in Worthing, down to within
reserve levels. Organisational redesign work is expected to achieve the
predicted savings. A Budget Management Group meets weekly to review spend
requests above £25k, and sub £25k requests are being considered daily by a
triage group. Staffing budgets are very carefully controlled. Controls will remain
in place for 2025/26.

A range of initiatives were identified in the process of forming the budget for
2024/25, with significant organisational design work being included to set a
balanced budget and these arrangements will be ongoing. Worthing Councils
reserves position remains in a critical state as a result of pressures in previous
years but the current budget is designed to gradually replenish reserves over
the next 5 to 10 years.

Risk Overview |Devolution - Risk that the nature of the process means that District and
Borough partners do not get a seat at the table with respect to the design of the
new Mayoral Authority and as a result Adur and Worthing do not see the
potential benefits in the same way.
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Commentary /
Mitigation
measures

Risk Rating

This risk will be closely monitored by CLT in order to ensure that it is managed
as well as possible.

Risk Overview

Local Government reorganisation - Risk that this creates considerable
uncertainty for staff as well as needing leadership focus in order to ensure that
it is delivered effectively. There are risks to the ongoing delivery of services as
well as risks to staff morale and wellbeing leading to potential recruitment and
retention issues. There is a further risk of a huge amount of energy being spent
by councils without real change being effected which is a question for the wider
sector, not just adur and worthing.

Commentary /
Mitigation
measures

This risk will be closely monitored by CLT in order to ensure that it is managed

as well as possible.

Risk Rating

Risk Overview

Housing supply - Limited housing supply in all areas and all tenures is a key
risk for the Councils in terms of both discharging its statutory duty to prevent
homelessness and support those at risk, as well as placing critical budgetary
pressures on the Councils. Managing this demand is challenging and places
additional capacity pressures on the operational teams.

Commentary /
Mitigation
measures

Work is underway in respect of the development of the new Housing Strategy to
take effect April 2025 for the period 2025 - 2030. This will look at the priorities
for the local authorities around homelessness, housing allocations, housing
delivery and keeping people safe and secure in their homes.

Given the overspend in temporary accommodation (TA) work has been done to
clarify and bring to Members attention the risks and opportunities of the work
underway to alleviate these pressures and ensure that our governance for the
pipeline of affordable and in-area TA is able to continue. A significant amount of
work is being undertaken to secure leased accommodation to reduce the
reliance on nightly paid temporary accommodation provision.

Strategic work continues, the Mental Health Housing Strategy resulting in
Mental Health Housing Advisors funded by Sussex Partnership Trust
co-locating with the Housing Needs Team, the workers are now embedded, with
outcomes currently reported for West Sussex with local District and Borough
sets being planned. The work is not only preventing homelessness via case
work, but by improving relationships and pathways between services,
increasing knowledge of housing and homelessness triggers enabling mental
health workers to manage low level issues and refer cases appropriately to the
Housing Needs Team.

As previously reported, demand for homeless services continues to increase as
a result of 'no fault' section 21 notices and family evictions as lack of alternative
affordable options leaves households unable to secure their own housing in the
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private sector.

As part of the organisational design work throughout the Council, the housing
service has been redesigned to ensure resources are in the right places and
have been enhanced where possible. Key changes in respect of housing needs
specifically include an increased number of Homeless Intervention & Prevention
Officers that will enable us to have the skilled and experienced officers available
at the earliest opportunity to prevent homelessness and implement prevention
options. An additional benefit of this approach is that citizens needing our
advice and support aren’t having to transfer case officers as they move through
the prevention, relief and main duty stages of homelessness. Further increased
capacity in Temporary Accommodation Officer role and Income Recovery
Officer supporting citizens placed in temporary accommodation through both
income and debt management support but also wider wrap around support
including health, addiction, healthy relationships and access to employment
opportunities and housing options where needed.

Affordable Housing Delivery Group and subgroup continue to meet to identify
opportunities to develop our owned and contracted temporary accommodation
portfolios to meet current and predicted future demand. As well as building our
strategic relationship with Homes England, we are also working closely with the
Department for Levelling Up and Communities and Homes England to secure
revenue and capital for housing programmes for single homelessness.
Increasing our portfolio of owned temporary accommodation is a priority as the
most cost effective way to deliver good standard local accommodation.

Risk Rating

Risk Overview

Building Control - Implementation of new Building Safety Act. Risk of not
being able to fulfil statutory BC duties. Reputational damage and impact to
major development schemes requiring sign off.

Commentary /
Mitigation
measures

The Building Safety Act provides a requirement for Building Control Officers to
be assessed, certified and registered with the Building Safety Regulator (BSR)
to become registered building control approvers (RBCAs). This requirement
changes the nature of Building control fundamentally as only sufficiently
qualified staff can carry out BC duties. This has put pressure on an already
stretched team with some opting to leave rather than go through
exams/certification. Nationally this has created a market with a leaner pool of
staff available to undertake inspections resulting in qualified candidates being
able to command increased salary uplift elsewhere, and has impacted income
for the Councils due to higher workload than current staff hours/qualification can
address.

To mitigate this, we are working with regional partners to try and develop a
solution to the shared issues. We continue to advertise BC vacancies but
attracting qualified candidates remains a challenge. In the longer term we are
looking at career/talent pathways but that won't address the current issues. We
have readvertised (January 2025) with increased market supplement to match
the regional level (AWCs were previously at the lower end) and have secured
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exemption to advertise as permanent posts.

The Building Safety Act also has specific controls in place for high-risk
residential buildings (HRRB). HRRB’s are buildings over 18m in height or have
seven or more storeys and two or more residential units (typically high-rise
apartment blocks, student accommodation, hospitals and care homes).
Relevant hospitals and care homes are only controlled through their design and
construction phases. Hotels are not currently included in scope of the new
controls. Major issues are upcoming with retirements and loss of qualified staff
leaving service with just 1+1/5 FTE from November 2024.

Risk Rating

Risk Overview

Strategic Property Investment Fund (SPIF) - Risk that the Councils fail to
meet SPIF income targets which affects overall Council funds.

Commentary /
Mitigation
measures

This overall Risk also contains:-

- risks of non-compliance which might create voids in the estate,

- risks of tenant failure which create debt and or risk of voids,

- risks of tenant failure to comply with lease terms which create difficulties in
managing the estate and consequent potential loss of capital value and or
income.

There is also a potential reputational risk to the Councils created by tenant
behaviours and or engagement in unacceptable business sectors and criminal
behaviours by tenants resulting in loss of insurance cover.

There is also a Risk of fall in capital value creating negative equity when
unhypothecated debt is measured against asset value:

Market, legislation or economic factors and changes beyond Council control that
affect capital value.

Property specific lack of compliance with MEES or market conditions.

What are we doing to mitigate the risks?

Site visits

Regular contact with Savills as property managers

Regular contact with tenants

Use of Lease Event Diary and regular updates from the Estates App to alert
forthcoming lease events

Market intelligence from agents, social media, business networks

Annual revaluations

Rent collection data quarterly

Risk reserve is held to help manage the volatility in the performance and
manage void periods.

The Councils Property Investment Manager and team will purchase additional
land/buildings as opportunities to increase revenue income/meet objectives
Adoption of a joint investment strategy to govern purchase of properties for
income generation.

Specific risks:

Eskan Court Milton Keynes: High Risk : Vacant space already to part and lease
expiry, remaining tenant likely to leave Jan 2027 leaving the whole building
vacant

Risk Rating
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Risk Overview

Climate emergency risk - Councils need to mitigate climate change, adapt to
climate change and prepare for more frequent extreme climate events and
impacts.

Commentary /
Mitigation
measures

The corporate fleet strategy and options were presented to committee in April
2025.

The Trees for Streets programme was launched in June 2023 and work is
progressing on an Adur & Worthing Nature Plan to help drive the delivery of
nature based solutions in development, public realm and open spaces
presented to committee in November 2024. The Sussex Bay marine project has
recently secured external grant funding from Rewilding Britain and a Research
Lead has been appointed to undertake development of a Seascape recovery
Framework in the next 12 months.

Risk Rating

Risk Overview

Risks to service delivery due to pace of change.

Commentary /
Mitigation
measures

As part of the Organisational Design programme, the organisation is redesigning
the way it prioritises and manages its programmes and tracks its performance.
Through the development of a single organisational work programme based on
joint priorities across both Adur & Worthing administrations, the organisation has
improved how it prioritises programmes to provide it with a sustainable and
manageable programme of work and help prioritise what projects are delivered
to support the Councils’ joint priorities and manage resources. The
Organisational Design programme has made good progress in redesigning
services to help the organisation become more resilient. While making good
progress, the programme has a very demanding timetable and some delays
have been experienced in the early stages the teams are mobilised. As a result
the organisation is bringing forward the savings for 2025/26 into 2024/25 —
delivering all savings by April 2025 and accelerating the delivery of redesigns.
This accelerated timetable is increasing the pace of change and mitigations put
in place are stronger review and support by Core Services to support the
delivery of the redesigns.

March 2025: Improved programme oversight

The Major Programmes Board (MPB) provides strategic direction, ensuring
projects align with organisational priorities and financial constraints. It approves
significant projects, resolves issues, and monitors performance.

Mission boards and delivery structure: Mission boards manage workstreams,
ensuring realistic and capacity-neutral prioritisation of projects. They oversee
savings delivery, coordinate service risks, and provide regular reporting to MPB.
Multi-disciplinary teams (MDTs) bring together service managers, project
managers, and business partners to share learning and improve delivery. Risk
management and governance: A two-stage project approval process ensures
feasibility before committing resources. Project Packs, including risk registers
and savings trackers, are mandatory for all live projects. Corporate risks are
monitored at mission boards and reported to MPB. Workforce capacity and
process efficiency: A digital project management system is being introduced to
handle workload more effectively. A core services group supports mission
boards, providing expertise in finance, procurement, legal, and digital services.
Continuous improvement and engagement: Regular highlight reports, structured
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decision-making, and clear governance reduce risks linked to the pace of
change, ensuring adaptability and resilience in service delivery.

Risk Rating

Risk Overview

Adoption of the Environment Act - Significant implications for how the
Councils collect waste and recycling from households and businesses. Not
being in a position to roll out food waste collections due to insufficient resources
and not achieving Environment Act targets for 65% recycling by 2035. Potential
reputational damage. Legal sanctions. Broader environmental impacts
associated with the aim of reducing waste.

Commentary /
Mitigation
measures

In October 2023 the government announced its plans for Simpler Recycling as
part of the Environment Act. It requires, amongst other things, local authorities
to collect food waste from households by 1 April 2026.

There remains uncertainty regarding funding for the new service, the costs of
which cannot be met from existing council budgets.

Capital funding has been announced and allocated (for vehicles and containers)
but the previous government did not make announcements regarding
implementation or revenue costs before the election.

In July 2024, JSC approved the decision to continue with the planning for the
roll out of the service, with a cap on revenue spend (75% of the total cost of the
service) to minimise the risk of a shortfall in funding. The service will be rolled
out to higher density housing in the first instance, with funding options being
explored to encourage community and home composting for those areas which
may not be included in the first phase.

The Environment Act also requires businesses to recycle the same materials as
domestic properties. We offer recycling and food waste collections to our
commercial customers, but many have not taken these services up yet. We
need to be able to offer these services to all commercial customers by March
2025 to enable them to be compliant and to avoid customers moving to other
providers, which would have an adverse impact on our income generation. The
commercial service is actively engaging with businesses to advise them of the
changing requirements and offering the additional services.

Risk Rating

The most recent details about the Council’s risks can be found in the report to the Audit and
Governance Committee “Risk and Opportunity Management updates” which was considered on
the 11th March 2025. This report is available on the joint Adur District Council and Worthing
Borough Council website www.adur-worthing.gov.uk.
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SUMMARY

This is an extremely difficult time for the whole of Local Government. The current economic
climate and international events have impacted on the council significantly with rapidly increasing
costs due to inflation, rising interest rates and difficult energy markets. These pressures not only
impacted the council directly but affected residents' lives resulting in the need to support the
community in a range of different ways: from supporting those who become homeless to
administering financial support.

The overall underspend for 2024/25 needs to be viewed in the context of a difficult year which
included increased cost pressures driven by high inflation, increased interest rates and increasing
demand on council services.

The Council continues to balance the need to invest in future service developments with new
emerging financial challenges from inflation and the continued changes to government funding.

Looking ahead, 2025/26 will be another difficult year with continued pressure from inflation,
together with new emerging cost pressures. The outturn position will inform the development of
the 2026/27 budget. Any cost issues have been taken into account where possible as part of the
development of the 2025/26 budget.

FURTHER INFORMATION

Further information on Adur District Council’s accounts is available from the Section 151 Chief
Financial Officer based at the Town Hall, Chapel Road, Worthing, or by accessing the joint Adur
and Worthing Councils website, www.adur-worthing.gov.uk.
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EXPLANATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Statement of Accounts sets out the Council’s income and expenditure for the year and its
overall financial position as at 31st March 2025. It comprises core and supplementary statements
together with disclosure notes.

The accounts shown on the following pages have been prepared in accordance with the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25 (the Code), supported by the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

In accordance with Regulation 6 (4) of the 2015 Accounts and Audit Regulations, the Annual
Governance Statement must be approved in advance of the approval of the Statement of Accounts.
Once the Statement of Accounts has been approved, the already approved Governance Statement
will be published at the end of this document.

The Statements are listed and explained in the next section.

The Statement of Accounts consists of: Page no:
Statement of Responsibilities 34

This statement sets out the respective responsibilities of the Council and the Chief
Financial Officer in respect of the Council’s accounts. This statement confirms that the
accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of the authority at the
accounting date and its income and expenditure for the given financial year.

Movement in Reserves Statement 35

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the
Council, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ and ‘unusable reserves’.

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 36

This statement provides a summary of the resources generated and consumed by the
Council in the year that have contributed to the changes in resources shown in the
Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS).

The Balance Sheet 37

This statement summarises the Council’s assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2024 in
its top half. The bottom half of the statement sets out the reserves split into the 2
categories of ‘usable’ and ‘unusable’ reserves.

The Cash Flow Statement 38

This statement summarises the flows of cash and cash equivalents of the Council that
have taken place over the financial year.

Notes to the Accounts 39-105
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 106-111

The HRA accounting statements comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and the Statement of Movement on the HRA balance. The former reports the
economic cost in the year of providing housing services in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practices. The latter reconciles the reported surplus or deficit in the
year with the HRA balance at the end of the year. The HRA is a ring-fenced account
subject to statutory regulation under Schedule 4 of The Local Government and Housing
Act 1989. The HRA is accounted for separately from other funds of the Council so that
rents cannot be subsidised from Council Tax (or vice versa).
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Collection Fund 112-114

The Council is required to maintain a separate Collection Fund to detail monies received
as a billing authority in relation to the Council Tax and Business Rates and accounts for
the distribution of Council Tax to preceptors (West Sussex County Council and The Police
and Crime Commissioner) and the Council’'s own General Fund.

The Business Rate Retention Scheme allows the Council to retain a proportion of the total
NDR received. The Adur share is 40% with the remainder paid to other bodies - West
Sussex County Council (10%) and Department of Communities and Local Government
(50%).

MAIN CHANGES TO THE ACCOUNTS AND SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS IN
2024/25:

Post-employment benefits

All employees of the Council have the option to become members of the Local Government
Pensions Scheme, administered by West Sussex County Council. This scheme is funded and
provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned by
employees as they worked for the Council. The pension costs in the Council’s accounts show the
attributable share of the assets and the liabilities of West Sussex Local Government Pension
Fund and comply fully with the requirements of IAS19.

To comply with these relevant accounting standards, the Council recognises the cost of
retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned by employees, rather
than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge the Council is
required to make against Council Tax is based on the cash payable in the year. Therefore the
cost of post-employment (retirement) benefits shown in Note 38 are notional and are reversed out
of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The actuarial valuation of the Council’s pension scheme liabilities and pension reserve shown on
the balance sheet have increased by £6.9m during the year, mainly as a result of the changes to
the financial assumptions by the pension fund actuary (Hymans-Robertson). These assumptions
are determined by the actuary and are the assessment of the impact of market conditions at the
reporting date. The Council relies and places assurance on the professional judgement of the
actuary and the assumptions used to calculate the actuarial valuation. Further details can be
found in Note 38.

Provisions, contingencies and material events
The Council has no contingencies.

There are no material income or expenditure items to disclose in 2024/25 that are not disclosed
on the face of the accounts. The provisions made in 2024/25 are laid out in Note 21.

CHANGES TO ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies are laid out within Note 1 of the Accounts. These policies reflect the
2024/25 Code of Practice Guidance Notes.
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

The Council’s Responsibilities:

(@) To make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure
that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this
Council in the financial year 2024/25 that officer was the Chief Financial Officer

(b) To manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of its resources and
safeguard its assets.

(c) To approve the Statement of Accounts.
The Chief Financial Officer and Section 151 Officer’s Responsibilities:

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council’'s Statement of
Accounts which is required to give a “true and fair” view of the financial position of the Council.

In preparing the statement of accounts the Chief Financial Officer has to select accounting
policies and apply them consistently, make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, and
ensure that the Statement of Accounts complies with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting.

The Chief Financial Officer also has to keep proper accounting records which are up to date
and to take reasonable steps to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

This Statement of Accounts is prepared and published in accordance with the Accounts and
Audit Regulations 2015 and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting issued by the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy.

This Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council
at 31t March, 2024 and its income and expenditure for the year ended on that date.

EMMA THOMAS

Assistant Director, Finance
(Section 151 Officer) Dated: 28/06/2025

Certificate of Approval by Joint Governance Committee

| confirm that these Accounts were approved by the Joint Governance and Audit Committee of
Adur District Council and Worthing Borough Council on 24th February 2025.

Deborah Stainforth
Chairman, Joint Governance Committee Dated: xx/xx/2025
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

This Statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into
‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and ‘unusable
reserves’, such as the revaluation of non-current assets. The 'Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services'
line shows the true economic cost of providing the Council's services, more details of which are shown in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required
to be charged to the General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account for Council Tax setting and

dwellings rent setting purposes.

The 'Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves' line

shows the statutory General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account Balance before any discretionary
transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Council.

. Total
General Earmark Housing Earmark Cap|_tal Major Capital Total Unusabl Authorit
ed GF ed HRA | Receipts ., Usable e
Fund Revenue Repairs | Grants y
Reserve Reserve | Reserve Reserve | Reserve
Balance Account Reserve | Reserve Reserve
s s s s s s
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
(1,051)| (3,633)| (1,079) (117)| (4,027)| (8,695) (2,993)| (21,595)| (213,569) | (235,164)
Balance at 31st March 2023 c/fwd
Surplus or (deficit) on provision of services
3,449 - 6,681 - - - - 10,130 - 10,130
Other Comprehensive Expenditure & - - - - - - - - 27,578 27,578
Income
Total Comprehensive Expenditure
Income 3,449 - 6,681 - - - - 10,130 27,578 37,708
Adjustments between accounting and
funding basis under Regs. (Note 7) (2,657) - (6,813) - 567 2,747 232 (5,924) 5,924 -
Net (I /D befi
et (Increase)/Decrease before 792 N Y ; 567 2,747 232  4206| 33502| 37,708
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves
Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves
792 792 514 514 - - - - - -
(Note 8) (792) (514)
1 /D in Y
(Increase)/Decrease in Year ; 792 382| (514 567 2,747 232  4206| 33,502| 37,708
Balance at 31st March 2024 c/fwd (1,051) | (2,841) (697) (631)] (3,460)| (5,948) (2,761)| (17,389)| (180,067) | (197,456)
Movement in Reserves during 2024/25 )
Surplus or (deficit) on provision of services (2,107) - 8,972 - - - - 6,865 - 6,865
Other Comprehensive Expenditure & } ) ) ) ) 1,621 1,621
Income
Total C hensive E: diti d
Io al Comprehensive Expenditure an 2,107) j 8,972 j j j ] 6,865 1621 8,486
ncome
Adjustments between accounting basis
and funding basis under regulations (Note 1,229 - (9,962) - (860) 5,948 (574) (4,219) 4,219 -
7)
Net (Increase)/Decrease before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves (878) - (990) - (860) 5,948 (574) 2,646 5,840 8,486
Contribution to Major Repairs Reserve - - - - - - - - - -
Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves
829 829 467 467 - - - - - -
(Note 8) (829) (467)
(Increase)/Decrease in Year (49) (829) (523) (467) (860) 5,948 (574) 2,646 5,840 8,486
Balance at 31st March 2025 (1,100)| (3,670)| (1,220)| (1,098)| (4,320) -l (3,335)| (14,743)| (174,227)|(188,970)
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices.

2024/25 2024/25 2024/25 2023/24 2023/24 2023/24
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Note Income/
Expenditure | Income Expenditur| Expenditure | Income | Expenditur
e e
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

The Leader 948 (385) 563 609 (49) 560
Environment and Leisure 5,737 (3,765) 1,972 6,675 (3,171) 3,504
Communities and Wellbeing 1,786 (253) 1,533 2,083 (624) 1,459
Adur Homes and Customer 17,644 (15,044) 2,600 18,947 (15,230) 3,717
Services
Regeneration and Strategic 3,523 (1,365) 2,158 3,321 (927) 2,394
Planning
Finance and Resources 5,594 (2,399) 3,195 4,502 (2,230) 2,272
N f IF

et Cost of General Fund 35232 (23,211) 12,021 36,137| (22,231) 13,906
Services
Housing Revenue Account 14,839 (18,189) (3,350) 16,212 (15,899) 313
Net Cost of Services 50,071 (41,400) 8,671 52,349| (38,130) 14,219
Other Operating Expenditure 9 11,655 6.417
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 10 (1,011) 2,608
Taxation and non-specific grant income 1 (12,450) (13,114)
(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 6,865 10,130
(Surplus)/Deficit arising on revaluation of Property, Plant and
Equipment Assets 23 (6,121) 309
Remeasurements of the net defined pension benefit liability 23 7,742 27,269
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 1,621 27,578
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 8,486 37,708
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BALANCE SHEET

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities
recognised by Adur District Council. The net assets of Adur District Council (assets less liabilities)
are matched by the reserves held by the Committee.

Long Term Assets:
Property, Plant & Equipment
Heritage Assets

Investment Property
Intangible Assets

Long Term Investments
Long Term Debtors

Net Pension Asset

Total Long Term Assets

Current Assets:

Short Term Investments
Assets Held For Sale
Inventories

Short Term Debtors

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Total Current Assets

Current Liabilities:

Short Term Borrowing

Short Term Creditors

Provisions

Grants Received in Advance Revenue

Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities:
Long Term Borrowing
Other Long Term Liabilities

Total Long Term Liabilities

Net Assets

Financed By Reserves:
Usable Reserves
Unusable Reserve

Total Reserves

See Note No:

12
13
14
15
17
18

38

17
16

18
19

17
20
21
33

17
37/38

22
23

As at 31st | As at 31st
March 2025 | March 2024
£'000 £'000
294,408 285,403
372 370
76,698 74,959
728 880
2,629 2,580
17 18
374,852 364,210
31 1,054
666 -
47 54
13,858 16,041
6,220 915
20,822 18,064
(32,495) (19,434)
(10,149) (10,430)
(334) (142)
(219) (130)
(43,197) (30,136)
(153,076) (151,217)
(10,431) (3,465)
(163,507) (154,682)
188,970 197,456
(14,743) (17,389)
(174,227) (180,067)
(188,970) (197,456)

Emma Thomas FCCA
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during
the reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of
net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the
operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of
services provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows
have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council’s future service
delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash
flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council.

See Note No:
2024/25 2023/24
£'000 £'000
Net surplus or (deficit) on provision of services 24 (6,865) (10,130)
Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services 24 14,512 21,233
for non cash movements
Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the 24 (1,951) (9,274)
provision of services that are investing and financing activities
Net cash flows from Operating Activities 24 5,696 1,829
Investing Activities 25 (15,353) (8,162)
Financing Activities 26 14,961 2,645
Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents 5,304 (3,688)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting 916 4,604
period
gea::dand cash equivalents at the end of the reporting 19 6,220 916
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

NOTE 1: @ ACCOUNTING POLICIES
GENERAL PRINCIPLES

The accounts comply with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (the Code), issued by
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). Accounting policies and
estimation techniques have been selected and used having regard to the accounting principles and
concepts set out in International Financial Reporting Standards Framework for the Preparation of
Financial Statements, specifically:

The qualitative characteristics of financial information
Relevance

Reliability

Comparability

Understand ability

Materiality

Accruals

Going concern

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost,
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.

ACCRUALS

The revenue and capital accounts of the Council are maintained on an accruals basis in accordance
with the Code. Sums due to or payable by the Council at the end of each financial year are brought
into account (irrespective of whether cash has been received or payment has been made). Where
actual costs are not available, accruals for debtors and creditors are made on a best-estimate basis.

At the end of each financial year an estimate is made of doubtful debts — amounts due to the
Council, but unlikely to be received. The total value of these amounts is provided as a provision for
bad debt and deducted from the debtors balance in the Balance Sheet. The current de minimis is
£1,000.

COUNCIL TAX AND BUSINESS RATES (ENGLAND)

Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf of
the major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting council tax and
NDR for themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund (the
Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and
NDR. Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors
and central government share proportionately the risks and rewards, that the amount of council tax,
and NDR collection could be less or more than predicted.

Accounting for Council Tax and NDR

The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is the Council’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine the
amount of council tax and NDR that must be included in the Council’s General Fund.
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Therefore, the difference between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund is
taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Accounting for Council Tax and NDR

The Balance Sheet includes the Council’s share of the end of year balances in respect of council tax
and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowance for doubtful debts, overpayments and
repayments and provision for appeals.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue recognition has been accounted for in accordance with IFRS 15. Revenue is measured at
fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Fair value is generally regarded as the amount
for which an asset could be acquired, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction. The majority of the Council's transactions are ‘non exchange’ and the
impact of IFRS 15 is not material to the accounts.

SUPPORT SERVICES

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance with
the Council’'s arrangements for accountability and financial performance.

JOINT OPERATIONS

Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the Council in conjunction with other
ventures that involve the use of the assets and resources of the joint ventures rather than the
establishment of a separate entity. The Council recognises on its Balance Sheet only its share of the
jointly controlled assets and related liabilities; whilst on its Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement it recognises those expenses that it incurs on its own behalf or jointly with others in
respect of its interest in the joint arrangement and income that it earns from the activity of the
operation.

VALUE ADDED TAX

VAT is included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account only to the extent that it is
irrecoverable.

GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable
assurance that:

° the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and

° the grants or contributions will be received.

Grants and contributions for capital purposes are recognised as income on receipt as long as there
is no condition for their use that has not been satisfied. Where there is a condition the amount will be
held as a receipt in advance until the condition is satisfied at which point the amount is recognised
as income.

Where capital grants are recognised as income they are reversed out of the General Fund in the
Movement in Reserves Statement and held as unapplied reserves until used to finance capital
expenditure.

LEASES
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Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered
separately for classification. Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a
right to use an asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.

A de minimis value of £10,000 per leased asset within a lease contract has been applied to all items
obtained by lease. Leased assets valued below these limits are treated as revenue expenditure.
Software rentals are not treated as leases.

The Council as Lessee - Finance Leases:

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value
of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the
obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the authority are added to the carrying amount of
the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability.
Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

- acharge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment, which is applied to
write down the lease liability, and

- afinance charge, which is debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies
applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is
shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the
Council at the end of the lease period).

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment
losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds
towards the repayment of borrowing undertaken to finance the capital investment in accordance with
statutory requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore
substituted by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the
difference between the two.

The Council as Lessee - Operating Leases:

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or
equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease; even if this does not
match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).

The Council as Lessor - Finance Leases:

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the
relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease,
the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or
assets held for sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

The Council as Lessor - Finance Leases:
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A gain, representing the Council’s net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e.
netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease
(long-term debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

° a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, which is applied to write down the
lease debtor (together with any premiums received), and
° finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not
permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a capital
receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the
Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in
future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital
Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are received,
the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write down the lease
debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement.

The Council as a Lessor - Operating Leases:

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the
asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a
straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g.
there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and
charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Expenditure and Valuation principles

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of non-current assets is required to be
capitalised on an accruals basis in the Balance Sheet, provided that the non-current asset

yields benefits to the Council and the services it provides, for a period of more than one year. This
excludes expenditure on routine repairs and maintenance of non-current assets and operating
leases which are charged directly to service revenue accounts.

Non-current assets are valued on the basis recommended by CIPFA and in accordance with the
Statements of Asset Valuation Principles and Guidance Notes issued by The Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors (RICS). Non-current assets are classified into the groupings required by the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) code.

The surpluses arising on the revaluation of property, plant and equipment are credited to the
Revaluation Reserve. The exception to this is where previous revaluation losses have been debited
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account. Where this has occurred the surplus on
revaluation is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account up to the value of the
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previous revaluation loss, less the value of depreciation, that would have been charged had there
been no revaluation loss.

Surpluses arising on the revaluation of investment properties are credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Account. The Revaluation Reserve only includes gains since its inception
from 1%t April, 2007; prior gains were incorporated into the Capital Adjustment Account. The Council
applies a five-year rolling programme of revaluations and at the end of each financial year the
market value of each category of assets is reviewed. If there has been an increase or decrease of
5% or more during the year, the relevant asset category is revalued in line with the valuation
change. The principal valuation bases used are:

e Property, Plant and Equipment assets are initially valued at cost and included in the balance
sheet at current value. Where there is no open market value, assets are included in the
balance sheet at depreciated replacement cost. Community assets and infrastructure assets
are stated at depreciated historical cost, assets under construction are stated at cost.
Donated assets are revalued at current value.

e Investment properties are included in the balance sheet at fair value and need to meet the
criteria of property (land or a building, or part of a building, or both) held solely to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both.

e Assets held for sale are included in the balance sheet if their carrying amount is going to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continued use.

e Assets are reclassified as Held for Sale when the following criteria are met:

i) The asset is available for sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are
customary for sales of such assets (or disposal groups).

i) The sale must be highly probable.

iii) The appropriate level of management must be committed to a plan to sell the asset (or
disposal group).

iv) An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the sale must have been initiated.

v) The asset (or disposal group) must be actively marketed for sale at a price that is
reasonable in relation to the current value.

vi) The sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one
year from the date of classification except where the sale is likely to proceed to a sale
without significant changes to the plan of sale, or that significant changes to the plan will
be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

For 2024/25 the Council’s values of land and buildings have been included in the accounts based
on valuations either by external valuers or by the Authority’s Estates office. A de minimis value of
£10,000 per capital contract or rolling programme has been applied to new vehicles, plant and
equipment, and for new land and buildings. Assets valued below these limits are not included,
unless they are included in the rolling revaluation programme.

Fair Value Measurement

The authority measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment
properties and some of its financial instruments such as shareholding for policy purposes at fair
value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset, or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
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The authority measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest. When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the authority
takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefit by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The authority uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs. Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for
which fair value is measured or disclosed in the authority’s financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, as follows:

e Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the authority can access at the measurement date.

e Level 2 —inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3 —unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Disposals
Assets are removed from the Balance Sheet in the year of sale and the profit or loss on disposal is

charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account.

Charges to Revenue for Non-current Assets

Service revenue accounts, central support services, and trading accounts are charged with a
depreciation charge, profit or loss on disposal and any impairment loss for all non-current assets
used in the provision of services. (An impairment loss is only charged to revenue, if there is no
balance on the Revaluation Reserve.) The depreciation charge is credited out of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement via the Movement in Reserves Statement on
the General Fund Balance so that there is no impact on the amount required to be raised from local
taxation for the provision of Council services.

Asset lives are established by reference to the expected timespan over which the Council expects to
get economic benefits from that asset. This could be a valuer or the officer using the asset. The
useful life of assets is determined as follows, excepting where there may be exceptional
circumstances:

Buildings 15-60 years (except when impairment has occurred)
Vehicles 7-10 years

Equipment >1 to <25 years

Intangible Assets, Software >1 to <7 years

Infrastructure assets 5-50 years

Community assets Held in perpetuity

Assets (Finance Leases) Up to 10 years

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the authority’s financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as
follows:

Disposals

Assets are removed from the Balance Sheet in the year of sale and the profit or loss on disposal is
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account.
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Impairment

The value at which each category of assets is included in the balance sheet has been reviewed at
the year-end, and there was reason to believe that the value had reduced materially in the period
due to impairment; the valuation would be adjusted accordingly.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to service revenue accounts for most non-current assets:

e newly acquired assets are depreciated on asset values at 1st April in the year following their
confirmation as fully operational assets, except where the acquisition is material when
depreciation is calculated at the date of acquisition. Assets in the course of construction are not
depreciated until they are brought into use.

e assets disposed of are depreciated in the year of disposal.

e depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the useful life of the asset, based
on asset values at 15t April except where there are material acquisitions or disposals in any year
where depreciation is calculated at date of acquisition or disposal.

e assets acquired under Finance Leases are depreciated over the asset life, or the lease term if
shorter.

e assets held for sale, investment properties, assets under construction and community assets
are not depreciated.

Componentisation of Assets

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components, the cost of which is
significant in relation to the total cost, the components are depreciated separately. The Council uses
the straight line method of depreciation over the useful economic life (UEL) of the component.

In accordance with the Code, significant components are recognised as assets as acquired,
enhanced or revalued from 1st April 2010 onwards, and not retrospectively of this date.

When a component is replaced or restored, the carrying amount of the old component is
de-recognised by indexing the cost of the replacement back to the estimated inception date and
adjusting for subsequent depreciation and impairment. When replaced components are written out,
this does not result in a loss on either asset values or asset sales.

For Property, Plant and Equipment the accounting policy is to componentise all land and property
assets valued at £50,000 or more in total where there has been a revaluation or enhancement since
13t April 2010. The exception to this is council dwellings where a de minimis of £10,000 is applied,
any components below this value are depreciated as part of the main building.

The following component categories and useful lives are used:

- Land - Indefinite

- Main building structures - 60 years

- Replaceable building structures - 25 years
- Services - 20 years

- External works - 35 years

Any Revaluation Reserve balances associated with componentised assets are attributed firstly to
land and then to the main building structures, as it is considered unlikely that component
replacements will give rise to revaluation gains and losses independently of the structure of a
building. The exception would be if the Revaluation Reserve balance exceeded the valuation of the
land and main building structure, when the remaining balance would be attributed to the other
categories.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The following criteria need to be met before an asset is classified as an intangible asset:

- The asset must be identifiable

- The asset must lack physical substance.

- The asset is controlled by the Authority which will realise future economic benefits.
Intangible assets are measured at cost.

- Intangible assets are amortised over their useful lives.

Intangible assets are either internally generated or purchased. Software licences are capitalised as
intangible assets and amortised on a straight line basis over the expected life of the asset.

HERITAGE ASSETS
Definition

e A tangible heritage asset is defined as a tangible asset with historical, artistic, scientific,
technological, geophysical or environmental qualities that is held and maintained
principally for its contribution to knowledge and culture.

e An intangible heritage asset is defined as an intangible asset with cultural, environmental
or historical significance.

Recoghnition

The Council recognises heritage assets when the Council has information on the cost or value of the
asset. Where information on cost or value is not available, and the cost of obtaining the information
outweighs the benefits to the users of the financial statements, the Council does not recognise the
asset on the Balance Sheet. Assets which are not recognised in the Balance Sheet are included in
Disclosure notes.

Valuation

The Council's heritage assets are normally measured at valuation except where it is not possible to
establish a valuation; for example if there is no market for a particular heritage asset or where it is
not possible to provide a reliable estimate of the replacement cost of the asset due to the lack of
comparative information.

The unique nature of many heritage assets makes a reliable valuation complex. Therefore where it
is not practicable to obtain a valuation for an asset (at a cost which is commensurate with the
benefits to users of the financial statements) and cost information is available, the asset is carried at
historical cost (less any accumulated depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses). Valuations
may be made by any method that is appropriate and relevant and are reviewed with sufficient
regularity to ensure they remain current

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

Tangible heritage assets are not depreciated as the assets are considered to have very long or
infinite lives. Amortisation of intangible assets is considered on an individual asset basis. Assets
are reviewed for impairment where an asset has suffered physical deterioration or breakage, or
where doubts arise as to the authenticity of the heritage asset.
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Accounting

Heritage assets are accounted for in the same way as property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment Properties are those held solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The
definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or
production of goods, is held for sale or for the purposes of regeneration, employment or support of
the local economy.

CAPITALISATION OF BORROWING COSTS

IAS 23 requires borrowing costs, such as interest payments and other financing charges, to be
capitalised in respect of assets that take a substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is required to continue until the point at which the related assets
become operational or are sold. The Council’s policy is to capitalise the interest where it is material.

REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions, but that
does not result in the creation of a non-current asset, has been charged as expenditure to the
relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the
Authority has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by
borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the
Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is no impact on
the level of council tax.

INVENTORIES

This Council has accounted for inventories (stock) in accordance with IAS2 and IPSAS 12, which
includes public sector interpretations of measurement which the Code has adopted.

WORK IN PROGRESS

Any rechargeable works are shown at the actual cost incurred (excluding overheads allocation) at
31st March.

RESERVES

The authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund Balance.
When expenditure to be financed from the reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate
service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then transferred back into the
General Fund Balance so that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial
instruments, local taxation, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources
for the Council - these reserves are explained in the relevant policies.

PROVISIONS

The Council establishes provisions for specific expenses that are certain to be incurred but the
amount of which cannot yet be determined accurately.
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Provisions are charged to the appropriate service revenue account in the year that the council
becomes aware of the obligation, based on the estimate of the likely settlement. When payments
are eventually made, they are charged to the provision set up in the Balance Sheet. Estimated
settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year — where it becomes more likely than not
that a transfer of economic benefits will not now be required or a lower settlement is made, the
provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service revenue account.

A provision is made for business rates appeals which are likely to be settled in the favour of the
appellant. This is based on all known outstanding business rate appeals which have been lodged
with the Valuation Office together with an allowance for new appeals which may emerge in the
future. The amount provided for is based on information received from the Valuation Office and is
assessed on the likely change to rateable value as adjusted by locally assessed success rates.

CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent assets are possible assets arising from past events whose existence will only be
confirmed by future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent assets are not
accrued in the accounting statements, in conformity with the concept of prudence. Material
contingent assets are disclosed within the notes to the accounts if the inflow of a receipt or
economic benefit is probable.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will only be
confirmed by future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also
arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable or
the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in
the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts unless perceived as being remote.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the authority becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are
carried at their amortised cost.

Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of
the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the
amount at which it was originally recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the authority has, this means that the amount presented in the
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year
according to the loan agreement.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the CIES, regulations allow the impact on the
General Fund Balance to be spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the
gain or loss over the term that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or
discount receivable when it was repaid.

The reconciliation of amounts charged to the CIES to the net charge required against the General
Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects the
business model for holding the financial assets and their cash flow characteristics. There are three
main classes of financial assets measured at:
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e amortised cost
e fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and
e fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

The Council’'s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. Financial
assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual payments are
not solely payments of principal and interest (i.e. where the cash flows do not take the form of a
basic debt instrument).

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (CIES) for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the financial assets held by
the Council, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal
receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the
year in the loan agreement.

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.

Expected Credit Loss Model

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised cost or
FVOCI, either on a 12 month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to lease
receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors)
held by the Council.

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take
place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in
assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially
recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or
remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

Financial assets that are measured at FVOCI are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arise in
other comprehensive income.

The Council has two small shareholdings acquired for policy purposes, which are designated as
FVOCI:

° shares in the UK Municipal Bonds Agency, which was set up to help local councils finance
their investment in projects - no value is currently assigned to these shares
° deferred shares in Boom! Credit Union, which supports people who live or work in Surrey,

West Sussex or Kingston

The Council will recognise losses on these shareholdings to the extent that the underlying assets of
the organisation are no longer sufficient to promote its purpose.
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Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured
and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive in the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services.

Fair value measurement of financial assets
The fair value of an asset is the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurements of

the Council’s financial assets are based on the following techniques:

° instruments with quoted market prices — the market price
° other instruments with fixed and determinable payments — discounted cash flow analysis

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three
levels:

° Level 1 inputs — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the
authority can access at the measurement date.

° Level 2 inputs — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset, either directly or indirectly.

° Level 3 inputs — unobservable inputs for the asset.

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Soft Loans

The Code has specific accounting requirements in respect of “soft loans”, being loans made to or
from third parties at preferential rates of interest below market rates. The Code requires that when
soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the CIES (debited to the appropriate service) for the
present value of the interest that will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower
amortised cost than the outstanding principal.

The Council issues soft loans to employees in respect of car loans, cycle loans and professional
fees loans and is eligible for interest free loans to finance capital expenditure on energy efficiency
projects. No adjustment in respect of these loans is made to the accounts to reflect the
requirements of the Code on the grounds that the adjustment would be immaterial or impractical.

DEBT REDEMPTION

Statutory Guidance issued under s21(1A) of the Local Government Act 2003 places a duty on local
authorities to make a prudent provision for debt redemption.

The provisions are made each year from the General Fund Revenue Accounts, which is then held in
the Capital Adjustment Account (CAA). The accumulated provision held in the CAA is used to repay
the principal amounts borrowed to finance capital investment.

In accordance with statutory guidance and the Council’s statement for Minimum Revenue Provision
(MRP), an amount is charged annually to revenue and set aside for the repayment of debt. The
provision is made over the estimated life of the asset for which the borrowing is undertaken. Where
appropriate, the Council may also make overpayments of MRP, which can be offset in future years.
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INTERNAL INTEREST

A contribution is made to some Reserve Account balances based upon the average rate of return on
the Council’s investments for the year.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents are defined as ‘short term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash, and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value’. Accordingly, the investments that may fall within the definition are principally held for
short-term cash management purposes, not for obtaining a significant return on investment.

For the purpose of classifying cash equivalents within Financial Instruments, the Council’s
accounting policy is to categorise all fixed term deposits as investments, not cash equivalents
(irrespective of the duration of the investments). This is because in practice, such deposits would not
satisfy the requirement to be readily convertible to cash and would incur a penalty (loss in value) for
early redemption. Therefore, in practice the Council’s policy restricts the composition of cash and
cash equivalents to notes and coins, current account balances held with its own banker, plus instant
access call accounts or money market fund deposits placed in other financial institutions, that would
be returnable without penalty within 24 hours’ notice.

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Where exceptional items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the
notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the
Council’s financial performance.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS, CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
AND ERRORS

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current
and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events
and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance.

Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been
applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Benefits Payable During Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled wholly within 12 months of the year end.
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses
and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for
services in the year in which employees render service to the Council.

An accrual is made where the adjustment will have a material effect on the accounts for the cost of
holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, eg.time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken
before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. Any accrual is
made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in
which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision
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of Services, but then reversed through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday
benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. The
Council’'s annual cost of accumulated absences as defined by the IFRS code of practice is not
considered material and therefore has chosen not to accrue these costs.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate an
officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's decision to accept voluntary
redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate
service or, where applicable, to a corporate service segment at the earlier of when the Council can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the Council recognises costs for a restructure.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the
General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.

In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions
Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits
and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such
amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered
by West Sussex County Council (unless they choose to opt out). This scheme provides defined
benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees working for the
Council.

The Local Government Pension Scheme
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:

- The liabilities of the West Sussex Pension Fund attributable to the Council are included in the
Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method - ie an assessment of the
future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by
employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and
projections of earnings for current employees.

- Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the
indicative rate of returns on bonds.

- The assets of the West Sussex Pension Fund attributable to the Council are included in the
Balance Sheet at their fair value which is the bid value as required by IAS19.

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
- Service Cost comprising:

e The current service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this
year — allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for
which the employees worked;

e The past service cost — the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose
effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years — debited to the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part
of Non Distributed Costs;
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e Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), i.e. net interest expense for the
authority — the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises
from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement — this is calculated by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of
the period to the net defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the period — taking
into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a
result of contribution and benefit payments;

- Re-measurements comprising:

e Actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the
actuaries have updated their assumptions — charged to the Pensions Reserve;

e Return on plan assets — excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability(asset) — charged to the Pensions Reserve as other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

e Contributions paid to the West Sussex County Council Pension Fund — cash paid as
contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the
year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in
Reserves Statement, this means that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to
remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the
cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the
year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the
beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the
basis of cash flows rather than as the benefits are earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the
event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of
staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same
policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised
for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

e Those events that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period,
the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events.

e Those events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but, where a category of events
would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and
either their estimated financial effect or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made
reliably.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of
Accounts.
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CAPITAL RECEIPTS

Capital receipts are income over £10,000 received from the sale of land or other capital assets
which may be used to finance capital expenditure or repay debt.

The usable portions of capital receipts from the disposal of assets are held in the Usable Capital
Receipts Reserve until such time as they are used to finance other capital expenditure and/or to
repay debt.

NOTE 2: ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED, BUT HAVE NOT YET BEEN
ADOPTED

At the balance sheet date the following new standards and amendments to existing standards have
been adopted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2023/2024 for application from 1 April 2024

a) IFRS 16 Leases issued in January 2016 (but only for those local authorities that have not decided
to voluntarily implement IFRS 16 in the 2023/24 year).
The CIPFA/LASAAC Local Authority Accounting Code Board has deferred the implementation of

IFRS16 Leases in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the
Code) until the 2024/25 financial year.

The Council does not expect this standard to have a material effect on the presentation of future
financial information or transactions. However, a review of existing contracts and service
arrangements is underway to assess the potential impacts.

From 1 April 2024, financial statements must recognise right-of-use (Rou) assets at fair value
using discounted cash flows based on lease rental payments. This is expected to apply primarily
to arrangements where the Council, as lessee, benefits from the use of assets supplied by third
parties.

In accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice, the Council will assess whether a RoU exists
and determine whether to recognise or derecognise assets on the balance sheet, along with
corresponding liabilities for future rental payments. Recognised assets will incur depreciation
charges of the lease term, which will be recognised in service revenue accounts.

For leases where the Councils is the lessee, interest payable on outstanding rental liabilities will
also be charged. This will typically be calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease or,
where unavailable, the PWLB annuity borrowing rate for the fair value of assets and lease term.

Existing contracts in place as of 1 April 2024 will not require reassessment unless they involve nil
consideration of sub-market rates. Lease classifications under previous assessments will be
retained under these contracts.

The Council will apply the following recognition exemptions:

e Short-term leases: Those with a lease term of 12 months or less and no purchase option.
e Low-value assets: The council will define a threshold for these exemptions.

Payments for short-term and low-value assets will be recognised as expenses on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Exemptions will also apply to certain licenses, service concession
arrangements and rights under license agreements where applicable.
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Work has commenced to ensure the implementation of IFRS16 into the 2024/25 accounts.

b) Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1) issued in January

2020. The amendments:

+ specify that an entity’s right to defer settlement must exist at the end of the reporting period

+ clarify that classification is unaffected by management’s intentions or expectations about
whether the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement

+ clarify how lending conditions affect classification, and

+ clarify requirements for classifying liabilities an entity will or may settle by issuing its own
equity instruments.

c) Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16) issued in September
2022.The amendments to IFRS 16 add subsequent measurement requirements for sale and
leaseback transactions.

d) Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1) issued in October 2022. The
amendments improved the information an entity provides when its right to defer settlement of a
liability for at least 12 months is subject to compliance with covenants.

e) International Tax Reform: Pillar Two Model Rules (Amendments to IAS 12) issued in May 2023.
Pillar Two applies to multinational groups with a minimum level of turnover. The amendments
introduced:

* atemporary exception to the requirements to recognise and disclose
information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income
taxes, and

» targeted disclosure requirements for affected entities.

f)  Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7) issued in May 2023. The
amendments require an entity to provide additional disclosures about its supplier finance
arrangements. The IASB developed the new requirements to provide users of financial
statements with information to enable them to:

+ assess how supplier finance arrangements affect an entity’s liabilities and cash flows, and
* understand the effect of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s exposure to liquidity
risk and how the entity might be affected if the arrangements were no longer available to it.

Whilst it is likely that the first two items will lead to improved reporting, they will not have a significant
impact on the amounts anticipated to be reported in the financial statements. The final two items are
not expected to be applicable to the Council.

NOTE 3: CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
GOING CONCERN

Critical Judgements

The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

) There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government.
However, the Council has also considered known and expected government funding and
determined that it has sufficient liquidity from its ability to access short term investments and
sufficient general fund balances and reserves to continue to deliver services.

° The Council holds a significant portfolio of investment property and although in general terms
economic activity is fragile, the Council judges that its portfolio is robust and that the assets
will not be impaired as a result of a decrease in economic activity.
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° Retirement Benefit Obligations - The Council recognises and discloses its retirement benefit
obligation in accordance with the measurement and presentational requirements of IAS 19
"Employee Benefits". The estimation of the net pension liability depends on a number of
complex judgements and estimates relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which
salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected
returns on pension fund assets. West Sussex County Council, as the Pension Administering
Authority, engages a firm of actuaries to provide expert advice about the assumptions to be
applied. Changes in these assumptions made are set out in Note 1 and transactions
disclosed in Note 38.

° As the accounting treatment and disclosures for operating and finance leases are
significantly different, the Council has made judgements on whether its lease arrangements
for land and buildings are operating leases or finance leases under the criteria of 1AS17.
These judgements are made in accordance with the Council’s accounting policy on leases.

° The Council has made judgements about the likelihood of potential liabilities and whether
provision should be made. The judgements are based on the degree of certainty and an
assessment of the likely impact. Provisions resulting from these judgements are disclosed in
Note 21.

° The Council does not expect the tax gathering mechanisms for Council Tax and Business
Rates to fundamentally alter the Council’s financial stability. The risk within the rates retention
scheme is assumed to be the safety net which has been set by the government at 5% of the
Council spending baseline which equates to £95k.

Going Concern

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1 the Council has had to make certain
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.

The provisions in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice of Local Authority Accounting 2024/25 and
the Financial Reporting Council’'s Practice Note 10 in respect of going concern reporting
requirements reflect the economic and statutory environment in which local authorities operate.
These provisions confirm that, as authorities cannot be created or dissolved without statutory
prescription, they must prepare their financial statements on a going concern basis of accounting.
Local authorities carry out functions essential to the local community and are themselves
revenue-raising bodies (with limits on their revenue-raising powers arising only at the discretion of
central government).

If an authority were in financial difficulty, the prospects are thus that alternative arrangements might
be made by central government either for the continuation of the services it provides or for
assistance with the recovery of a deficit over more than one financial year and indeed,
correspondence from MHCLG during Covid-19 is supportive of this approach. As a result of this, it
would not therefore be appropriate for local authority financial statements to be provided on anything
other than a going concern basis. Accounts drawn up under the Code therefore assume that a local
authority’s services will continue to operate for the foreseeable future.

During 2024/25 the delivery of the Council’s services to our residents has been impacted by a
number of factors, including: high inflation levels and the ongoing ‘cost of living’ crisis; labour
shortages in key occupations; increasing service demand and complexity of need of those requiring
our support; and uncertainty around future years’ funding. Despite the challenges, the council
reported a £247k underspend (2.3% against budget) for the financial period ending 31st March 2025

An assessment has been made of the likely impact of economic factors on its financial position and
performance during 2024/25, 2025/26 and beyond. This has included modelling scenarios that
consider the impact on the following:
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> Reductions in income

> |ncreased expenditure

> Cash Flow and liquidity

> General fund balances and reserves

In February 2024 the Council approved a balanced budget for 2024/25. Known pressures were built
into the 2024/25 budget. Whilst uncertainty on income remains, the Council remains confident in its
ability to maintain sufficient cash for its services throughout the medium term, helped by the cash
flow from Government grants. This is based on our review of the cashflow forecast which covers a
period up to 31st March 2027. The Council also has sufficient headroom within its borrowing limit to
be able to borrow short term for revenue purposes if needed.

The Council has also considered known and expected government funding and determined that it
has sufficient liquidity from its ability to access short term investments and sufficient general fund
balances and reserves to continue to deliver services.

As at 31 March 2025 the Council has the following reserves to call on in delivering its services.

> General Fund Working Balance £1.100m
> HRA Working Balance £1.220m
> General Fund Earmarked Reserves £3.670m
> HRA Earmarked Reserves £1.098m
> Capital Grants £3.335m
> Capital Receipts £4.320m

In the event of a serious financial situation it will be prepared to ‘un-earmark’ certain reserves to
meet its commitments.

The Authority has been closely monitoring its cash flow and investments to ensure it has sufficient
liquidity to meet its commitments. The Council had short term investments of £31k and cash and
cash equivalents of £6.2m at the end of March 2025 and has prepared a cash flow forecast to the
end of March 2026 which is over 12 months from the date the accounts are approved. The Council
remains confident in its ability to maintain sufficient cash for its services throughout this period and is
furthermore able to borrow short term for cash management if ever needed.

Furthermore, the Council has a modest capital programme and could postpone non-essential capital
projects that would further protect the levels of cash and usable reserves if the position further
deteriorated. The programme focuses on projects that produce a positive financial revenue return as
well as those where there are health and safety requirements or were already in progress and could
not be postponed without incurring significant costs.

As a result, the Council is satisfied that there are no identified risks regarding liquidity of cash flow,
and it can prepare its accounts on a going concern basis.

NOTE 4: ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the
Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account
historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot
be determined with certainty actual results could be materially different from assumptions and
estimates contained within these accounts. As these items are re-assessed each year, they are
subject to annual review and are updated within each year’s accounts for the latest information.

The items in the Council’s Balance Sheet at 31st March 2025 for which there is a risk of material
adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:
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Item

Uncertainties

Effect if actual results differ
from assumptions

Property, Plant and Equipment

Building Assets are depreciated
over useful lives that are dependent
on assumptions about the level of
repairs and maintenance that will
be incurred in relation to individual
building assets. The current
economic climate makes it
uncertain that the Council will be
able to sustain its current spending
on repairs and maintenance,
bringing into doubt the useful lives
assigned to building assets.

If the useful life of assets is
reduced, depreciation increases
and the carrying amount of the
assets falls.

If the useful life of assets fell by
one year there would be an
increase in the depreciation
charged in the C.I.LE.S. For
example the additional cost for
Land and Buildings (excluding
council dwellings) would be
£41.3k.

There would also be a
corresponding decrease in the
carrying amount of the assets.

Depreciation is excluded when the
movement in the general fund is
determined. It does not impact on
the setting of council tax.

Pensions Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay
pensions depends on a number of
complex judgements relating to the
discount rate used, the rate at
which salaries are projected to
increase, changes in retirement
ages, mortality rates and expected
returns on pension fund assets. A
firm of consulting actuaries is
engaged to provide the Council with
expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied. In
2024/25 the assumptions include
an estimation of the impact of the
McCloud judgement.

The effects on the net pensions
liability of changes in individual
assumptions can be measured.
However, the assumptions interact
in complex ways.

During 2024/25, the Council’s
actuaries advised that the net
pension liability has increased by a
net £6.9m, of this a £0.8m
decrease is as a result of
estimates being corrected as a
result of experience and an
increase of £7.7m attributable to
updating of the assumptions.

Refer to note 38 for further details.
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Impairment Loss Allowance

At 31st March 2025 the Council had
a net balance of debtors due
(excluding government
departments) of £13.8m. A review
of significant balances suggested
that an impairment of doubtful debt
of £2.18m was appropriate.

Arrears collection rates are
reviewed each year and if
collection rates were to deteriorate
or improve this would require an
appropriate adjustment.

An increase in the net balance of
debtors (excluding government
departments) by 10% would
increase the impairment for bad
debts by £84k

Business Rate Appeals
Provision

As at March 2025 the total
provision for the impact of appeals
on business rate income was
£0.835m, the Council share of this
was £0.334m. The provision is
based on the appeals lodged with
the Valuation Office which is then
reviewed to establish the likely
impact of the appeals on the
business rate income.

The appeals provision is reviewed
each year and adjusted for the
likely impact of any increase or
decrease in the level of appeals.

If the success rate was to increase
by 1% the impact on the provision
would be an increase of £22k. The
Council share of this would be
£9k.

Fair Value Investments

When the fair values of nonfinancial
assets and financial
assets/liabilities cannot be
measured based on quoted prices
in active markets (i.e. Level 1
inputs), their fair value is

measured using valuation
techniques (e.g. discounted cash
flow (DCF) model). Where possible
these valuation techniques are
based on observable data, but
where this is not possible
judgement is required in
establishing fair values. These
judgements typically include
considerations such as uncertainty
and risk for financial assets and
rent growth for non-financial assets.

Where Level 1 inputs are not
available the Council employs
relevant experts to identify the
most appropriate valuation

Significant changes in any of the
relevant factors or assumptions
would result in a significantly lower
or higher fair value measurement
for the asset.

NOTE 5:

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur
between the end of the reporting period, 31st March 2025 and the date when the Statement of

Accounts is authorised for issue.

No events have been identified which give rise to a disclosure after the balance sheet date.
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NOTE 6:

EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis is a note that shows how annual expenditure is used and
funded from resources (government grants, rents, Council Tax, and Business Rates) by local
authorities in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance
with generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for
decision-making purposes between the Council’s portfolios. Income and expenditure accounted for
under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

2024/25 2024/25 2024/25 2023/24 2023/24 2023/24
Net Net
Adjustments | Expenditure in | Expenditure Net Expenditure
Net between the Chargeable | Adjustment in the
Expenditure |Funding and | Comprehensiv to the s between | Comprehensive
Chargeable to | Accounting | e Income and General Funding and| Income and
the General Basis (Note | Expenditure Fund Accounting Expenditure
Fund Balance 7) Statement Balance Basis Statement
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

The Leader 562 1 563 548 12 560
Environment and Leisure 1,058 914 1,972 2,310 1,194 3,504
Communities and 1,480 53 1,533 1,386 73 1,459
Wellbeing
Adur Homes and 1,553 1,047 2,600 1,692 2,025 3,717
Customer Services
Regeneration and 1,933 225 2,158 2,347 47 2,394
Strategic Planning
Finance and Resources 1,754 1,441 3,195 1,791 481 2,272
HRA (3,726) 376 (3,350) (1,808) 2,121 313
Net Cost of Services 4,614 4,057 8,671 8,266 5,953 14,219
Other income and (6,482) 4,676 (1,806) (7,606) 3,517 (4,089)
expenditure
(Surplus) or deficit on (1,868) 8,733 6,865 660 9,470 10,130
provision of services
Opening General Fund & (5,220) (5,880)
HRA Reserve Balance at
31st March
Deficit/(surplus) in Year (1,868) 660
Closing General Fund & (7,088) (5,220)

HRA Reserve Balance at
31st March *

* For a split of this balance between the General Fund and HRA — see the Movement in Reserves Statement.
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2024/25

Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit
(Note 7)

Net change

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive at | Adjustments for the Collection

the Comprehensive Income and for Capital Pensions Fund Total

Expenditure Statement amounts Purposes |Adjustments| Adjustment | Adjustments

£000 £000 £000 £000
The Leader 7 (6) 1
Environment and Leisure 939 (25) 914
Communities and Wellbeing 60 (7) 53
Adur Homes and Customer Services 1,097 (50) 1,047
Regeneration and Strategic Planning 247 (22) 225
Finance and Resources 1,486 (45) 1,441
Housing Revenue Account 1,157 (781) 376
Net Cost of Services 4,993 (936) - 4,057
Other income and expenditure from the
Difference between General Fund surplus or
deficit and the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement Surplus or Deficit 9,495 (806) 44 8,733
(Note 7)
2023/24
Net change

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive at | Adjustments for the Collection

the Comprehensive Income and for Capital Pensions Fund Total

Expenditure Statement amounts Purposes [Adjustments| Adjustment | Adjustments

£000 £000 £000 £000

The Leader 7 5 - 12
Environment 1,159 35 - 1,194
Health & Wellbeing 56 17 - 73
Customer Services 2,043 (18) - 2,025
Regeneration 73 (26) - 47
Resources 451 30 - 481
Housing Revenue Account 2,927 (806) - 2,121
Net Cost of Services 6,716 (763) - 5,953
Other income and expenditure from the
Funding Analysis 5,027 (1,074) (436) 3,517
Difference between General Fund surplus or
deficit and the Comprehensive Income and 11,743 (1,837) (436) 9,470
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Income and Expenditure analysed by nature

Employee Expenses* inc Share of Joint

Depreciation, amortisation, impairment
(Gain)/loss on disposal of non current assets

Precepts
Payments to the Government Housing Capital Receipts Pool

Other service expenditure

Total Expenditure

Grants and contributions
Fees, charges and other service income
Income from council tax and business rates

Interest and Investment Income

Total Income
Deficit or surplus on Provision of Services

2024/25 2023/24
£'000 £'000

15,640 13,506
4,649 11,998
11,198 5,977
457 440
0 0
37,175 36,747
69,119 68,668
(7,831) (7,220)
(40,734) (37,706)
(8,671) (8,488)
(5,018) (5,124)
(62,254) (58,538)
6,865 10,130

*The other service expenditure figure includes the Council’s share of the Joint Service costs

including the employee expenses.

NOTE 7:
BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS

ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure
recognised by the Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the
resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Council to meet future

capital and revenue expenditure.
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2024/25 USABLE RESERVES

General
Fund
Balance

Housing
Revenue
Account

Capital
Receipts
Reserves

HRA
Major
Repairs
Reserve

Capital
Grants
Unapplie
d

Adjustment to the Revenue Resources
Amounts by which income and expenditure included in

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement are different from revenue for the year
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements:
Pension Cost (transferred to or from) the Pension
Reserve)

Financial instruments (transferred to the Financial
Instruments Adjustment Account)

Council tax and NDR (transfers to or from) Collection
fund Adjustments Account

Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services in relation to capital
expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital
Adjustment Account):

Charges for Depreciation and impairment of non
current assets

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment
Movement in fair value of investment assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

Capital grants and contributions applied

Revenue expenditure funder from capital under statute
Amount of non-current assets written off on disposal or
sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES
Appropriation of S106/CIL contributions to Fund
revenue expenditure

Repayment of Capital Grant

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to
the CIES

The difference of depreciation charged to HRA
services over the Major Repairs Allowance element of
housing subsidy

£000

286

49

(44)

(1,664)

)
1,739
(195)
1,050

(1,660)

(108)

(338)

1,630

£000

519

(3,350)

(1,157)

(20)
70

(10,282)

3,370

£000

£000

(3,370)

£000

338

(1,630)

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources

743

(10,850)

(3,370)

(1,292)

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital
Resources

Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from
revenue to the Capital Receipts reserve

Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer
from the Capital Adjustment Account)

Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances
(transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account)

(1,696)

2,100

79

888

808

Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital
Resources

483

888

808
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Adiust ts to Capital R
Use of the Capital Receipts reserve to finance capital
expenditure

Use of Major Repairs Reserve to finance capital
expenditure

Application of capital grants to finance capital
expenditure

Cash Payments in relation to deferred capital receipts

(1,668)

9,318

718

Total Adjustments to Capital Resources

(1,668)

9,318

718

Total Adjustments

1,229

(9,962)

(860)

5,948

(574)

2023/24 USABLE RESERVES

General
Fund
Balance

Housing
Revenue
Account

Capital
Receipts
Reserves

HRA
Major
Repairs
Reserve

Capital
Grants
Unapplie
d

Adjustment to the Revenue Resources
Amounts by which income and expenditure included in

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement are different from revenue for the year
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements:
Pension Cost (transferred to or from) the Pension
Reserve)

Financial instruments (transferred to the Financial
Instruments Adjustment Account)

Council tax and NDR (transfers to or from) Collection
fund Adjustments Account

Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services in relation to capital
expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital
Adjustment Account):

Charges for Depreciation and impairment of non
current assets

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment
Movement in fair value of investment assets

Amortisation of intangible assets
Capital grants and contributions applied

Revenue expenditure funder from capital under statute

Amount of non-current assets written off on disposal or
sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES
Appropriation of S106/CIL contributions to Fund
revenue expenditure

Repayment of Capital Grant

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to
the CIES

The difference of depreciation charged to HRA
services over the Major Repairs Allowance element of
housing subsidy

£000

744

(104)

436

(1,553)

108
(3,875)
(180)
1,595
(2,161)

(6,543)

(24)

1,191

£000

1,093

(3,550)

(2,927)

(20)
258

(5,497)

160

3,570

£000

£000

(3,570)

£000

24

(1,351)

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources

(10,366)

(6,913)

(3,570)

(1,327)
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Adjustments between Revenue and Capital
Resources

Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from
revenue to the Capital Receipts reserve
Administration costs of non-current asset disposals
(funded by a contribution from the Capital Receipts
Reserve)

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds credit as part of the
gain /loss on disposal from revenue to the Deferred
Capital Receipts Reserve

Payments to the government housing receipts pool
(funded by a transfer from the Capital Receipts
Reserve)

Posting of HRA resources from revenue to the Major
Repair Reserve

Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer
from the Capital Adjustment Account)

Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances
(transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account)

5,963

1,575

171

100

(6,063)

(6)

Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital
Resources

7,709

100

(6,069)

Adjustments to Capital Resources

Use of the Capital Receipts reserve to finance capital
expenditure

Use of Major Repairs Reserve to finance capital
expenditure

Application of capital grants to finance capital
expenditure

Principal Repayment of loan

Cash Payments in relation to deferred capital receipts

6,636

6,317

1,559

Total Adjustments to Capital Resources

6,636

6,317

1,559

Total Adjustments

(2,657)

(6,813)

567

2,747

232

NOTE 8:

MOVEMENTS IN EARMARKED RESERVES

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account
balances in earmarked reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts
posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund and HRA expenditure in 2024/25.

The Council holds a number of specific reserves. Movements during the year were as follows:
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. Balance | Transfers Balance at | Transfers Balance
Movement in Earmarked Transfers Transfers
Reserves at Out |\, 202324 | 31103124 Out 1\n2024i25| _ 2
01/04/23 2023/24 2024/25 31/03/25
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Earmarked Revenue
Reserves
Capacity Issues Fund 367 (280) 391 478 - 199 677
Insurance Fund 83 - - 83 (19) 31 95
Property Investment Risk 376 i 124 500 i 850 1.350
Reserve
Exit cost risk reserve 68 (14) 7 61 (5) - 56
Grants & Contributions 914 (449) 195 660 (727) 500 433
Sub Total 1,808 (743) 717 1,782 (751) 1,580 2,611
Reserves to manage
Collection Fund timing
difference:
Tax Smoothing Reserve 1,825 (767) 1 1,059 (60) 60 1,059
Total General Fund 3,633 (1,510) 718 2,841 (811) 1,640 3,670
Housing Revenue Account
New Development & 31 31) - - - 200 200
Acquisition Reserve
Discretionary Assistance Fund 2 (2) - - - -
Business Improvement
Reserve 84 - - 84 200 284
Courtfields Sinking Fund - - 547 547 - 67 614
Total Housing Revenue 17 (33) 547 631 i 467 1,098
Account
Total Earmarked Reserves 3,750 (1,543) 1,265 3,472 (811) 2,107 4,768

Reserves and their purpose:

Capacity Issues Fund

To cushion the impact of economic changes and fund one-off initiatives for the community.

Insurance Fund

To fund uninsured losses.

Property Investment Risk Reserve

To enable the council to manage the income stream from the strategic properties, for example
through restructuring of leases or during void periods and to facilitate the future maintenance of the

properties.

Wellbeing - Employee Exit Cost Reserve
Reserve will fund the exit costs for grant funded posts where entitiement exists.

Grants & Contributions

The reserve is used where the grant or contribution has been recognised as income in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, but the expenditure to be financed from that
grant or contribution has not been incurred at the Balance
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Tax Smoothing Reserve

This reserve is intended to smooth the impact of changes to reliefs in year. The Council received
additional section 31 grants to compensate for losses in business rates income due to the extended
reliefs given to retail, hospitality and leisure businesses to support them through the pandemic. The
legislation that governs Collection Fund accounting means the related deficit incurred as a result of
the in year loss in business rate income will not be charged to the General Fund until 2024/25. The
Tax Smoothing Reserve will fund the losses when they are incurred and are not available for other

purposes.

New Development & Acquisition Reserve

Earmarked reserve specifically for new development and refurbishment of council housing

Business Improvement Reserve

To fund new digital technologies and business transformation to generate efficiencies in the Adur

Homes service.

Discretionary Assistance Fund

Earmarked reserve to provide financial assistance to tenants who may require support not otherwise

available.

Courtfields Major Works:

This is a reserve for the cost of works that the Council is obliged to undertake at Courtfields. No
major works are currently programmed for the properties but it is highly likely that some major works

will need to be undertaken in the next few years.

NOTE 9: OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE
Other Operating Expenditure 2024/25 2023/24
£'000 £'000
Parish Council Precepts 457 440
(Gains)/losses on the disposal of non-current assets 11,198 5,977
TOTAL 11,655 6,417
NOTE 10: FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 2024/25 2023/24
£'000 £'000
Interest payable & similar charges (Note 17) 5,404 4,800
Pensions interest cost & expected return on pensions assets (Note 38) 130 (1,074)
Interest receivable & similar income (360) (474)
Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties (Note 14) (4,161) (4,409)
Changes in fair value of investment properties (Note 14) (1,739) 3,875
Changes in fair value of investments (Note 17) (49) 104
Other investment income (Trading Operations Note 27) (236) (214)
TOTAL (1,011) 2,608
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NOTE 11: TAXATION AND NON-SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 2024/25 2023/24
£'000 £'000
Council Tax Income (including Parish Council Precepts) (7,600) (7,416)
Non Domestic Rates income and expenditure (1,071) (1,072)
Non-ringfenced Government Grants (Note 33) (2,564) (2,220)
Capital Grants and Contributions (Note 33) (1,215) (2,406)
TOTAL (12,450) (13,114)
NOTE 12: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
OPERATIONAL ASSETS
Other Vehicles, Assets
Land Furniture Infra- | Comm- Under
Council and and structure| unity |Surplus| Const-
Movements in 2024/25 Dwellings | Buildings | Equipment | Assets | Assets | Assets |ruction| TOTAL
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 | £'000 | £'000 £'000
Cost or Valuation
1st April 2024 203,772 51,955 6,989 8,268| 1,788 571 19,596 292,425
Additions 10,890 164 347 - 3 -l 8,774 20,178
Revaluation increases/ (decreases) 7,462 (2,477) 4,985
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation increases/ (decreases) (1,156) (856) (2,012)
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Services
Derecognition (10,126) (64) (170) (58) (39) (10,457)
Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for Sale (1,222) (1,222)
Reclassifications to Intangible Assets -
Reclassifications from AUC to AHFS 1,756 1,756
Reclassifications between PPE asset - 2,286 (1) (40)[ (5,855) (3,610)
classes and REFCUS
As at 31st March 2025 211,376 51,008 7,166 8,210 1,790 17| 22,476 302,043
Accumulated Depreciation and
Impairment
1st April 2024 - - (3,568) (3,430) - (1) (23) (7,022)
Depreciation charge (3,215) (937) (511) (351) (1) (5,015)
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation 2,857 2,857
Reserve
Deprecation written out to the 358 937 1,295
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services
Derecognition 167 58 2 23 250
Reclassifications between PPE asset -
classes and Assets Held for Sale
As at 31st March 2025 - - (3,912) (3,723) - - - (7,635)
Net Book Value at 31st March 2025 211,376 51,008 3,254 4,487 1,790 17| 22,476 294,408
Net Book Value at 31st March 2024 203,772 51,955 3,421 4,838 1,788 56| 19,573 285,403
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Comparative Movements 2023/24

Movements in 2023/24

Cost or Valuation
At 1st April 2023

Prior Year Adjustment
Additions

Revaluation increases/ (decreases)
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation increases/ (decreases)
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Services

Derecognition

Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for
Sale
Reclassifications to Intangible Assets

Reclassifications between PPE asset
classes

As at 31st March 2024
Accumulated Depreciation and
Impairment

At 1st April 2023

Prior Year Adjustment
Depreciation charge

Depreciation written out to the
Revaluation Reserve

Deprecation written out to the
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of
Services

Derecognition

Reclassifications between PPE asset
classes

As at 31st March 2024

Net Book Value
As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

Vehicles, Assets
Other Furniture Infra- Comm- Under
Land
Council and and structure | unity [Surplus | Const-

Dwellings |Buildings | Equipment| Assets | Assets | Assets |ruction| TOTAL
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
209,807 47,282 7,077 8,260 1,788 62| 14,250 288,526

6,117 1,033 272 195 7,617

- - - -| 10,207 10,207

(8,875) 3,786 - - - (5) (5,094)
(2,927) 147 - - - - - (2,780)
(5,692) (507) (360) (187) - - - (6,746)
695 - - - - - - 695
4,647 214 - - - -| (4,861) -
203,772 51,955 6,989 8,268 1,788 57| 19,596 292,425
- (787) (3,432) (3,177) - - (23) (7,419)
(3,403) (810) (496) (393) - (1) (5,103)
3,183 1,399 - - - - - 4,582

- 198 - - - - - 198

220 - 360 140 - - - 720

- - (3,568) (3,430) - (1) (23) (7,022)
203,772 51,955 3,421 4,838 1,788 56| 19,573 285,403
209,807 46,495 3,645 5,083 1,788 62| 14,227 281,107

ADC Statement
of Accounts

Page 69




Depreciation

The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of depreciation:

Council Dwellings: 15 — 60 years

Other Land and Buildings: 1 — 60 years

Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment: 1 — 25 years
Infrastructure: 5 - 25 years

Capital Commitments

At 31st March 2025 the Council had 4 significant capital commitments for the acquisition,
development and enhancement of assets which will continue in future years estimated to cost
£1.9m. The significant commitments at 31st March 2024 were £1m. The significant commitments at
31st March 2025 includes:

e Coastal Protection - Shoreham Harbour wall project: £1.844m
Revaluations

The Council carries out a rolling programme that ensures all Property, Plant and Equipment required
to be measured at current value is revalued at least every 5 years. Valuations were carried out by
external valuers, Wilks, Head and Eve, GSE Harbord MA MRICS IRRV (Hons). Valuations were
carried out in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The valuations
were made in accordance with the RICS Valuation Standards 6™ Edition as published by the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The Council uses depreciated historical cost as a valuation basis
for infrastructure assets, community assets, and for vehicles, plant and equipment. Assets under
construction are valued at cost.

The significant assumptions applied in estimating the current values are:

° Operational Assets - Properties valued will continue to be in the occupation of the Council for
the foreseeable future having regard to the prospect and viability of the continuance of that
occupation.

Other Vehicles, Assets
Land Furniture Infra- | Comm- Under
Council and and structure| unity | Surplus | Const-
Dwellings | Buildings | Equipment | Assets | Assets | Assets | ruction TOTAL
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Carried at historical cost 3,254 4,487 1,790 22,476 32,007
Valued at current value as at:
31st March 2025 211,376 13,074 224,450
31st March 2024 14,101 17 14,118
31st March 2023 20,518 20,518
31st March 2022 2,454 2,454
31st March 2021 861 861
Total Cost or Valuation 211,376 51,008 3,254 4,487 1,790 17 22,476 294,408
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NON-OPERATIONAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (SURPLUS ASSETS)

Details of the authority’s surplus assets and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31st
March 2025:

Quoted prices in Other Significant
active markets significant unobservable
Recurring fair value for identical observable inputs Fair value as at
measurements using: assets (Level 1) |inputs (Level 2) (Level 3) 31st March 2025
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000

Land - 17 - 17
Offices - - - -
TOTAL - 17 - 17

Details of the authority’s surplus assets fair value hierarchy as at 31st March 2024 are shown below:

Quoted prices in Other Significant
active markets significant unobservable
Recurring fair value for identical observable inputs Fair value as at
measurements using: assets (Level 1) |inputs (Level 2) (Level 3) 31st March 2024
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Land - 16 - 16
Offices - 39 - 46
TOTAL - 55 - 62

Transfers between Levels of the Fair Value Hierarchy
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the year.

Valuation Techniques used to Determine Level 2 and 3 Fair Values for Surplus Assets

Significant Observable Inputs — Level 2

The fair value for surplus assets has been based on the market approach using current market
conditions and recent sales prices and other relevant information for similar assets in the local
authority area. Market conditions for these asset types are such that the level of observable inputs
is significant leading to the properties being categorised at Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Significant Unobservable Inputs — Level 3

There are no land or property assets within the Authority’s surplus asset portfolio which are classed
at Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

Highest and Best Use of Surplus Assets

In estimating the fair value of the Authority’s surplus assets, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.
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Valuation Techniques
There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for surplus assets.
Valuation Process for Surplus Assets

The Authority carries out a rolling valuation programme which ensures all surplus assets are
revalued at least every 5 years and are reviewed for significant increases/decreases at the reporting
date. Valuations are either carried out by external valuers, Wilks, Head and Eve, or by the
Authority’s Estates Office. The valuations were made in accordance with the methodologies and
bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors. The external valuers work closely with the Authority’s Estates Office and finance officers
reporting directly to the chief financial officer on a regular basis regarding all valuation matters.

NOTE 13: HERITAGE ASSETS

A tangible heritage asset is defined as a tangible asset with historical, artistic, scientific,
technological, geophysical or environmental qualities that is held and maintained principally for its

contribution to knowledge and culture.

Civic Fine Art/
Movements in 2024/25 Regalia | Furniture | Monuments Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or Valuation
1st April 2024 14 31 325 370
Revaluations 1 1 - 2
As at 31st March 2025 15 32 325 372
As at 31st March 2024 14 31 325 370
COMPARATIVE MOVEMENTS 2023/24
Civic Fine Art/
Movements in Regalia | Furniture | Monuments Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or Valuation 13 30 325 368
1st April 2023 1 1 2
Revaluations -
As at 31st March 2024 14 31 325 370

Civic Regalia

The Council's Civic Regalia is reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation. The insurance

valuation is reviewed annually.

Fine Art/Furniture

This collection consists of various 19th Century paintings which have been donated to the Council

and 2 carved oak chairs.

These assets are stored or displayed in the Council's administration

buildings and are reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation, which is updated annually.
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Monuments

The war memorial at The Green, Southwick is reported in the Balance Sheet at historical cost as it is
not practical to provide a valuation.

In 2022/23 the Council constructed a fitting and lasting memorial to the eleven men who lost their
lives as a result of the tragic incident at Shoreham Air Show in August 2015. The memorial is
reported in the Balance Sheet at historical cost as it is not practical to provide a valuation.

NOTE 14: INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The following items of income and expenditure have been accounted for in the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

There are no restrictions on the Council's ability to realise the value inherent in its investment
property or on the Council's right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal. The
Council has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment properties or
repairs, maintenance or enhancement.

2024/25 2023/24
£'000 £'000
Rental income (4,661) (4,673)
Direct operating expenses 500 264
Net (gain)/loss (4,161) (4,409)

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the

year.
2024/25 2023/24
£'000 £'000

Balance at start of the year 74,959 78,834
Additions:
Acquisitions - -
Net gains/losses from fair value adjustments:
General Fund 1,739 (3,875)
Balance at end of the year 76,698 74,959

Fair Value Measurement of Investment Property

Details of the Authority’s investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at

31st March 2025 and 315t March 2024 are as follows:
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Quoted prices
. . . . Other - .
Recurring fair value in active s Significant Fair value as at
significant
measurements markets for unobservable 31st March
. . . observable .
using: identical assets | . inputs (Level 3) 2025
inputs (Level 2)
(Level 1)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Land - 520 - 520
Office - 39,439 - 40,481
Retail - 13,186 - 13,070
Leisure - 23,553 - 20,888
Total - 76,698 - 74,959

Quoted prices
. . . . Other N .
Recurring fair value in active - Significant Fair value as at
significant
measurements markets for unobservable 31st March
. . . observable .
using: identical assets | . inputs (Level 3) 2024
inputs (Level 2)
(Level 1)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Land - 520 - 544
Office - 40,481 - 40,749
Retail - 13,070 - 14,452
Leisure - 20,888 - 23,089
Total - 74,959 - 78,834

Transfers between Levels of the Fair Value Hierarchy

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the year.

Valuation Techniques used to Determine Level 2 and 3 Fair Values for Investment Properties
Significant Observable Inputs — Level 2 - The fair value for land assets has been based on the
market approach using current market conditions and recent sales prices and other relevant
information for similar assets in the local authority area. Market conditions for these asset types are
such that the level of observable inputs is significant leading to the properties being categorised at
Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Significant Unobservable Inputs — Level 3 - There are no land or property assets within the
Authority’s asset portfolio which are classed at Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

Highest and Best Use of Investment Properties

In estimating the fair value of the Authority’s investment properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.

Valuation Techniques

There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment
properties.
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Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the investment property are recognised in
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services — Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line.

Valuation Process for Investment Properties

The fair value of the Authority’s investment property is measured annually as at 31st March. All
valuations are carried out by external valuers, Wilks, Head and Eve, in accordance with the
methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors. The external valuers work closely with the Authority’s Estates Department
and finance officers reporting directly to the Chief Financial Officer on a regular basis regarding all
valuation matters.

NOTE 15: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Authority accounts for its software as intangible assets to the extent that the software is not an
integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the hardware item of Property,
Plant and Equipment. All software is given a finite useful life, based on assessments of the period
that the software is expected to be of use to the Authority. The carrying amount of intangible assets

is amortised on a straight-line basis.

2024/25 2023/24

Balance at start of the year: £'000 £'000
Gross carrying amounts 1,564 1,506
Accumulated amortisation (684) (488)
Net carrying amount at start of year 880 1,018
Additions:
Purchases - 62
Reclassification from Property, Plant and Equipment 63
Disposals: (15) (4)
Amortisation for the period: (215) (200)
Amortisation written off on disposal: 15 4
Net carrying amount at end of year 728 880
Comprising:
Gross carrying amounts 1,612 1,564
Accumulated amortisation (884) (684)

728 880

NOTE 16: ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Current Current |Non Current| Non Current
2024/25 2023/24 2024/25 2023/24
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance outstanding at 1st April 2024 - 6,743 - -
Assets newly classified as held for sale:
From Property, Plant and Equipment 3,010 - -
Transfers - (695) - -
Revaluations (1,829) - -
Assets sold: (515) (6,048) -
Balance outstanding at year-end 666 - - -
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NOTE 17: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of Financial Instruments
The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:

Financial Assets

Non-Current Current
£'000 £'000

Financial Assets: 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024

At amortised cost

- Principal - - - 1,000

- Accrued Interest - - 31 54

At Fair Value Through Other

Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

- Principal at amortised cost 25 25 - -

At Fair Value Through Profit & Loss - -

- Fair Value 2,604 2,555

Total Investments 2,629 2,580 31 1,054

Cash & cash equivalents:

- Cash (Including bank accounts) - - 860 765

- Amortised Cost - - 5,360 150

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents - - 6,220 915

Loans and Receivables :

- Debtors 17 18 7,864 8,419

Total Debtors 17 18 7,864 8,419

Total Financial Instrument Assets 2,646 2,598 14,115 10,388

Financial Liabilities

Non-Current Current
Total
Borrowings Creditors Borrowings Creditors
31-Mar-25 | 31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-25| 31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-25 | 31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-25| 31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-25
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Amor.tised Cost - (153,076)| (151,217) - -| (31,169)| (18,323) (7,977) (5,579)| (192,222)
Principal
Amortised cost -
accrued interest i i | (1329 (1.111) | (:329)
Total Financial
Liabilities (153,076)| (151,217) - -l (32,495)| (19,434) (7,977) (5,579)| (193,548)
Liabilities not
defined as financial - - - - - - (2,172) (4,851)| (2,172)
instruments
Total (153,076) (151,217) - -| (32,495)| (19,434)| (10,149)( (10,430)| (195,720)

Accrued interest on Non-Current assets and liabilities

is receivable or payable within 12 months.

is included in the Current columns because it
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The assets and liabilities not defined as financial instruments are the balances such as tax-based
debtors and creditors.

Classification of Assets and Liabilities

Some of the Council’s investments are fixed term deposits with UK banks, which are still valued on
an amortised basis. They are included in Long Term Investments and Short Term Investments on
the Balance Sheet, although as at 31 March 2025 they are all Short Term Investments. The
Council’s investments in money market funds and call accounts are valued at amortised cost and
the principal is included in Cash and Cash Equivalents.

The Council’s other investments continue to be carried on the Balance Sheet at fair value, assessed
on a recurring basis, and the following classifications have been used from 1 April 2018:

The Council’s investment in the Local Authorities’ Property Fund is classified as Fair Value through
Profit or Loss and the value at 31 March 2025 of £2.604m is included in the Long Term Investments
on the Balance Sheet. However due to statutory override, any unrealised gain or loss (shown in the
table below) is not charged to the revenue account. - it is posted to the Financial Instrument
Revaluation Reserve. This investment is classified as a Level 1 input, as explained in the
Accounting Policies (Note1), and the valuation technique used is the bid value of the units in the
Fund as at 31 March 2025, supplied by the Local Authorities’ Property Fund. Dividends are
received quarterly and are credited to the revenue account.

The Council holds two investments for policy purposes, which have been designated as Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income, because they are not held in order to collect contractual
cash flows and no income has been received:

- £25,000 of deferred shares in Boom Credit Union, which offers affordable loans in the West
Sussex and Surrey area,

- 75,000 ordinary shares with the UK Municipal Bonds Agency, which was set up to provide
financing choices for UK local authorities.

These investments are classified as Level 2 inputs, using “other significant observable inputs” to
arrive at the fair value. On this basis the Boom Credit Union holding is valued at cost and the UK
Municipal Bonds Agency holding was written down on 31 March 2020 from £25,000 to zero, due to
uncertainty regarding its future activity. The Boom Credit Union holding is included in Long Term
Investments on the Balance Sheet.

There were no transfers between input levels during the year and no changes in the valuation
techniques used.
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Income, Expense, Gains and Losses

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in
relation to financial instruments are made up as follows:

2024/25 2024/25 2023/24 2023/24
Surplus or Other Surplus or Other
Deficit on the | Comprehensive | Deficit on the | Comprehensive
Provision of Income and Provision of Income and
Services Expenditure Services Expenditure
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Net (gains)/losses on:
Financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss (change
in value in the Council's investment (49) - 104 -
in the Local Authorities' Property
Fund)
Fmanqal assets measured at 182 ) 193 i
amortised cost
Total net (gains)/losses 133 - 297 -
Interest revenue:
Financial assets measured at
amortised cost (222) ) (338) i
Other financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss
(dividends from the Local (133) ) (134) i
Authorities' Property Fund)
Total interest revenue (355) - (472) -
Interest expense 5,376 - 4,791 -
Fee expense on financial
liabilities that are not at fair 28 - 9 -
value through profit or loss

The losses and gains in assets measured at amortised cost relate to the change in the provisions for
losses on trade debtors calculated in accordance with accounting policies.

The Fair Values of Financial Liabilities and Financial Assets that are not measured at Fair
Value (but for which Fair Value Disclosures are required)

Except for the financial assets carried at fair value, described above, all other financial liabilities and
financial assets and long term debtors and creditors are carried on the Balance Sheet at amortised
cost. The following tables show the fair values of the liabilities and assets, which are all currently
within the Level 2 category in the valuation hierarchy. This uses “other significant observable inputs”
to arrive at the fair value.

The fair value of the reported carrying amounts at 31st March 2025 can be assessed by calculating
the present value of the cash flows that take place over the remaining life of the instruments, using
the following assumptions:-
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e For loans from the PWLB payable, prevailing market rates from the PWLB have been
applied to provide the fair value under PWLB debt redemption procedures. An additional
note to the tables sets out the alternative fair value measurement applying the premature
repayment rates, highlighting the impact of the alternative valuation.

e For non-PWLB loans payable, prevailing market rates have been applied to provide the fair
value.

e For loans receivable prevailing benchmark market rates have been used to provide the fair
value.

e No early repayment or impairment is recognised.

e Where an instrument has a maturity of less than 12 months or is a trade or other receivable
the fair value is taken to be the carrying amount or the billed amount.

The fair values for Financial Liabilities are compared with the carrying amounts as follows:

31st March 25 31st March 24
Carrying Carrying
Financial Liabilities Amount | Fair Value| Amount | Fair Value
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
PWLB Debt (165,143)| (147,452)| (146,799) (131,275)
Non-PWLB Debt (20,427) (19,286) (22,327) (22,260)
Total Borrowing (185,570)| (166,738)] (169,127)] (153,535)
Short Term Creditors (7,977) (7,977) (5,579) (5,579)
Total (165,207)[ (155,260) (174,706)| (159,114)

The fair value of the liabilities is lower than the carrying amount because the Council’s portfolio of
loans includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate payable is significantly lower than
the rates available for similar loans in the market at the Balance Sheet date. This shows a notional
future gain (based on economic conditions at 31st March 2025)

The fair value of Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) loans of £147.452m measures the economic
effect of the terms agreed with the PWLB compared with estimates of the terms that would be
offered for market transactions undertaken at the Balance Sheet date. The difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value measures the additional interest that the Council will pay over the
remaining terms of the loans under the agreements with the PWLB, against what would be paid if
the loans were at prevailing market rates.

The Council has used a transfer value for the fair value of financial liabilities. We have also
calculated an exit price fair value of £173.592m, which is calculated using early repayment discount
rates. The Council has no contractual obligation to pay any penalty costs and would not incur any
additional cost if the loans run to their planned maturity date. This amount is lower than the fair value
by new loan rate calculation, indicating that the council could be paid a discount were it to make
premature repayment of some debt, however there is not sufficient funds available at an appropriate
rate to make this decision viable.

The fair value of trade and other payables (creditors) is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.
The disclosure for Financial Liabilities excludes statutory creditors, consequently the creditors
figures differ from those in the Balance Sheet and the Creditors disclosure note.

The fair values for Financial Assets are compared with the carrying amounts as follows:
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31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
|Financial Assets - valued at amortised cost Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
Amount Amount
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Short term investments 31 31 1,054 1,054
Long term investments - . 1 -
Cash and cash equivalents 6,220 6,220 915 915
Short term debtors 7,864 7,864 8,419 8,419
|Long term debtors 17) 17 18 18|
Total 14,132 14,132 10,406 10,406|

The fair value of the financial assets is effectively the same as the carrying amount because the
Council’s fixed rate loans held at 31st March 2025 are at interest rates similar to the rates for similar
loans in the market at the Balance Sheet date, all of which are at less than 12 months to maturity.

The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount. The
disclosure for Financial Assets excludes statutory debtors, such as Council Tax, consequently the
debtors figures differ from those in the Balance Sheet and the Debtors disclosure note.

Nature and Extent of Risks Arising From Financial Instruments
The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The key risks are:
° credit risk — the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council

° liquidity risk — the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its
commitments to make payments

° refinancing risk — the possibility that the Council might need to renew a financial instrument
on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms

) market risk — the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of
changes in such measures as interest rates movements

Overall procedures for managing risk

The Council’'s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund services.
Risk management is carried out by the Adur-Worthing shared service, under policies approved by
the Council in the annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment
Strategy. The Council provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk and the investment of surplus
cash.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to
the Council’s customers.

This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which is available on the Council’s
website Joint Treasury Management Strategy & Annual Investment Strateqy 2024-25 to 2026-27

Credit Risk Management Practices

ADC Statement
of Accounts

Page 80


https://democracy.adur-worthing.gov.uk/documents/s11901/2024.02.08+-+JSC+-+Item+7+-+Joint+Treasury+Management+Strategy+2024-25+to+2026-27.pdf

The Council’s credit risk management practices are set out in the Annual Investment Strategy and
particular regard is given to determining whether the credit risk of financial instruments has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

The Annual Investment Strategy requires that deposits are not made with financial institutions
unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria, in accordance with the Fitch, Standard and
Poor’'s and Moody’s Credit Ratings Services. The Annual Investment Strategy also considers
maximum amounts and time limits with a financial institution located within each category.

Examples of the credit criteria in respect of financial assets held by the Council are:

- Credit ratings of Short Term of F1, Long Term A-, (Fitch or equivalent rating), with the lowest
available rating being applied to the criteria. Except for the UK, a minimum sovereign credit
rating of AA- will be used.

- UK institutions provided with support from the UK Government

- The top five Building Societies by asset size

Examples of the limits on the size and length of time of deposits are:

° Banks - £4m for a maximum of 5 years;

° Building Societies - £4m for the Nationwide and £2m for the others on the approved list, for a

maximum of 5 years;

° Money Market Funds (MMF) AAA rated - to be used for short term liquidity with a maximum
limit of £3m for any one MMF.

The full investment strategy for 2024/25 was approved by the Council on 23rd February 2023 and is
available on the Council’s website.

Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past
experience and other factors, with individual credit limits being set in accordance with internal
ratings in accordance with parameters set by the Council.

Amounts Arising from Expected Credit Losses

The Council’'s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its total investments of £5.350m in
money market funds or call accounts cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution
failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be specific to each individual
institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for investment counterparties with which the
Council holds investments to be unable to meet their commitments. Although the potential risk of
irrecoverability applies to all of the Council’s deposits, there was no evidence at the 31st March 2025
that this was likely to crystallise and there is no material Expected Credit Loss.

The following analysis summarises the Council’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk on other
financial assets, based on experience of default and uncollectibility.

This table excludes statutory debtors such as Council Tax/NNDR.
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Carrying Amount | Estimated Maximum | Estimated Maximum
at Exposure to Loss Exposure
Credit Risk Exposure 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
£'000 £'000 £'000
Lease debtors 97 9 34
Sundry debtors 7,864 1,644 1,429

The Council does not generally allow credit for its customers. Therefore all amounts outstanding
(apart from those amounts raised as accruals at 31st March 2025 as part of the final accounts
process) are past their due date. Exposure to losses on these debtors is assessed on an aged debt
basis as identified in the accounting policies and Note 18.

Credit Risk Exposure

At 31st March 2025 the Council held £0.360m of bank investments at credit rating A+ and £4.990m
of Money Market Fund investments rated at AAAmmf (both classified as Cash and Cash
Equivalents). There has been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and no
credit impairment.

Liquidity Risk

The Council manages its liquidity positions through the risk management procedures above (the
setting and approval of prudential indicators and the approval of the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement and Annual Investment Strategy reports), as well as through a comprehensive cash flow
management system, as required by the CIPFA Code of Practice. This seeks to ensure that cash is
available when needed.

The Council has ready access to borrowings from the money markets to cover any day to day cash
flow needs, and the Public Works Loan Board and money markets for access to longer term funds.
The Council is also required to provide a balanced budget through the Local Government Finance
Act 1992, which ensures sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure. There is,
therefore, no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under
financial instruments. All sums owing are due to be paid in less than one year.

Refinancing and Maturity Risk

The Council maintains a significant debt and investment portfolio. Whilst the cash flow procedures
above are considered against the refinancing risk procedures, longer-term risk to the Council relates
to managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments as they mature. This risk relates to
both the maturing of longer term financial liabilities and longer term financial assets.

The approved treasury indicator limits for the maturity structure of debt and the limits placed on
investments placed for greater than one year in duration are the key parameters used to address
this risk. The Council approved treasury and investment strategies address the main risks and the
central treasury team addresses the operational risks within the approved parameters. This
includes:

- monitoring the maturity profile of financial liabilities and amending the profile through either
new borrowing or the rescheduling of the existing debt; and

- monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for the
Council’s day to day cash flow needs, and the spread of longer term investments provides
stability of maturities and returns in relation to the longer term cash flow needs. The Council
has set a maximum limit of 50% for investments for more than 1 year.
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The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows, with the maximum and minimum limits for
fixed interest rates maturing in each period (approved by the Council in the Treasury Management

Strategy):

Approved | Approved | Actual 31 | Actual 31 | Actual 31 | Actual 31

Minimum | Maximum March March March March

Limits Limits 2025 2025 2024 2024
£'000s £'000s

Maturing within one year 0% 20% 18% (32,496) 11% (19,433)
Maturing in 1-2 years 0% 30% 12% (22,338) 10% (16,955)
Maturing in 2-5 years 0% 50% 19% (35,362) 16% (27,148)
Maturing in 5-10 years 0% 70% 22% (39,584) 19% (31,977)
Maturing in 10-20 years 0% 80% 13% (23,909) 23% (38,833)
Maturing in 20-30 years 0% 60% 3% (5,200) 2% (4,200)
Maturing in 30-40 years 0% 60% 6% (10,655) 7% (11,655)
Maturing in more than 40 years 0% 45% 9% (16,027) 12% (20,448)
TOTAL 100%| (185,571) 100%| (170,649)

The Council has one Lender Option Borrower Option loan totaling £3.25m. The structure of these
loan deals is such that they could be called for repayment, however it has been judged that the rate
of 6.66% “maturing in more than 40 years” line. This treatment will be reviewed with respect to
market interest rates each year.

All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year.
Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

The Council is exposed to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments. Movements
in interest rates have a complex impact on the Council, depending on how variable and fixed interest
rates move across differing financial instrument periods. For instance, a rise in variable and fixed
interest rates would have the following effects:

° borrowings at variable rates - the interest expense charged to the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services will rise

° borrowings at fixed rates — the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall

° investments at variable rates — the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services will rise

° investments at fixed rates — the fair value of the assets will fall (no impact on revenue
balances).

Borrowings are not carried at fair value on the Balance Sheet, so nominal gains and losses on fixed
rate borrowings would not impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. However, changes in interest payable and receivable on
variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services and affect the General Fund Balance. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate
investments that have a quoted market price will be reflected in the Other Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.
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The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The Annual Treasury
Management Strategy draws together the Council’s prudential and treasury indicators and its
expected treasury operations, including an expectation of interest rate movements. From this
Strategy a treasury indicator is set which provides maximum limits for fixed and variable interest rate
exposure. The central treasury team will monitor market and forecast interest rates within the year to
adjust exposures appropriately. For instance during periods of falling interest rates, and where
economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate investments may be taken for longer periods
to secure better long term returns, similarly the drawing of longer term fixed rates borrowing would
be postponed. All current borrowing is at fixed rates, although the Council has set a maximum limit
of 25% for variable rate borrowing.

The treasury management team has an active strategy for assessing interest rate exposure that
feeds into the setting of the annual budget and which is used to update the budget during the year.
This allows any adverse changes to be accommodated. The analysis will also advise whether new
borrowing taken out is fixed or variable.

According to this assessment strategy, at 31st March 2025, if all interest rates had been 1% higher
(with all other variables held constant) the financial effect would be:

£'000

Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments - impact on Surplus or

- . . 41
Deficit on the Provision of Services
Share of overall impact credited or debited to the HRA 61
Decrease in fair value of fixed rate investment assets - impact on Other 46
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowings liabilities (no impact on the Surplus
or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive Income and 9,029
Expenditure)

The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements
being reversed. These assumptions are based on the same methodology as used in the Note - Fair
Value of Assets and Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost.

Price Risk

The Council, excluding the pension fund, does not generally invest in equity shares or marketable
bonds and does not have shareholdings in joint ventures or local industry. The Council holds
£2.604m in the Local Authorities’ Property Fund as valued at 31st March 2025 and the value varies
based on the value of the underlying assets. However, any movements in price will not impact on
the General Fund Balance as regulations are in force to ameliorate the impact of fair value
movements.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and therefore has
no exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.
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NOTE 18: DEBTORS
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Amo.ur_lts falling due in one year net of bad debt impairment £1000s £1000s
provision:
Central Government Bodies 82 765
Other Local Authorities 5,278 6,094
NHS Bodies 72 11
Other Entities and Individuals 8,426 9,171
13,858 16,041
The past due amounts for customers can be analysed as follows.
Overall Aged Debt Analysis 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
£'000 £'000
Under 1 year 13,518 15,692
1-2years 6 32
2 - 3 years 38 22
Over 3 years 296 295
13,858 16,041
Long Term Debtors
Long Term Debtors 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
£'000s £'000s
Car loans 17 18
TOTAL 17 18
NOTE 19: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
£'000 £'000
Cash held/(overdrawn) by the Council 1 1
Bank Current Accounts 859 764
Call Accounts and Money Market Funds 5,360 150
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 6,220 915
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NOTE 20: CREDITORS
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
£'000s £'000s

Central Government Bodies (2,654) (3,598)
Other Local Authorities (5,323) (1,253)
NHS Bodies - -
Other Entities and Individuals (2,172) (5,579)
TOTAL (10,149) (10,430)
NOTE 21: PROVISIONS

The table below identifies the movements in the year in the amounts set aside for provisions. Below
the table is a brief description of the nature of each provision and any information on likely timings

and uncertainties surrounding its use.

Additional
Balance provisions | Amounts Balance
at made in used in at
31st Mar 24 | 2024/25 2024/25 | 31-Mar-25
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Business Rates Appeals (142) (2,229) 2,037 (334)
(142) (2,229) 2,037 (334)

Business Rates Appeals:

A provision has been made for appeals which are likely to be settled in favour of the appellant. This
is based on all known outstanding business rate appeals which have been lodged with the Valuation
Office together with an allowance for new appeals which may emerge in the future.

NOTE 22:

USABLE RESERVES

Movements in the Council's usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves Statement

on page 34.

NOTE 23:

UNUSABLE RESERVES

UNUSABLE RESERVES

Pension Reserve

Revaluation Reserve

Capital Adjustment Account
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account
Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve

Collection Fund Adjustment Account
TOTAL UNUSABLE RESERVES

ADC Statement
of Accounts

2024/25 2023/24
£'000s £'000s
(144,686) (138,912)
(41,672) (46,357)
415 418
446 495
10,140 3,203
1,130 1,086
(174,227) (180,067)
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Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the
value of its property, plant and equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated
gains are:

° revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
° used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
° disposed of and the gains are realised

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1% April 2007, the date that the
reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance
on the Capital Adjustment Account.

Revaluation Reserve 2024/25 2023/24
£'000 £'000
Balance at 1st April (138,912) (144,327)
Upward revaluation of assets (11,104) (5,672)
Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not 4983 5 981
charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services ’ ’
Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets
S . (6,121) 309

charged to other comprehensive income and expenditure
Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost 347 1,189
depreciation
Accumulated gains on assets sold - 3,917
Amount written off to Capital Adjustment Account 347 5,106
Balance at 31st March (144,686) (138,912)

Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account reflects the difference between the cost of long term assets
consumed and the capital financing assets set aside to pay for them. It is written down by capital
expenditure which does not result in the creation of a long term asset and the depreciated historical
cost of assets when sold.

The account contains accumulated gains and losses on investment properties and gains recognised
on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Council.

The account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on property, plant and equipment before
13t April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.
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Capital Adjustment Account 2024/25 2023/24
£'000 £'000

Balance at 1st April (46,357) (49,344)
Items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 4,148 5,103
Revaluation losses and reyersals of previous revaluation losses 2.024 2.819
on property, plant and equipment
Post Audit Revaluation to reflect register opening balances on (@)
Property, Plant and Equipment i
Amortisation of intangible assets 215 200
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute Current 1,660 2.161
Year
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute Prior i i
Years
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as
part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income 10,390 12,040
and Expenditure Statement
Net written .out amount of the cost of non-current assets 18,437 22,319
consumed in the year
Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve (347) (5,101)
Capital financing applied in the year:
Use of t.he Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 1668 (3,636)
expenditure
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance write down PWLB

. . - (3,000)
historic borrowing
Use of t.he Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital (9,318) (6,317)
expenditure
Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to (1,119) (1,853)
capital financing
Appllca'tlon of grants to capital financing from the Capital Grants (718) (1,560)
Unapplied Account
Stat.utory provision for the financing of capital investment charged (2,100) (1,575)
against the General Fund and HRA balances
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and HRA (79) (165)
balances

(12,013) (23,207)

Movements in the market value of investment properties debited
or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (1,739) 3,875
Statement
Balance at 31st March (41,672) (46,357)
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Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the
different arrangements for accounting for income and expenses relating to certain financial
instruments and for bearing losses or benefitting from gains per statutory provisions. The Council
uses the account to manage premiums paid on discounts received on the early redemption of loans.

Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve

The Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from
increases in the value of its investments that have quoted market prices or otherwise do not have
fixed or determinable payments. The balance is reduced when investments with accumulated gains
are:

e revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost

e disposed of and the gains are realised

Pension Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory
provisions. The Council accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating
the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any
resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to
be financed as the Council makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any
pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore
shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the
resources the Council has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that
funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

Pensions Reserve 2024/25 2023/24
£'000 £'000
Balance at 1st April 3,203 (22,229)
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability / (asset) 7,742 27,269
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 1,944 1,074

credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in
the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to (2,749) (2,911)
pensioners payable in the year
Balance at 31st March 10,140 3,203
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Collection Fund Adjustment Account

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the difference arising from the recognition of
council tax income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from
council tax payers compared with the statutory arrangements between the General Fund from the

Collection Fund.

Collection Fund Adjustment Account 2024/25 2023/24
£'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 1,086 1,522
Amount by which council tax income recognised in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different

. . : 190 230
from council tax income calculated for the year in accordance
with statutory requirements
Amount by which non domestic rates income recognised in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different

. . ) (146) (666)
from non domestic rates income calculated for the year in
accordance with statutory requirements
Balance at 31 March 1,130 1,086
NOTE 24: CASH FLOW - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Net
2024/25 2023/24
£'000 £'000

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:
Interest received 374 537
Interest paid (5,192) (3,690)
Total (4,818) (3,153)
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Cash Flow — Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net Net
2024/25 2023/24
£'000 £'000

Net Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services (6,865) (10,130)
Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for
non cash movements
Depreciation 5,014 5,103
Impairment and downward valuations 1,159 2,819
Amortisation 215 200
Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors 207 1,972
(Increase)/Decrease in Debtors (76) (2,563)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 7 3
Movement in Pension Liability (805) (1,837)
Contributions to/(from) Provisions 192 -
Carrying amount of non-current assets sold [property plant and 10,390 12,040
equipment, investment property and intangible assets]
Movement in Investment property values (1,791) 3,496

14,512 21,233
Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the
provision of services that are investing or financing
activities
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 798 (6,070)
investment property and intangible assets
Net capital Grants credited to surplus or deficit on the provision of (2,749) (3,204)
services

(1,951) (9,274)
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 5,696 1,829
NOTE 25: CASH FLOW - INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net Net
2024/25 2023/24
£'000 £'000

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property (20,555) (17,285)
and intangible assets
Purchase of short-term and long-term investments (142,425) (115,395)
Other payments for investing activities (9) (25)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment,
: : . 1,441 2,923
investment property and intangible assets
Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments 143,435 118,395
Other receipts from investing activities 2,760 3,225
Net cash flows from investing activities (15,353) (8,162)
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NOTE 26:

CASH FLOW - FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts of short- and long-term borrowing
Repayments of short- and long-term borrowing
Other payments for financing activities

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net Net
2024/25 2023/24
£'000 £'000
61,000 34,619
(46,293) (31,501)
254 (473)
14,961 2,645

NOTE 27: TRADING OPERATIONS

The former Direct Service Organisations are designated as trading accounts and a summary of their
trading results is shown below, together with other services treated as trading services. The Council
operates one trading account as shown below:

2024/25 2024/25 2024/25 2023/24
Gross Gross Net Net
Expenditure Income Income Income
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade Refuse 517 (753) (236) (214)
517 (753) (236) (214)

The trading account is consolidated within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
under other operating expenditure.

Through the Joint Strategic Committee, a trade waste service is provided for the collection of
commercial refuse. The service charges a commercial rate and is in direct competition with other
service providers. Surpluses are shared and credited back to the Council.

NOTE 28: AGENCY SERVICES

Adur District Council have entered into an Agency Agreement with West Sussex County Council to
improve the Parking Enforcement for the District. In 2024/25 income collected was £170,734.64,
(2023/24 £181,167.14) and expenditure was £169,669.56, (2023/24 £142,827.98). West Sussex
County Council contributes £59,593.46 towards this contract. £24,551.56 was returned to WSCC
after central recharges were completed, leaving a remaining cost of £23,486.48 to ADC.

The Council also has Agency Agreements with other Local Authorities for Treasury Management,
and Insurance Provision to provide Value for Money, relying on expertise within particular authorities.
These Agency Agreements are deemed by Adur Council to be immaterial.
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NOTE 29: MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES

The total allowances paid to Members were as follows:

2024/25 2023/24
£ £
270,714 267,859
NOTE 30: OFFICERS’ REMUNERATION

The senior officers who manage services and staff for Adur District Council and Worthing Borough
Council are employed by Adur District Council as part of the partnership arrangement. These
emoluments relate to the employment of senior officers by Adur District Council on behalf of both
Adur District Council and Worthing Borough Council.

The numbers of employees (including the senior officers who are also listed individually in the later
tables) whose remuneration, excluding pension contributions, was £50,000 or more, in bands of
£5,000 were:-

Number of Employees

Remuneration Bands 2024/25 2023/24
£50,000 to £54,999 33 24
£55,000 to £59,999 14 18
£60,000 to £64,999 10

8
£65,000 to £69,999 3 1
£70,000 to £74,999 2 5
£75,000 to £79,999* 2 2
£80,000 to £84,999 1 3
£85,000 to £89,999 7 1
£90,000 to £99,999 1 2
£95,000 to £99,999 - -
£100,000 to £104,999 - -
£105,000 to £109,999 - 3
£110,000 to £114,999 2 -
£115,000 to £119,999 - -
£120,000 to £124,999 - -
£145,000 to £149,999 - -
£150,000 to £154,999 - -

£155,000 to £159,999 - 1
£160,000 to £164,999 - -
£165,000 to £169,999 1 -

76 68

* These include redundancy, efficiency of service and settlement payments. Please see note 31
Exit Packages and Termination Benefits for a breakdown of these payments.

For the purpose of this note remuneration means all amounts paid to or receivable by an employee
during the year.
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Remuneration Disclosures for Senior Officers whose salary is £150,000 or more per year

Note 1: There was one member of staff whose salary was more than £150,000 in 2024/25 and in
2023/24.

Remuneration Disclosures for Senior Officers whose salary is less than £150,000 but equal to
or more than £50,000 per year

Note 2: The Chief Executive, Directors and Heads of Services are employed by Adur District
Council and provide services to both Adur District Council and Worthing Borough Council
as part of a formally agreed partnership arrangement where costs are shared and included
in the support service allocations to the authorities.

There were no bonuses paid to these staff in either 2024/25 or 2023/24.

Remuneration Disclosures for Senior Officers

Salary, |Compens Total Pension Total Net Cost Net Cost
Fees and | ation for | Remuneration| Contribut| Remunera- borne by borne by
Postholder Allowances Ioss. of excluqing -ion tion incl.uding Worthing | Adur D:C.
Office Pension Employer Pension B.C.and | Employing
Contributions Only Contributions | paid to Authority
Adur D.C.
Chief Executive
2024/25 166,626 166,626 29,966 196,592 98,296 98,296
2023/24 155,172 155,172 27,931 183,103 91,551 91,551
Director for Communities
2024725 111,317 111,317 20,025 131,342 78,805 52,537
2023/24 108,627 108,627 19,539 128,166 76,900 51,266
Director for Digital &
Resources
2024/25 112,233 112,233 20,202 132,435 79,461 52,974
2023/24 109,496 109,496 19,709 129,205 77,523 51,682
Director for the Economy
2024/25 - - - - - -
2023/24 107,994 107,994 19,330 127,323 77,667 49,656
AD Finance
Head of Finance
2024/25 89,582 89,582 16,125 105,707 52,853 52,853
2023/24 88,709 88,709 15,479 104,187 52,094 52,094
Head of Legal
Monitoring Officer
2024/25 89,582 89,582 16,125 105,707 56,141 49,566
2023/24 84,096 84,096 15,055 99,151 52,659 46,492
Head of Planning &
Development
Strategic Planning
2024/25 74,576 74,576 13,424 87,999 44,880 43,120
2023/24 80,080 80,080 14,375 94,455 48,172 46,283
AD Housing, Homelessness
& Prevention
2024/25 78,642 78,642 14,102 92,744 31,533 61,211
2023/24 74,840 74,840 13,453 88,293 30,020 58,273
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NOTE 31

TERMINATION BENEFITS

EXIT PACKAGES

OFFICERS’ REMUNERATION - EXIT PACKAGES AND

The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other
redundancies are set out below:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

. Number of Number of other | Total number of | Total cost of exit
Exit package cost band . .
. . . compulsory departures exit packages packages in each
(including special .
redundancies agreed by cost band band
payments)
2024/25(2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2023/24 [ 2024/25(2023/24| 2024/25 | 2023/24
£ £
£0 - £20,000 8 2 4 4 12 6| 79,367 56,444
£20,000 - £40,000 4 2 - 4 2| 106,815 69,573
£40,000 - £60,000 - - - - -| 44,465 -
£60,000 - £80,000 - - - - - - -
£80,000 - £100,000 - - - - - - -
Total cost included in 12 4 4 4 16 8| 230,647 126,017
bandings
g‘l’tEaé‘"’OSt included in 12 4 4 4 16 8| 230,647| 126,017

* These redundancy costs are shared between Worthing and Adur Councils in proportion to the service
allocation. The total cost of £230,647 in the table above includes £86,280 for exit packages that have been
charged to Adur's Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the current year.

TERMINATION BENEFITS

Redundancy costs
Enhanced Pension Benefits

Total termination benefit 2024/25

Total termination benefit 2023/24

Adur

£

86,280
46,098

132,378

192,786

Of this total, £86,280 is payable in the form of compensation for loss of office and £46,098 is the

2024/25 cost of enhanced pension benefits..
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NOTE 32: EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS

The Council incurred the following fees (all payable to Ernst and Young) relating to external audit.

2024/25 2023/24
£'000s £'000s
Fees payable to external auditors with regard to external audit
services carried out by the appointed auditor for the year 203 115
Fees payable to external auditors for the certification of grant
. 36 29
claims and returns for the year
TOTAL 239 144
NOTE 33: GRANT INCOME

The Council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statement:

2024/25 2023/24
£'000s £'000s

General Fund Grants & Donations
New Homes Bonus Scheme 3) (79)
Section 31 Grant (1,916) (1,652)
Revenue Support Grant (79) (74)
Lower Tier Services Grant - (104)
Services Grant (12) (71)
MHCLG Funding Guarantee Grant (543) (224)
Other (1) (16)
Total revenue grants credited to Taxation and Non specific Grant (2,564) (2,220)
Income
Capital Grants & Donations - Credited to Taxation & Non Specific
Grant Income
S106 Other Contributions (467) (676)
Homes England Housing (70) (150)
Sports Council (89) -
MHCLG Changing Places - (64)
MHCLG Land Release Fund - (269)
MHCLG Local Authority Housing Fund - (559)
MHCLG Shared Prosperity Fund (200) (20)
West Sussex County Council (63) (598)
Brighton & Hove CC (300) -
Worthing Borough Council (8) (8)
Other Grants & Donations (18) (62)

(1,215) (2,406)
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Credited to Services 2024/25 2023/24
£'000s £'000s
General Fund Grants & Donations
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) (1,508) (710)
Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) (155) (353)
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) (189) (28)
West Sussex County Council (416) (488)
Sussex Police and Crime Commissioner (2) (31)
Salix Low Carbon Skills Fund - (26)
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) - (24)
Neighbourhood Planning Grant - (75)
Other Grants (26) (60)
Total revenue grants credited to services (2,296) (1,795)
Capital Grants & Donations - credited to services
DLUHC Disabled Facilities Grant (882) (774)
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) (617) -
Environment Agency (35) (24)
Total Capital Grants and Donations (1,534) (798)
TOTAL GRANTS AND DONATIONS (7,609) (7,219)

The Council has received a number of grants, contributions and donations that have yet to be
recognised as income as they have conditions attached to them that will require the monies or
property to be returned to the giver if the conditions are not met. The balances at the end of the
year are as follows:

. ] 2024/25 2023/24

Revenue Grants Receipts in Advance
£'000s £'000s

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) (53) -
West Sussex County Council - (163)
Covid 19/ Contain Outbreak Management Fund - (1)
Household Support Fund - (6)
LEAP funding - (20)
Neighbourhood Planning Grant (3) -
UK Shared Prosperity Fund - (17)
Police and Crime Commissioner - (73)
Other Grants and Donations - (13)
TOTAL (219) (130)

NOTE 34: RELATED PARTIES
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The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties — bodies or individuals
that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the
Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council
might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability
to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council.

Central Government

Central government has significant influence over the general operations of the Council — it is
responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates, provides the
majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that
the Council has with other parties (e.g. council tax bills, housing benefits). Grants received from
government departments are set out in Note 33. Grant receipts which remain to be used at 31st
March 2025 are shown in Note 33.

Members

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies. The
total of members’ allowances paid in 2024/25 is shown in Note 29. During 2024/25 there was one
related party transaction declared by Councillors. In 2024/25 all contracts were entered into in full
compliance with the Council’s standing orders. Details of all members’ transactions are recorded in
the Register of Members’ Interests, open to public inspection on the Council’s website.

There was one related party transactions declared by officers in 2024/25
Other Public Bodies

The Council has a partnership arrangement with Worthing Borough Council for the sharing of a joint
officer structure.

Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Council

In January 2021 the Council entered into a 5 year agreement with South Downs Leisure for the
provision of leisure services within the District. During 2024/25 the Council made a service fee
payment of £13,163.

NOTE 35: CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including
the value of assets acquired under finance leases), together with the resources that have been used
to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as
assets are used by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that
has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note.
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2024/25 2023/24
£'000 £'000

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 176,367 174,427
Capital Investment
Property, Plant and Equipment 20,180 17,824
Heritage Assets - -
Investment Properties - -
Intangible Assets - 61
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 1,660 2,161
Sources of Finance
Capital receipts (1,089) (3,636)
Capital receipts write down of historic capital expenditure (Loan 2,757 (3,000)
finance)
Government grants and other contributions (1,838) (3,413)
Sums set aside from revenue:
Direct revenue contributions (79) (47)
MRP/loans fund principal (2,100) (1,575)
Revenue funding (9,317) (6,435)
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 186,542 176,367
Explanation of movements in year
Increase/ (Decrease) in underlying need to borrow

. . . 8,656 1,942
(unsupported by Government financial assistance)
Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement 8,656 1,942
NOTE 36: LEASES
Operating Leases - Lessor
The Council leases out property under operating leases for the following purposes:
0 for the provision of community services, such as sports facilities, tourism services and

community centres
0 for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for local
businesses

O as part of the Council’s Strategic Investment Policy to maximise rental income for the

Authority (see note 14).

Future minimum lease receipts are calculated using current receipt contract information. The future
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable leases in future years are:
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31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
£'000 £'000
Not later than one year 5,294 5,266
Later than one year and not later than five years 16,131 17,068
Later than five years 17,087 20,673
38,512 43,007

Operating Leases - Lessee

The Authority is the lessee of a number of properties which it sublets to tenants of Adur Homes. The
non-cancellable rentals due for lessor and lessee rents cannot be quantified with certainty, but are
deemed not to be material and therefore excluded from the tables above.

NOTE 37: OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
o Restated
Other Long Term Liabilities 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
See Note No. £'000s £'000s

Commuted Sums (8) (8)
Long Term Creditors - Property Deposits (283) (254)
Pension Reserve Liability 38 (10,140) (3,203)
TOTAL (10,431) (3,465)
NOTE 38: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

Participation in Pension Plans

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Council makes contributions
towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable
until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments (for those benefits) and
to disclose them at the time that employees earn their future entitiement.

The Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by West
Sussex County Council — this is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the
Council and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the
pension liabilities with investment assets.

Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits
We recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned
by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions

However, the charge we are required to make against council tax is based on the cash payable in
the year, so the real cost of post-employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General
Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the
Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:
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Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Consolidation of Joint

Local Government

Committee: Pension Scheme
Joint
Adur |Committee Total Total
2024/25 2024/25 2024/25 2023/24
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Cost of services
Current service cost 313 1,454 1,767 1,955
Past service cost 19 28 47 193
Financing & Investment Income & Expenditure
Net Interest cost 349 (219) 130 (1,074)
Total post emp_)k.)yment benef!t .charged to_the 681 1,263 1,944 1,074
surplus or deficit on the provision of services
Other post employment benefit charged to the CI&E
Statement
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability
comprising:
Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included (1,957) (1,943) (3,900) (4,560)
in the net interest expense)
Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in 113 79 192 (689)
demographic assumptions
Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in 6,844 7,855 14,699 (4,904)
financial assumptions
Other (if applicable) 798 382 1,180 3,533
Effect of Asset Ceiling adjustment (7,870) (12,043) (19,913) 33,889
Total remeas'ure.ments recognised in the other (2,072) (5,670) (7,742) 27,269
comprehensive income
Total post-employment benefits charged to the
CI&E statement (2,753) (6,933) (9,686) 26,195
Joint
Adur Committee Total Total
2024/25 2024/25 2024/25 2023/24
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Reversal of net charges made to the surplus or deficit
on the provision of services for post employment (681) (1,263) (1,944) (1,074)
benefits in accordance with the code
Actual amounts charged against the General Fund
balance for pensions in the year:
Employer's contributions payable to the scheme 1,072 1,515 2,587 2,758
Retirement benefits payable to pensioners 162 - 162 153
Total charged against the General Fund balance 1,234 1,515 2,749 2,911
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Pension Assets and Liabilities

Local Government Pension Scheme

Pensions Assets and Liabilities 2024/25 2023/2
Recognised in the Balance Sheet Adur Joint ol Adur Joint ot
C'ttee C'ttee
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 | £'000 £'000
Present value of the defined benefit obligation | (79,484)( (71,544)| (151,028)] (79,656)| (63,622)( (143,278)
Fair value of plan assets 70,253| 70,635| 140,888] 71,944| 68,131 140,075
Net asset / (liability) arising from defined
benefit obligation (9,231) (909)| (10,140)] (7,712)| 4,509| (3,203)
Local Government Pension Scheme
Reconciliation of the Movements in the 2024/25 2023/24
Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets - -
Adur | 201 rotar | Adur | 2O | total
C'ttee C'ttee
Opening fair value of scheme assets 71,944 68,131| 140,075| 69,380 61,704| 131,084
Interest income 3,377 3,329 6,706 3,224 2,962 6,186
Remeasurement gain / (loss):
The return on plan assets, excluding the (1,957) (1,943) (3,900)] 2,378 2,182 4,560
amount included in the net interest expense
Contributions from employer 1,234 1,515 2,749 1,275 1,636 2,911
Contributions from employees into the 115 555 670 101 566 667
scheme
Benefits paid (4,460) (952) (5,412)] (4,414) (919) (5,333)
Closing fair value of scheme assets 70,253 70,635 140,888| 71,944| 68,131| 140,075
Funded Liabilities : LGPS
Reco_ncil.i._a\t_ion of F_Jresent val_ue of_the_scheme 2024/25 2023/24
liabilities (defined benefit obligation) - -
Adur | 20N rotar | Adur | 297 | total
C'ttee C'ttee
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 | £'000 £'000
Opening Balance at 1st April (79,656)| (63,622)| (143,278)](66,147)| (42,708)| (108,855)
Current service cost (313) (1,454) (1,767) (303)| (1,652) (1,955)
Interest cost (3,726) (3,110)| (6,836)] (3,048)| (2,064) (5,112)
Contributions from scheme members (115) (555) (670) (101) (566) (667)
Remeasurement (gains) and losses:
Actuarial gains / losses arising from changes in 113 79 192 424 265 689
demographic assumptions
Actuarial gains / losses arising from changes in 6,844 7,855 14,699 2,002 2,902 4,904
financial assumptions
Other experience 798 382 1,180] (2,243)| (1,290) (3,533)
Effect of Asset ceiling adjustment (7,870)[ (12,043)] (19,913)](14,654)] (19,235)] (33,889)
Past service cost (19) (28) (47) - (193) (193)
Benefits paid 4,460 952 5,412 4,414 919 5,333
Closing balance 31st March (79,484) (71,544)| (151,028)| (79,656)( (63,622)| (143,278)
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Local Government Pension

Fair value of scheme assets

Scheme assets comprised 2024/25 2023/24
(quoted prices are in active - -
markets) Adur CoJm°r:;:tee Total Adur Co"m°r::;:tee Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 498.4 5011 999.5 826.3 782.5 1,608.8
Investment Funds and Unit
Trusts:
Bonds 20,947.2 21,060.6] 42,007.8] 20,762.4 19,661.7| 40,424 .1
Equities 34,399.6 34,585.5| 68,985.1| 36,043.2 34,132.0] 70,175.2
Total assets in active 55,845.2|  56,147.2| 111,992.4| 57,631.9| 54,576.2| 112,208.1
markets
Local Government Pension
Scheme ass.ets comprls.ed Adur Jourt Total Adur J0|r.|t Total
(quoted prices are not in Committee Committee
active markets)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Private Equity:
All 2,352.9 2,365.6 4,718.5( 2,148.8 2,034.9 4,183.7
Real Estate:
UK Property 5,945.8 5,978.0 11,923.8] 5,935.6 5,620.8 11,556.4
Investment Funds and Unit
Trusts
Infrastructure 3,330.6 3,349.2 6,679.8( 3,423.9 3,242.9 6,666.8
Other 2,778.5 2,794.0 5,672.5| 2,803.8 2,655.7 5,459.5
Total assets - not in active
14,407.8 14,486.8| 28,894.6( 14,3121 13,554.3| 27,866.4
markets
Total assets 70,253.0 70,634.0| 140,887.0| 71,944.0 68,130.5| 140,074.5

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities:

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an
estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about
mortality rates, salary levels, etc. Both the Local Government Pension Scheme and discretionary
benefits liabilities have been estimated by Hymans Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries,
estimates for the County Council Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at

315t March 2025.

The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been:
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Local Government Pension
Scheme
2024/25 2023/24

Mortality assumptions
Current pensioners:
Male 21.6 years 21.7 years
Female 23.7 years 23.8 years
Future pensioners:
Male 21.4 years 21.5 years
Female 25.5 years 25.5 years
Rate of inflation
Rate of increase in salaries 4.30% 4.30%
Rate of increase in pensions 2.80% 2.80%
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 4.80% 4.80%

The estimation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in
the table above. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably
possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for
each change that the assumption analysed changes while all other assumptions remain constant.
The assumptions for longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for
men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may
be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have been assessed on an actuarial basis
using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the
sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used in the previous period.

Approximate
% increase to | Approximate
Employer monetary
Change in assumptions at 31st March 2024 Liability amount (£000)
0.1% decrease in Real Discount Code 1% 635
1 year increase in member life expectancy 4% 2,250
0.1% increase in Salary Increase Rate 0% 4
0.1% increase in the Pension Increase Rate 1% 649

Included within the actuary assumptions is the potential impact to the Council of the ongoing legal
case concerning alleged age discrimination in the administration of public sector pension schemes
at a national level. The Court of Appeal has issued a decision regarding transitional arrangements
for the benefit changes. The ruling has implications for the Local Government Pension Scheme and
Firefighters Pension Scheme since similar reforms have been implemented by these schemes.

The outcome for the employer liabilities is not clear, since the Government may appeal and
timescales for resolution may be lengthy. Any remediation process, including cost cap
considerations, may also affect the resolution, and so the financial impact at an overall scheme level
cannot be estimated at this time. Should an obligation arise, any increase in current or past service
costs may affect employer pension contributions in future years, potentially as part of a deficit
recovery plan.

Impact on the Council’s Cash Flow:

The Council anticipates paying £0.968m contributions to the scheme in 2025/26 and approximately
£1.478m contributions to the Adur-Worthing Joint Services scheme (40% share).
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NOTE 39: HERITAGE ASSETS NOT REPORTED IN THE BALANCE SHEET

The following assets are not reported in the Balance Sheet because information on the cost or value
of these assets is not available due to the lack of comparative information and the unique nature of
these assets; the cost of obtaining a valuation would not be commensurate with the benefits to the
users of the financial statements.

Buckingham Park House Ruin: Comprises the remains of an old listed building situated in
Buckingham Park - a valuation has not been obtained due to the unique nature of this asset.

Buckingham Farm Dovecote: This is a listed building situated on an open space which old records
indicate was transferred to the Council in about 1974. No valuation is available due to the unique
nature of the asset.

War Memorial, adjacent to St. Mary’s Church, Shoreham: The Council does not hold cost
information on this monument and the cultural significance of this monument cannot be valued.

NOTE 40: TRUST FUNDS

The Council acts as a trustee for two Charities; Adur Recreation Ground (271495) and The Green
(290683). In both cases the land was gifted to the Council to maintain, and any income generated is
offset against the cost of this maintenance.

NOTE 41: JOINT BUDGETS

All Services (except for services relating to the Housing Revenue Account) that can operate as a
shared service have now moved across to the Joint Strategic Committee. The Joint Strategic

Committee accounts are proportionately consolidated into the Council’s financial statements.

Gross Gross Net
Expenditure | Income | Expenditure
2024/25 2024/25 2024/25
£'000 £'000 £'000
NET EXPENDITURE ON SERVICES
Net Cost Of General Fund Services 18,320 (3,406) 14,914
Holding Accounts 9,835 (455) 9,381
NET COST OF SERVICES 28,155 (3,861) 24,294
Financing Investment and expenditure 609
Funded by:
Adur District Council (10,268)
Worthing Borough Council (15,112)
(Surplus) or deficit on provision of services (478)
Remeasurement of the net defined pension benefit
liability
Other Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income & Expenditure (478)
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HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

HRA
Note

INCOME

Dwelling rents

Non-dwelling rents

Charges for services and facilities
Contributions towards expenditure

Total Income

EXPENDITURE

Repairs and maintenance
Supervision and management

Rents, rates, taxes and other charges
Depreciation

Revaluation and impairment of non-current
assets

Movement in the allowance for bad debts

5&9

10

Total Expenditure

Net (Income) / Cost of HRA Services as
included in the whole authority CI&E
Statement

HRA services share of Corporate and
Democratic Core

Net (Income) / Cost of HRA Services

HRA share of the operating income and
expenditure included in the CI&E

Statement

(Gain) or loss on sale of HRA non-current 1
assets

Derecognition of assets 1
Interest payable and similar charges

HRA Interest and Investment income

Net interest on the net defined benefit
liability (asset)
Capital grants and contributions receivable

Deficit / (surplus) for the year on HRA
Services

2024/25 2023/24
Net Expenditure Net Expenditure
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

(14,302) (12,863)
(509) (497)
(1,635) (1,748)
(1,743) (791)

(18,189) (15,899)
4,853 4,681
4,631 4,235
449 255
3,370 3,570
1,157 2,927
9 193

14,469 15,861

(3,720) (38)

370 351

(3,350) 313
(374) (52)
9,768 5,450
2,736 2,048
- (373)
262 (287)
(70) (418)

12,322 6,368

8,972 6,681
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HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) NOTES

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

The HRA Income and Expenditure Statement above shows the economic cost in the year of
providing housing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than
the amount to be funded from rents and government grants. Authorities charge rents to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations, this may be different from the accounting cost.

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT ON THE HRA BALANCE

The increase or decrease in the HRA Balance in the year, on the basis of which rents are raised, is
shown in the movement on the HRA Statement, as follows:

Statement of Movement on the HRA Balance 2024/25 2023/24
£'000s £'000s

Balance on the HRA at the end of the previous reporting period (697) (1,079)
Surplus or (deficit) for the year on the HRA Income and 8,972 6,681
Expenditure Account
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under (9,962) (6,813)
statute
Net (Increase) or Decrease before transfers to reserves (990) (132)
Net transfers to or (from) Earmarked Reserves
Contribution from the New Development & Acquisition Reserve 200 (31)
Transfer to HRA Discretionary Assistance Fund - (2)
Transfer to/(from) HRA Business Improvement Reserve 200 -
Transfer to/(from) Courtfields Sinking fund 67 547
Total net transfers to/from earmarked reserves 467 514
Balance on the HRA at the end of the current reporting period (1,220) (697)

The Statement of Movement on the HRA Balance reconciles the reported surplus or deficit for the
year shown on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement with the HRA balance at the
end of the year, and is calculated in accordance with the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.

Part of the reconciliation includes adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
statute to ensure that the HRA balance is determined in accordance with proper practices. These
adjustments are disclosed in Note 1.
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT ON HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

Items included in the HRA Income and Expenditure Account
but excluded from the movement on HRA statement for the
year.

Gain or loss on sale of HRA non-current assets

Derecognition of assets

HRA share of contributions to or from the Pensions Reserve
Transfers to/(from) Capital Adjustment Account

Voluntary Provision for Repayment of Debt

Transfers to/(from) Major Repair Reserve

Amounts not included in the Income and Expenditure
Account, but required by statute to be included when
determining the Movement on the Housing Revenue
Account for the year

Amortisation of Premiums

Capital grants and contributions repayable

Capital grants unapplied

Capital expenditure funded by the HRA

Net additional amount required to be debited or (credited) to
the Housing Revenue Account balance for the year.

2024/25 2023/24
£'000s £'000s

374 52

(9,768) (5,450)

519 1,093

(4,527) (6,496)

3,370 3,570

(10,032) (7,231)

70 258

160

(9,962) (6,813)

NOTE 2: NUMBER OF TYPES OF DWELLING IN THE HOUSING STOCK

31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Number Number
Houses 996 984
Bungalows 169 168
Flats 1,411 1,357
TOTAL DWELLINGS 2,576 2,509

The Authority recognised the following assets as held for sale during 2024/25:

e 1 Council Dwelling being sold under ‘Right to Buy’ Regulations was reclassified as held for

sale.

e 7 sales of ‘Right to Buy’ Council Dwellings completed in 2024/25.
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NOTE 3: TOTAL BALANCE SHEET VALUE OF LAND, HOUSES AND OTHER

PROPERTY WITHIN THE HRA

Council Dwellings

Other Land and Buildings

Infrastructure

Assets Under Construction

Total Balance Sheet Value of Land, Houses and the Other
Property

31st March 31st March
2025 2024
£'000s £'000s
211,376 203,772
6,320 5,950
17 18
22 A77 18,164
240,190 227,904

NOTE 4: VACANT POSSESSION VALUE OF DWELLINGS WITHIN THE HRA

Vacant Possession Value of Dwellings within the HRA

2024/25 2023/24
£ £
640,533 617,491

The vacant possession value and Balance Sheet value of dwellings within the HRA show the
economic cost of providing council housing at less than market rents.

NOTE 5: MOVEMENTS ON THE MAJOR REPAIRS RESERVE

Balance at 1st April
Capital expenditure funded from Major Repairs Reserve

Statutory provision equal to the annual depreciation charges to
finance future capital expenditure or borrowing

Transfer from the MRR to abate the depreciation charge to the
value of the Notional Major Repairs Allowance

Balance of Major Repairs Reserve at 31st March

2024/25 2023/24
£'000s £'000s

5,949 8,696

(9,319) (6,317)

3,370 3,570

- 5,949

From 2017/18 contributions made to the Major Repairs Reserve are equivalent to the depreciation
charge made. This is a cash backed reserve that can be used to fund capital expenditure or repay

debt.

ADC Statement
of Accounts

Page 109



NOTE 6:

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCING WITHIN THE HRA

2024/25 2023/24
EXPENDITURE £'000s £'000s
Council Dwellings 10,890 6,117
Other Properties - 9
Assets Under Construction 6,289 9,179
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 17,179 15,305
FINANCING
Capital Grants and Contributions 70 573
HRA usable Capital Receipts 550 1,900
Borrowing 7,241 6,515
Major Repairs Reserve 9,318 6,317
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE FINANCED 17,179 15,305
NOTE 7: CAPITAL RECEIPTS

2024/25 2023/24
Capital Receipts from the disposal of HRA property £'000s £'000s
Sale of Council Dwellings 877 70
Less Administration Costs (10) (1)
Lease Extensions 21 31
Mortgage Receipts received from previous years sale of Council i i
Dwellings

888 100
Retained for capital investment 888 100
Paid to central government - -
888 100

NOTE 8:

DEPRECIATION FOR THE LAND, HOUSES, OTHER PROPERTY,

EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITHIN THE HRA IN YEAR

Council Dwellings

Other Land and Buildings
Infrastructure

Equipment

Intangible Assets

TOTAL DEPRECIATION IN YEAR

2024/25 2023/24
£'000s £'000s
3,215 3,403
71 78
1 1
63 68
20 20
3,370 3,570
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NOTE 9: REVALUATION

In 2024/25, the revaluation of the Housing Revenue Account dwellings by external valuers at 31st
March 2025 resulted in a net increase in the Authorities housing stock value of £10.3m, that also
increased the value of the Revaluation Reserve. This included underlying increases of £10.387m
and decreases of £0.067m.

There was a net decrease in the value of HRA Other Land and Buildings of £1.3m, mainly due to the
impending sale of the Ashcroft development site, which reduced the Revaluation Reserve.

NOTE 10: HRA SHARE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO OR FROM THE PENSION
RESERVE

Under the provisions of 1AS19, £246,800 has been debited to the Housing Revenue Account in
respect of the portion/share of contributions allocated to the Pension Reserve.

NOTE 11: RENT ARREARS

31st March 31st March
2025 2024
£'000s £'000s
Gross arrears as at 31st March 1,901 1,605
Bad Debt provision for uncollectable debts 737 755
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COLLECTION FUND INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March 2025

These accounts represent the transactions of the Collection Fund which is a statutory fund separate
from the General Fund of the Council. The Collection Fund accounts independently for income
relating to council tax and business rates on behalf of those bodies (including the Council's own
General Fund) for whom the income has been realised. Administration costs are borne by the
General Fund.

Adur District Council
COLLECTION FUND - COUNCIL TAX AND BUSINESS RATES
2024/25 2023/24
Business | Council Business | Council
Rates Tax TOTAL Rates Tax TOTAL

INCOME (A) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Council Tax Receivable 50,921 50,921 48,049 48,049
Business Rates Receivable 19,641 19,641 18,360 - 18,360
TOTAL INCOME (C) = (A+B) 19,641 50,921 70,562 18,360 48,049 66,409
EXPENDITURE (D)
Contribution From Previous Year
Surplus / Deficit (-)
Central Government (1,157) (1,157) (1,607) - (1,607)
Adur District Council (926) (146) (1,072) (1,286) 97 (1,189)
West Sussex County Council (231) (693) (924) (322) 503 181
Sx Police & Crime Commissioner (102) (102) 73 73

(2,314) (941) (3,255) (3,215) 673 (2,542)
Precepts, Demands & Shares (E)
Central Government 10,538 10,538 9,781 - 9,781
Adur District Council: 8,431 8,431 7,824 - 7,824
Adur DC (Excl. Parish Precept) 7,479 7,479 - 7,108 7,108
Lancing Parish Council 354 354 - 338 338
Sompting Parish Council 103 103 - 103 103
West Sussex County Council 2,107 38,432 40,539 1,956 35,832 37,788
Sussex Police and Crime Commissioner 5,667 5,667 - 5,263 5,263

21,076 52,035 73,111 19,561 48,644 68,205
Charges to Collection Fund (F)
Less: Write off of uncollectable amounts - (1) 1) 12 21 145
Less: Inc / Dec (-) in Bad Debt Provision (50) 1,117 1,067 158 209 (425)
Less: Inc / Dec (-) in Provision for 480 480 95 - (257)
Appeals
Less: Cost of Collection 84 84 85 - 84

514 1,116 1,630 350 230 (453)

TOTAL EXPENDITURE (G) = (D+E+F) 19,276 52,210 71,486 16,696 49,547 65,210
(Sé"(s; Def. (-) arising during the year 365|  (1,289) (924) 1,664|  (1,498) 1,199
Surplus / Deficit (-) b/fwd. 01.04.24 (2,296) (1,095) (3,391) (3,960) 403 (3,557)
Surplus / Deficit (-) c/fwd. 31.03.25 (1,931) (2,384) (4,315) (2,296) (1,095) (2,358)
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NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

NOTE 1: COUNCIL TAX

Council Tax income is based on the value in 1991 of residential properties, which are classified into
eight valuation bands, including a variant on Band A in respect of disabled relief. The total numbers
of properties in each band are adjusted and then converted to a Band D equivalent, which when
totalled and adjusted for valuation changes and losses on collection, forms the Council’s tax base.
The Council Tax Base for 2024/25 was 22,409.9 band D equivalents.

Individual charges per dwelling are calculated by dividing the total budget requirement of West
Sussex County Council, the Sussex Police and Crime Commissioner and Adur District Council by
the Council Tax Base calculated above.

Demand Council Average Band D
or Precept Tax Council Tax
£ Base £
West Sussex County Council £38,431,858.00 + 22,409.9 1,714.95
Sussex Police & Crime Commissioner £5,667,687.81 + 22,409.9 252.91
Adur District Council £7,935,730.00 + 22.409.9 354.12

NOTE 2: BUSINESS RATES

For 2024/25, the authority participated in the West Sussex County Council Business Rates Pool.
The pool consists of Adur District Council, Mid Sussex District Council, Arun District Council, and
West Sussex County Council. The levy for 2023/24 was paid into the West Sussex County Council
Pool and used to fund economic regeneration initiatives throughout the County area. Without the
Pool, the levy would be paid to DLUHC and not retained for the benefit of the residents of West
Sussex.

The funds generated by the Pool are used to fund projects which promote economic regeneration
projects, contributions to the Local Economic Partnerships (LEPS) and other invest to save
initiatives. The levy payment is shown within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

Business rates are collected by the Council from local businesses using a uniform rate supplied by
the Government for the Country as a whole which was 49.9p in 2024/25 (49.9p in 2023/24) and local
rateable values. The total non-domestic rateable value at the end of the year for the district was
£53.6m (£52.6m in 2023/24).
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NOTE 3: BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS

A requirement of £2,893k and £162k for bad and doubtful debts for Council Tax and Business Rates
has been provided for in 2024/25 in line with Adur District Council's accounting policy for maintaining
the provision.

NOTE 4: APPORTIONMENT OF BALANCES TO MAJOR PRECEPTORS OF
COUNCIL TAX

This note shows the apportionment of balances into the parts attributable to the major precepting
authorities.

Apportionment of Balances to Major Preceptors
Sussex
Police &
West Sussex Crime
County Commissione | Adur District
Council r Council TOTAL
£ £ £ £
Apportionment based on 2025/26 demand 74.02% 10.97% 15.01% 100%
Council Tax Arrears 3,983,029 590,459 807,529 5,381,017
Provision for Bad Debts (2,141,323) (317,438) (434,137) (2,892,898)
Receipt in Advance (628,443) (93,163) (127,412) (849,018)
(Surplus)/Deficit 1,764,610 261,592 357,762 2,383,964
Balance as at 31st March 2025 2,977,873 441,450 603,742 4,023,065

NOTE 5: APPORTIONMENT OF BUSINESS RATES BALANCES TO MAJOR
PRECEPTORS

This note shows the apportionment of balances into the parts attributable to the major precepting
authorities. There is an exceptionally large deficit attributable to the expanded reliefs, mainly for retail
businesses. This is compensated by section 31 grants from DLUHC which are received in the General fund.
See note 11 - Non ring fenced Government grants.

Apportionment of Business Rates Balances to Major Preceptors
Department of
Communities and| West Sussex Adur District
Local Govt County Council Council TOTAL
£ £ £ £

Business Rates Arrears 314,577 62,916 251,662 629,155
Provision for Bad Debts (80,850) (16,170) (64,680) (161,700)
Provision for Appeals (2,786,511) (557,302) (2,229,210) (5,573,023)
RV List Amendments 2,369,191 473,838 1,895,353 4,738,382
Receipt in Advance (966,434) (193,287) (773,147) (1,932,868)
(Surplus)/Deficit 965,778 193,156 772,624 1,931,558
Balance as at 31st March 2025 (184,249) (36,849) (147,398) (368,496)

ADC Statement
of Accounts Page 114



ADUR DISTRICT

COUNCIL

Annual Governance Statement 2024/2025

Legislation requires local Authorities to prepare and publish an Annual Governance Statement to report
publicly on the effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements. It provides an overview of the
current governance framework and a summary of the review of the effectiveness of Adur District Council
governance framework. Governance refers to the arrangements that are put in place to ensure the
intended outcomes for local people are defined and achieved. It comprises the systems and processes,
culture and values, by which local government bodies are directed and controlled. Good governance is
about making sure the Council does the right things, in the right way for the right people, in a timely
inclusive, open, honest and accountable manner.

Current Scope of Responsibility

Adur District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law
and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used
economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act
1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

The Council has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance, which is consistent with the
principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 2016 (the
Framework). The Framework expects that local authorities will put in place proper arrangements for the
governance of their affairs and which facilitate the effective exercise of functions and ensures that the
responsibilities set out above are met.

At least once a year, Local Authorities are statutorily required to review their governance arrangements.
The preparation and publication of an Annual Governance Statement in accordance with the Framework
fulfils this requirement.

A copy of the code is on our website at www.adur-worthing.gov.uk. This statement explains how Adur
District Council has complied with the code and also meets the requirements of regulation 6 of the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 in relation to the publication of a statement on internal control.

Continuous Improvement of Assurance

In addition to the above, in May 2024, the Local Government Association (LGA) published an
Improvement and Assurance Framework for Local Government.

Councils who are responsible for their own performance and improvement. This is recognised in the
‘sector-led improvement’ approach which is underpinned by key principles that councils:

) are primarily accountable locally, not nationally;
° have a sense of collective responsibility for the performance of the local government sector.
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In order to comply with the best value duty to secure continuous improvement in the way the authority’s
functions are exercised, each council must take appropriate measures to gain assurance both of the
performance of its services and of its corporate governance. Through a focus on effective assurance,
councils can mitigate the risks and costs of failure and their impacts on local residents and businesses.

The Improvement and Assurance Framework aims to promote understanding of good governance and
increase the effectiveness of assurance in the public sector. Its aim is to reduce the risk and costs related
to statutory or non-statutory intervention, whether by central government or other regulators, it is also
intended to make it easier for local residents and businesses to understand how to hold their local
authority to account.

The Framework highlights the requirement for there to be a collective responsibility for the performance of
local government. It is not just the responsibility of the monitoring officer or the head of internal audit. All
Members have a responsibility to oversee effective governance, and all officers have a duty to comply with
good governance and provide information to demonstrate that compliance.

Assurance cannot be gained ‘by numbers’ or a one-off event: there is no simple list of yes/ no indicators
which will help a council decide whether or not it can be assured of its performance or governance. It is
achieved through a series of nuanced, qualitative judgements, often informed by assessments of
behaviours and relationships. It is essential to consider numerous sources of evidence to gain a view of
the council in the round.

During 2024 the Council’s leadership team has been proactively improving our assurance framework. The
Director for Sustainability and Resources has been leading on a core services redesign to increase
efficiency and effectiveness of our internal governance controls. The Director has been briefing Members
and is taking a report to the Joint Audit & Governance Committee in May 2025 to explain the process
improvements to be put in place during 2025.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

Governance comprises the arrangements put in place to ensure that intended outcomes for stakeholders
are defined and achieved. To deliver good governance in the public sector entities must try to achieve their
entity objectives while acting in the public interest.

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which the
Council is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads
the community. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to
consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a
reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of
the Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the
impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at the Council for the financial year ended 31st March 2025
and up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts.

The Governance Framework
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The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the Council’s governance arrangements

are summarised below:

Key elements of the Council’s Governance Framework

Council, Executive and

Leader

e Provides leadership
and develops the
Councils vision of its
purpose and intended
outcome for residents
and service users.

e Develops the vision
into objectives for the
Council and its
partnerships

Decision making

All decisions are made
in the open

Decisions are recorded
on the Council website
The scheme of
delegations which
details the decision
making arrangements
is regularly updated
The Monitoring Officer
ensures that all
decisions made
comply with relevant
laws and regulations

Risk Management

Risk registers
identify both
operational and
strategic risks
Key risks and
opportunities are
considered by the
Corporate
Leadership Team
every quarter

Risks and
opportunities are
reported to the Joint
Audit and
Governance
Committee every
quarter and inform
the work of the
internal audit team
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Scrutiny and Review

e The Joint Overview and Scrutiny
Committee reviews Council policy
and can challenge the decisions
made.

e The Joint Audit and Governance
Committee undertakes all of the
core functions of an audit
committee.

e The Joint Audit and Governance
Committee is responsible for review
and approving the Councils
Governance arrangements and
undertakes the role of a Standards
Committee ensuring that members
comply with the Code of Conduct

Corporate Leadership Team

e The Council's Corporate Leadership
Team comprises of the Chief Executive,
the three Directors, Assistant Directors
and the Head of Technology who are
responsible for the delivery of the
Council's aims and objectives

e The head of paid service is the Chief
Executive who is responsible for all
Council Staff and leading an effective
Corporate Leadership Team.

e CLT seeks advice from the Council’s
Chief Financial Officer (Assistant
Director Finance) who is responsible for
safeguarding the Council’s financial
position

e CLT seeks advice from the Monitoring
Officer who is the Assistant Director
Legal and Democratic Services. They
are responsible for ensuring legality and
promoting high standards of public
conduct.

e The three statutory officers meet on a
regular basis to hold ‘golden triangle
meetings’, their purpose is to consider
any specific issue and to ensure good
administrative, financial, and ethical
governance by fostering collaboration
and providing clear, impartial advice to
the authority, its elected members, and
key stakeholders.

The Operation of the Governance Framework

The governance framework gives the Members and the Organisation the confidence and certainty that
what needs to be done is being done. The operation of this authority’s governance framework is described
in the sections below. This sets out how the Council has complied with the seven principles set out in the
Framework during 2024/25.

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and respecting the
rule of law.

The constitution sets out how the Council operates; the roles and responsibilities of members, officers and
the scrutiny and review functions; how decisions are made; and the procedures that are followed to ensure
that these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local people. It is regularly reviewed and updated
to ensure it reflects current practice. As well as working together as a single organisation and with our
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neighbour Worthing borough Council, members and officers continue to improve their working relations
with other organisations, both locally and sub-nationally, to achieve a common purpose of improved
efficiency and effectiveness.

Head of Paid Services

The role of the Chief Executive, also known as the Head of Paid Services is appointed in accordance with
Section 4 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 to ensure that all the authority’s functions are
properly co-ordinated as well as organising staff and appointing appropriate management.

The Monitoring Officer

The Monitoring Officer is a statutory function and ensures that the Council, its officers, and its elected
members, maintain the highest standards of conduct in all they do. The Monitoring Officer ensures that the
Council is compliant with laws and regulations, as well as internal policies and procedures. She is also
responsible for matters relating to the conduct of Councillors and Officers, and for monitoring and
reviewing the operation of the Council's Constitution. The Monitoring Officer for Adur District Council and
Worthing Borough Council is Joanne Lee who is also the Assistant Director of Legal and Democratic
Services.

Section 151 Officer

Whilst all Council Members and Officers have a general financial responsibility, the s151 of the Local
Government Act 1972 specifies that one Officer in particular must be responsible for the financial
administration of the organisation and that this Officer must be Consultative Committee of Accountancy
Bodies (CCAB) qualified. The Section 151 Officer for Adur District Council and Worthing Borough Council
is Emma Thomas, who is also the Assistant Director, Finance.

Codes of Conduct
Codes of Conduct exist for both staff and members.

All Councillors have to keep to a Code of Conduct to ensure that they maintain the high ethical standards
the public expect from them. If a complainant reveals that a potential breach of this Code has taken place,
Adur District Council or Worthing Borough Council may refer the allegations for investigation or decide to
take other action.

On joining the Council, Officers are provided with a contract outlining the terms and conditions of their
appointment. All staff must declare any financial interests, gifts or hospitality on a public register.
Additionally, members are expected to declare any interests at the start of every meeting that they attend
in accordance with Standing Orders. Members and officers are required to comply with approved policies.

Whistleblowing

The Council is committed to achieving the highest possible standards of openness and accountability in all
of its practices. The Council's Whistle Blowing Protocol is regularly reviewed and found in the Council’s
Constitution at Part 5. It sets out the options and associated procedures for Council staff to raise concerns
about potentially illegal, unethical or immoral practice and summarises expectations around handling the
matter.

Anti-fraud, bribery and corruption

The Council is committed to protecting any funds and property to which it has been entrusted and expects
the highest standards of conduct from Members and Officers regarding the administration of financial
affairs.
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The Councils have a Corporate Anti-Fraud Team which acts to minimise the risk of fraud, bribery,
corruption and dishonesty and recommends procedures for dealing with actual or expected fraud. The
Council has an approved Counter Fraud Policy and Strategy Statement which can be found on the
internet.

Guidance and policies for staff on the Bribery Act 2010 and the Prevention of Money Laundering are found
on the intranet.

Joint Audit and Governance Committee

This committee has responsibility for reviewing reports that deal with issues that are key to good
governance and undertakes the function of an Audit and Standards Committee.

B. Ensuring Openness and Comprehensive Stakeholder Engagement

Transparency

The Council and its decisions are open and accessible to the community, service users, partners and its
staff.

All reports requiring a decision are considered by appropriately qualified legal, and finance staff with
expertise in the particular function area before they are progressed to the relevant Committee or group.
This Council wants to ensure that equality considerations are embedded in the decision-making and
applied to everything the Council does. To meet this responsibility, equality impact assessments are
carried out on all major council services, functions, projects and policies in order to better understand
whether they impact on people who are protected under the Equality Act 2010 in order to genuinely
influence decision making.

All reports and details of decisions made can be found on the Council's website at
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/meetings-and-decisions/

Freedom of Information enquiries

The Freedom of Information Act 2000 (Fol) gives anyone the right to ask for any information held by a
public authority, which includes this Council, subject only to the need to preserve confidentiality in those
specific circumstances where it is proper and appropriate to do so.

Engagement and communication

Good governance means working openly and involving people in decisions that affect them. This year,
we’'ve made big steps to improve how we communicate and how we support people to take part in shaping
their places.

We've continued to improve how we share information with residents, businesses and community groups.
Our communications are now more focused on the things that matter most to people. We've focused on:

° Using plain English and clear messaging so people understand what the council is doing.
° Sharing real stories and examples that show how services are making a difference.

° Responding quickly during emergencies, working with partners to keep people informed.
Engagement

As Councils for the community we are supporting residents, staff and partners to be more involved in being
able to make a difference to improve local places.
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This year, we:

° Helped staff build skills to work with communities through our Participation Lab.

° Ran participatory funding pilots to support local ideas

° Developed a new neighbourhood model to work more closely with our communities to improve their
local places.

By bringing people, services and partners together, we’re strengthening trust and making sure the council
is working with—not just for—our communities.

Our approach also supports the Council’s long-term plans for devolution and unitary transition by building
the tools, culture and confidence needed to put communities at the heart of decision-making.

Complaints / Compliments

There is a complaints / compliments procedure in place for the Council to receive and investigate
complaints made about service delivery and against its members or staff. Details of which can be found on
the Council’s website.

Results of complaints investigated together with the report on all complaints dealt with by the Local
Government Ombudsman are reported annually to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee.
Partnership working

In addition to the partnership between Adur and Worthing this Council is involved in a number of different
partnerships, at different levels each with their own set of terms of reference for effective joint working.

C. Defining Outcomes in Terms of Sustainable Economic, Social and Environmental Benefits

Joint Corporate Priorities

The Councils have agreed a plan ‘Our Plan’ that sets out Adur & Worthing Councils' ambition for our
places' and our communities' prosperity and wellbeing over three years (2022 - 2025).

The Councils have agreed programmes of work for this period under four themes or ‘Missions’ which set
out their aspirations for the town.

° Thriving People

° Thriving Places
° Thriving Environment
° Thriving Economy

Further details of how these priorities will be achieved are included in a programme of work which can be
found on the internet at Our Plan. The Council receives regular reports on the progress in delivering the
outcomes set out within Our Plan which reflects the priorities of both.

D. Determining the Interventions Necessary to Optimise the Achievement of the Intended
Outcomes

ADC Statement
of Accounts Page 121


https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/neighbourhood-team/
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/complaints/
https://www.adur-worthing.gov.uk/our-plan/

In order to secure these outcomes for residents and service users, the Council needs to respond to some
tough challenges. Through partnership working and efficiency savings the Council has made significant
savings over the past five years and will continue to need to find a savings in a climate of reducing funding
from Central Government and rising demand for many of the Council's services.

Subsequent to the 24/25 work on organisational design, a new internal governance framework has been
implemented in order to strengthen controls on projects and ensure alignment with delivery of corporate

priorities and integrate the ongoing spend controls which have been in place for the last 12 months. The
‘mission control’ system has a number of important features:

1. Major Programmes Board (MPB): Chaired by the Chief Executive, this board oversees the overall
program, including resource planning, financial tracking, and benefits realization. A Core Services
Group supports the MPB.

2. Mission Boards: Four boards focus on specific mission areas: Thriving Organization, Thriving People,
Thriving Places and Environment, and Thriving Economy. They manage work programs, develop
projects, and report to the MPB. They provide the link between project and service delivery.

3. Mission MDTs (multi-disciplinary teams): These teams provide a space for learning, development, and
collaboration across service team managers, project managers, and core service representatives.

4. Member working groups which give portfolio holders oversight of delivery programmes and the
opportunity to contribute to discussions about prioritisation.

In addition a corporate health board has been established to oversee areas of work such as Health and
Strategy compliance or complaints handling and a strategic finance group has oversight of budget
monitoring and development.

The approach reflects the organisational focus on high quality adaptive project management which
focuses on long-term goals, systemic change, and flexibility.

E. Developing the Council’s Capability, Including the Capability of its Leadership and the
Individuals within it.

Recruitment and induction

Delivering great services starts with supporting the people who work for the Council. This means recruiting
fairly, developing skills, and making it easier for staff to do their best work—both now and in the future.

Over the past year, the Council has been improving how it attracts, trains and supports its staff. This is part
of the Council’s commitment to building a flexible, capable workforce that can deliver its priorities and
adapt to change.

The Council is making job adverts and descriptions clearer and easier to understand, highlighting the
purpose of roles and the difference people can make in the communities. Further work through an
improved recruitment system will make the process more accessible, while also helping the Council collect
better data on who’s applying and why. This lets the Council see how inclusive it really is—and where it
needs to improve. These changes aim to attract and retain a more diverse workforce, strengthen local
talent pipelines, and improve the candidate experience. The Council operates a robust interview and
selection process to ensure that Officers are only appointed if they have the right levels of skills and
experience to effectively fulfil their role. If working with children and/or vulnerable adults, they will be
subject to an enhanced criminal records check prior to appointment. New Officers receive induction which
provides information about how the organization works, policies and health and safety. Newly elected
Councillors are required to attend an induction which includes information on: roles and responsibilities;
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political management and decision-making; financial management and processes; health and safety;
information governance; and safeguarding.

Training and development

The Council has launched a new Skills Framework and associated learning that helps staff grow the skills
they need to thrive now and prepare for what’s next—including the future unitary council.

This year, the Council has:

° Rolled out a new online training platform so staff can access learning anytime, anywhere.
° Introduced 30-day learning toolkits that turn training into real everyday practice.
° Created learning labs for management, participation, with digital and delivery management labs to

come—so people can learn by doing.

The Council is also testing joint learning between staff and community organizations to build shared
understanding and stronger partnerships.

The Council’s learning approach is now more flexible, inclusive and relevant to people’s real work. It helps
frontline and office-based staff learn together, and gives everyone a chance to build confidence in digital
tools, collaboration and innovation.

All Officers are required to complete a number of mandatory e-learning courses including health and
safety, equalities and diversity, financial rules, and information governance. Officers and Members have
access to a range of digital, technical, soft skills and job specific training courses. Compulsory training is
provided for Members who sit on the following committees: Audit and Governance, Licensing Committee,
and the Planning Committee. Other member-led training is available to Councillors through Democratic
Services and Learning and Development. The package of support available gives Members the
opportunity to build on existing skills and knowledge in order to carry out their roles effectively.

Performance development and review

All Officers receive regular one-to-ones with their Manager in order to monitor workload and performance.
Personal skills audits have been introduced so staff are empowered to identify with their managers the
skills they need to perform, and personal development planning has been introduced to be able to track
progress. Services consider workforce plans as part of the annual business planning process. Service
plans paint a picture of what the Council wants to achieve; workforce planning helps to establish the
nature of the workforce needed to deliver that vision and produce a plan to fill the gaps. This helps to
ensure the Council has the right people, with the right skills, in the

F. Managing Risks and Performance Through Robust Internal Control and Strong Public
Financial Management

Effective scrutiny

As required by statute, the Council operates a Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JOSC) governed
by its own terms of reference. It is important that JOSC acts effectively as one of their key tasks is to
review and challenge the policy decisions that are taken by the Executive or the Joint Strategic
Committee. Topics that are chosen to be 'scrutinised' are looked at in depth by a cross party panel of
Councillors. They assess how the Council is performing and see whether they are providing the best
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possible, cost effective service for people in the area. The JOSC's findings are reported to the Joint
Strategic Committee or Executive and may result in changes to the way in which services are delivered.

Financial management

The Assistant Director of Finance is responsible for leading the promotion and delivery of good financial
management so that public money is safeguarded at all times, ensuring that budgets are agreed in
advance and are robust, that value for money is provided by our services, and that the finance function is
fit for purpose. She advises on financial matters to both the Executive and full Council and is actively
involved in ensuring that the authority's strategic objectives are delivered sustainably in line with long term
financial goals. The s151 Officer together with the finance team ensure that new policies or service
proposals are costed, financially appraised, fully financed and identifies the key assumptions and financial
risks that face the council.

A Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is prepared on at least an annual basis and updated
throughout the year. It is linked to the annual budget and the Council’s Financial Strategy.

Financial Regulations are regularly reviewed by the s151 Officer to ensure that the Council can meet all of
its responsibilities under various laws. They set the framework on how we manage our financial dealings
and are part of our Constitution. They also set the financial standards that will ensure consistency of
approach and the controls needed to minimise risks. The s151 Officer has a statutory duty to report any
unlawful financial activity or failure to set or keep to a balanced budget. She also has a number of statutory
powers in order to allow this role to be carried out, such as the right to insist that the local authority makes
sufficient financial provision for the cost of internal audit.

Risk management

All significant risks (defined as something that may result in failure in service delivery, significant financial
loss, non-achievement of key objectives, damage to health, legal action or reputational damage) must be
logged on a Corporate Risk Register, profiled (as high/medium/low), and mitigating measures/assurances
must be put in place. These risks are regularly reported to CLT and the Joint Audit and Governance
Committee.

G. Implementing Good Practices in Transparency Reporting and Audit to Deliver Effective
Accountability

Joint Audit and Governance Committee

The Joint Audit and Governance Committee has the responsibility for receiving many reports that deal with
issues that are key to good governance. The Committee undertakes the core functions of an Audit
Committee identified in CIPFA's practical guidance. The group has an agreed set of terms of reference,
which sets out their roles and responsibilities of its members. The Committee also includes the
appointment of two independent Co-opted Members for Audit purposes.

Internal audit

The Head of Internal audit is a qualified accountant who has full access to senior management and the
Joint Audit and Governance Committee (which fulfils the role of an audit committee). The audit team is
properly resourced. The Council is in compliance with the CIPFA statement on the Role of the Head of
Internal Audit (2010).
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The Head of Internal Audit provides an independent and objective annual opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control, risk management and governance each year. This is carried out by the Internal Audit team
in accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit

Standards.

The Head of Internal Audit's Annual 2024/25 report is in draft pending the completion of outstanding audit
reviews, the Head of Internal Audit’'s overall opinion will be issued with the final report due at the end of
May 2025. The draft report can be found on the council website.

Annual accounts

The Council publishes full audited accounts each year which are published on the website at: Statement
of Accounts

Review of Effectiveness

Adur District Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its
governance framework including the system of internal control and this is done through the Annual
Governance Statement. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the executive managers
within the Council who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance
environment, the Head of Internal Audit's annual report, and also by comments made by relevant
stakeholders, the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.

The Council has procedures in place to ensure the maintenance and review of the effectiveness of the
governance framework, which includes reports to and reviews by the following:

° the Joint Strategic Committee, Executives, the Joint Audit and Governance Committee, and the
Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

° internal and external audit

° other explicit review/assurance mechanisms.

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the
governance framework by the Joint Audit and Governance Committee, and a plan to address weaknesses
and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

The current detailed plan to address any weakness and improve the Council’'s governance was approved
on the 28th May 2024 at the Joint Audit and Governance Committee in the report titled ‘Annual
Governance Statements 2023/24°. This can be found on the Council’s intranet using the following link :
website

Overall opinion:

It is the opinion of the Council that, with the exception of the issues identified below, the framework is
satisfactory. The Council will continue to assess and make improvements to the governance framework.

Significant Governance Issues
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There is one significant governance issue either identified by red status on the Governance Action Plan, or
via Corporate Leadership team, or from the Internal Audit Annual Report or via a report from the
Monitoring Officer:

Housing management:

The Council identified the need to improve its management of the Housing Service and other key housing
management policies and processes. More recently, the Council has identified significant issues with the
safety and condition of the properties and referred itself to the regulator of social housing in February
2023.

Actions are being undertaken to improve the service by way of:

The embedding of a housing improvement plan to address the issues identified by the Regulator;
Improvements to the internal control environment to ensure that all works are properly commissioned
and paid for;

A major review of all the inspection regimes.

A review of the staffing and management of the service.

A review of the contractual arrangements for the housing repairs service including letting new
contracts for services where appropriate.

A review of all of the policies and procedures relating to service and leaseholder charges

A full discovery and review of all Housing Service IT systems

Establish an effective and strong resident engagement regime with all parts of the service.

The council has liaised with the Housing Regulator regularly throughout the process with the most recent
Progress Review meeting 23 April 2025.

Regular update reports are presented to the Joint Audit and Governance committee on progress against
the Home Improvement Plan.

With a changing leadership provision, interim resource has been secured and are reviewing our progress
in accordance with emerging legislative frameworks. Outcome of this progress review is considered
alongside the findings of an internal audit

Other Issues

The Governance Action Plan has been updated to deal with any issues brought forward from the 2023
review together with any issues which have been identified during the current review.

Included within the governance requirements as detailed in the ‘Statement on the Role of the Chief
Financial Officer in Public Services’ are recommended best practice that:

e the Chief Financial Officer should be professionally qualified,
e report directly to the Chief Executive and
e be a member of the leadership team, with a status at least equivalent to other members.
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The Chief Executive, Assistant Director of Finance and the Assistant Director of Legal and Democratic
Services (Monitoring Officer) hold regular scheduled meetings to discuss governance matters and will
convene as required for any urgent considerations. The Council complies with all other requirements of the
statement.

Proposed Action

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our
governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that
were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of
our next annual review.

Signed: Signed:

Chief Executive of Adur District Council an

Leader of Adur District Council Worthing Borough Council
Jeremy Gardner Catherine Howe
Date: 27/05/2025 Date: 27/05/2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ADUR DISTRICT COUNCIL
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GLOSSARY OF ACCOUNTING TERMS

The following is a brief explanation of the technical terms used in this publication:-

The period of time covered by the accounts. The current year
is 2023/24 which means the year commencing 1st April 2023
and ending 31st March 2024. The end of the accounting
period is the date at which the balance sheet is drawn up.

ACCOUNTING PERIOD

An amount included in the accounts in respect of income or
expenditure for which payment has not been received or
made by the end of the accounting period. This is based on
the concept that income or expenditure is recognised as it is
earned or incurred, not simply when money is received or
paid out.

ACCRUAL

An actuarial assumption is an estimate (usually in respect of
pension fund valuations) of an unknown value made in
accordance with methods of actuarial science. An actuarial

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTION assumption is made using statistical tools such as the
correlation of known values to possible outcomes for the
unknown value. An actuarial assumption is often used to
calculate premiums or benefits.

Actuarial gains and losses which may result from:

ACTUARIAL GAINS AND (a) experience adjustments (the effects of differences
LOSSES between the previous actuarial assumptions and what
has actually occurred); and
(b) the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions.

A resource that, as a result of a past event, is controlled and
expected to give future benefits. It is not necessary to own an
asset in order to control it, as assets may be acquired from
other providers via credit arrangements such as leasing.

ASSET

The amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured. The measurement reflects the cost or transaction
price at initial recognition, adjusted for principal payments and

AMORTISED COST accrued interest at the balance sheet date. The measurement
may also be adjusted by any difference between the initial
amount and the maturity amount resulting from impairment or
uncollectibility by applying the effective interest rate inherent
over the term of the financial asset or liability.

A statement of the recorded assets, liabilities and other

BALANCE SHEET accounting balances at the end of an accounting period.
A charge to the revenue account to reflect the cost of fixed
CAPITAL CHARGE assets used in the provision of services. The charges

themselves consist of depreciation, based upon the useful
lives of depreciable assets.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

CAPITAL RECEIPTS

CASH EQUIVALENTS

COMMUNITY ASSETS

CONSISTENCY

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

CREDITORS

CURRENT ASSETS/LIABILITIES

CURRENT SERVICE COST

CURTAILMENT

DEBTORS

DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME

DEPRECIATION

EXPENDITURE

Expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset or expenditure
which adds to and not merely maintains the value of an
existing fixed asset.

The proceeds from the sale of fixed assets.

Short-term investments that are readily convertible, without
penalty, to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Assets that are intended to be held in perpetuity, that have no
determinable useful life, and that may have restrictions on
their disposal. Examples are parks and historic buildings.

The concept that the accounting treatment of like items within
an accounting period and from one period to the next is the
same.

A potential liability at the balance sheet date the outcome of
which is not certain, but may be dependent on a future event.
Where the potential liability is likely to be material, the fact
that it exists will be disclosed as a note to the accounts.

Amounts owing for work done, goods received or services
rendered in an accounting period, for which payment has not
yet been made.

Assets or liabilities which are of a short term nature, that will
be realised within a year, e.g. stocks, debtors and creditors.

Current Service Cost is the increase in the present value of a
defined benefit pension scheme’s liabilities expected to arise
from employee service in the current period, i.e. the ultimate
pension benefits “earned” by employees in the current year’s
employment.

Curtailments will show the cost of the early payment of
pension benefits if any employee has been made redundant
in the previous financial year.

Amounts due to the Council which relate to the accounting
period, but have not been received at the balance sheet date

This is a pension or other retirement benefit scheme other
than a defined contribution scheme. Usually, the scheme rules
define the benefits independently of the contributions payable
and the benefits are not directly related to the investments of
the scheme. The scheme may be funded or unfunded
(including notionally funded).

The loss in value of a fixed asset due to age, wear and tear,
deterioration or obsolescence.

The costs incurred relating to the accounting period
irrespective of whether the amounts have been paid or not,
i.e. on an accruals basis.
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FAIR PRESENTATION

FAIR VALUE

FINANCE LEASE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)

INVESTMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

LIQUID RESOURCES

NET BOOK VALUE

International Accounting Standard IAS 1 requirement that
financial statements should not be misleading. To a large
extent this means obeying the prevalent accounting
standards, but the concept of fairness may transcend that, to
include an assessment of the overall picture given by the
financial statements.

The amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a
liability settled, between knowledgeable and willing parties at
arm’s length.

A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of a fixed asset from the provider (lessor) to the
user (lessee). Although, strictly, the leased asset remains the
property of the lessor, in substance the lessee may be
considered to have acquired the asset and to have financed
the acquisition by obtaining a loan from the lessor.

A contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

The objective is to ensure that assets are not carried in the
Balance Sheet at more than their recoverable amount.

Examples include roads, street lighting, footpaths, cycle
tracks, street furniture and coastal defences

Non-financial assets e.g. software licences with no physical
substance which is controlled by an entity through custody or
legal rights.

Financial statements prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) should
comply with all the IFRS requirements. The term IFRS
includes all applicable IFRS, IFRIC, International Accounting
Standards (IAS) and SIC Interpretations.

Current asset investments that are readily disposable by the
Council without disrupting its business.

Property (land or a building, or part of a building, or both) held
solely to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both.

Surplus funds which are temporarily invested for periods of up
to one year. Long-term investments are intended to be held
for use on a continuing basis in the activities of the Council.

The amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance
sheet, i.e. their historical or current value less the cumulative
amounts provided for depreciation.
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OPERATING LEASE

POST BALANCE SHEET
EVENTS

PROVISION

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT

PRUDENCE

PUBLIC WORKS LOAN BOARD
(PWLB)

REMUNERATION

RESERVES

TO DEBIT

TO CREDIT

TRUE AND FAIR VIEW

VIREMENT

An operating lease is any lease which is not a finance lease.
An operating lease has the character of a rental agreement
with the lessor usually being responsible for repairs and
maintenance of the assets.

Those events, both favourable and unfavourable, which occur
between the balance sheet date and the date on which the
Statement of Accounts is signed by the responsible financial
officer.

An amount put aside in the accounts for liabilities or losses
which are certain or very likely to occur, but uncertain as to
the amounts involved or as to the dates on which they will
arise are not determined.

This is an event whereby figures quoted in a previous year's
statements have been changed due to a change in
accounting policy.

The concept that revenue is not anticipated but is recognised
only when realised in the form either of cash or of other
assets the ultimate realisation of which can be assessed with
reasonable certainty.

The Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) is a statutory body
operating within the Debt Management Office of the UK
Treasury (DMO) and is responsible for lending money to local
authorities and managing certain public sector funds.

Payment or compensation received for services or
employment. This includes the base salary and any bonuses
or other economic benefits that an employee or executive
receives during employment.

Amounts set aside for purposes falling outside the definition
of provisions. Reserves include earmarked reserves set aside
for specific policy purposes, general contingencies and
working balances.

An accounting entry which results in either an increase in
assets or a decrease in liabilities or net worth.

An accounting entry which results in either a decrease in
assets or an increase in liabilities or net worth.

Financial statements shall give a true and fair presentation of
the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of
a Council.

Transfer of resources from one budget head to another in
order to accommodate variations in spending policies.
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Joel Goacher
Financial Services Manager,
Adur District Council,
Town Hall,

Chapel Road,
Worthing,

West Sussex, BN11 1HB

Telephone Direct Line: 01903 221236
E-mail: joel.goacher@adur-worthing.gov.uk
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